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Ismail Industries Limited is:one of the largest .

business entities of Pakistan. The company has a -

“diverse portfolio ranging f_romfbod produc_ts
~ (confectioneries, biscuits, snacks, and nutrition)
-to high-quality packaging films. g
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WELCOME

Our vision is to grow our business,
while decoupling our environmental
footprint from our growth and
increasing our positive social impact.
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OURSTORY

Since inception, our focus has remained on developing the most innovative and unique products for our
customers. This commitment has resulted in some of the most loved sweet and savory products that are enjoyed
by millions of our customers today. We are proud of developing the best brands in the business and some of the
most innovative products which have become a part of our national lifestyle. The wide array of products appeals
to children and grown-ups alike and is a source of joy for millions.

Candyland is where it all started in 1988 with our first factory bringing to life the largest confectionery company
of Pakistan. Our strong ethos of honesty, dedication and relentless hard work has seen us become a name of
quality and consumer trust for over three decades. Candyland is an incredible and inspiring story of
determination which has made us the market leader in the confectionery business.

Later in 2002, the Bisconni division was introduced, which soon became one of the fastest growing biscuits
industries in the country. In 2006, the SnackCity division was set in motion to explore the chips and peanuts
category. Our business further strengthened when, in the same year, Astro Films was launched as a specialized
division that manufactures packaging and plastic films.
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At Ismail Industries Limited (lIL), we take pride in being ISO 22000 certified and meeting the global
guality standard developed by the International Organization for Standardization dealing with food safety. We
are also certified by SANHA (South African National Halal Authority) which is a leading authority in the
certification for Halal products around the world.

For over two decades, IIL has been exporting its products to more than 40 countries in North America, Europe,
Australia, Africa, the Far East, and the Middle East. Our long-standing customer relationships are a testament to
our commitment to manufacturing the highest quality products and ensuring the satisfaction of our customers
all around the world.

Our employees operate in an environment where they are empowered to think and act in the highest interest of
our key stakeholders. It is the same culture of innovation that has resulted in many home-grown ideas resulting
in some of the most innovate products brought to Pakistan confectionery, biscuit, and snack market along with
various achievements internally on driving efficiency and operational excellence.
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MISSION

Our mission is to capitalize on our values and maximize our customers’
satisfaction through continuous efforts of delivering consistent quality of
products to our consumers. We aim to constantly empower and enable our
people to deliver value for our consumers. Our target is to extensively
cater to the home markets and to strengthen our roots in international
ones. The overarching mission of Ismail Industries Limited is to become a
socially responsible organization that contributes towards the betterment,
growth and development of Pakistan.
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VISION

Ismail Industries’ vision is to continue our growth trajectory in the coming
years and become the largest food manufacturing company in Pakistan.
We aim to serve our customers with delightful treats and products with
the promise of taste and bringing smiles. The company plans to become

the best snacking company in the country through its strategy focused on
quality products, leveraging people’s capabilities, employing technology

for efficiency, bold innovation, and continuous process improvements.
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CORE VALUES

BELIEF

QOur mantra is to keep dreams alive. We have faith in the notion that the belief in oneself
and the overall purpose is the first step to achieve something. We strongly believe in
our products, our processes, our partners, and above all - we believe in each other.

LEADERSHIP

We believe that business performance is driven by effective leaders who
can truly inspire people to unleash their individual and collective potential.
We focus on providing a leadership that provides a vision, inculcates
aspirations, promotes commmunication, and displays passion.

EXCELLENCE

Our corporate purpose is to manifest excellence in our performance attitude.
We view it as a continuous process that enables us to excel in everything we do.

FAIRNESS

Fairness is & professional behavior that establishes reliability and
credibility. We keep fairness paramount - we do what we say.

TEAMWORK

We focus on leveraging collective efforts and nurturing a culture of appreciation.
Our aim is to empower our people to make collective decisions with utmost
integrity and responsibility.
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Division Introduction

From humble beginnings to being the current largest confectionary segment of Ismail Industries Limited in
Pakistan, CandyLand began its operations on June 21, 1988. The foundation of our first production plant was laid
down on 1 acre of land and the first brand was launched in 1990. From that point onwards, the company has
constantly achieved one milestone after the other and has expanded its production facilities to over 8 acres.

Being the pioneer in the jellies category, Candyland has also launched brands in technically difficult categories such
as lollipops and marshmallows. We take pride in delivering the best quality products and our brands strive hard to
always delight our consumers. This has also helped us export our products to more than 40 countries around the
globe.

Backed by a consumer-centric and innovation driven mindset, Candyland has been known to bring new product
categories to the Pakistani consumer. Our state-of-the-art facilities have enabled us to become one of the most
technologically advanced and superior companies within the industry. Our customers and consumers are at the
core of everything we do. We strive to deliver the best customer value proposition and ensure that our consumers
receive the utmost satisfaction every time they choose our products. A blend of highly qualified and experienced
individuals in our technical and marketing teams help us achieve consumer delight. Our sales force, one of the
largest and most efficient in the category, ensures that we reach our customers even in the most remote areas of
the country.

Candyland offers a plethora of product categories such as Jellies, Chocolates, Marshmallows, Candies, Toffees,
Chews, Lollipops, Gums, Milk chocolates, Spreads, Brittles and Truffles, all meeting international standards of
quality and food safety. All Candyland products are certified ISO 22000 and have Halaal certification from SANHA.

The pandemic stricken year 2020/21 was a challenging one for Candyland. However, we stuck to our philosophy of
providing our consumers with a delightful consumption experience and broke records along the way. Some of the
notable campaigns aired were for our brands Paradise and Butterscotch while Choc-Oh and Kitchen Creations
were supported by fully digital campaigns. We also introduced some new brands to the market such as Puffs
Junior, Floaty, Snow Mints, POP, LIT, ZAP and Burger Jelly. These latest additions to our portfolio have been
launched with great zeal across the company and are a part of Candyland’s long-term growth strategy.

At Candyland, we promise to uphold our values, continue to nurture our existing brands and grow our category by
constantly innovating and launching new brands that connect with our consumers, meet their needs and continue
to delight them for many years to come.

Objectives Objectives
2020-21 2021-22

Portfolio growth through product innovation

Strengthening the Sales & Distribution Structure Investment in flagship product categories

Research-based communication development Strengthen consumer value proposition

Brand health tracking and ROI-based marketing Improve quality of existing portfolio

Channel management and development Strategic alliances to enhance brand equity

Profitability improvement initiatives Portfolio expansion with introduction of new
channels and geographies

Strengthen existing consumer touch points and identify

new areas for tapping consumers post-Covid-19 KPIl-based sales management

Resource optimization

Formation of organizational structure to gear up
for future business demands

W/
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new campaign in March 2021. The new TVC for
Paradise took us on a journey to a tropical paradise, in
line with the product proposition. The catchy jingle
and cinematography of the TVC further enhanced the
brand image and made the campaign a huge hit for

the brand. YourBread'sBestF::l}d @

CHOC-OH

Staying true to its philosophy of innovation and quality,
Candyland launched Choc-Oh chocolate hazelnut spread
backed by a media campaign. A functional ad copy was
aired on TV and digital media, supported by an extensive PR
campaign and in-store activation. The campaign helped
create inroads within the spreads category and establish
Candyland as a force to be reckoned with.

Candyfand
PARADISE
-_—
Candyland's top-selling brand was back on air with a -—1—;‘3.\5'0‘]

rL‘ 3 ealiook

BUTTER SCOTCH

One of the most awaited campaigns, Butter Scotch

hit the airwaves in February 2021. Building on its

famous predecessor of the 'Q0s, the new campaign

featured both, a bit of nostalgia and the | KITCHEN CREATIONS

contemporary imagery which the new Butter Scotch

encapsulates. The launch of our cooking chocolate range, Candyland Kitchen
Creations, was supported by a digital campaign for the brand.

The campaign featured well known faces, with Igra

Aziz and Ahmed Ali Butt the main protagonists of a The brand launch focused on garnering awareness through PR

frenzy-filled storyline which is calmed down once the bursts with food bloggers, collaboration with food content

Butter Scotch effect comes into play. The tagline creators, trial generation initiatives and the establishment of a

“Chalteee... Jaye” further strengthened the brand dedicated food services trade channel. This resulted in the

proposition of a long-lasting, buttery smooth candy. successful entry into the home baking segment for Candyland.

The Butter Scotch campaign was a critical point in
enhancing and sustaining brand volumes.




NEW LAUNCHES

POP, LIT AND ZAP
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With rising demand for high quality chocolate, Candyland
introduced a premium range of chocolate bars. Priced at
only Rs. 20, POP, LIT and ZAP boast funky pop-art
packaging and deliver chocolate consumption experiences
like no other

SNOW MINT

In September 2020, Snow Mint was launched as a mouth
freshener! Candyland paved its way into a completely
new and exciting category while appealing to a wider
segment of adults who want to have a fresh breath
throughout their day !

Snow Mint is a bite-sized mint candy with a coated hard
shell and chewy center.

S

TANTALIZ
JOUR TASTEBUpg

¥ CandylancPk

|
>
)
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FLOATY

q:'

Candyland launched a stellar product, Floaty, in sensational
style, bringing consumer favorite flavors in a yummy coated
chew candy in

November 2020.

Candyfand Rs.2
FLOATINTO

FRUlTY F UN-, JELLY BURGER

Floaty is a
bite-sized candy
with a coated hard
shell and chewy
center available in

The new trend in the market showed children preferring

four different o= -
flavors: ‘ "'!“ :

Blackcurrant,
Mango, Orange and
Strawberry. This
was the first locally
produced coated
chew of this size
and format.

fusion jelly formats over traditional forms. Therefore,
Candyland came to the rescue in order to fulfill the
experimental needs of Gen Z and launched Candyland
Jelly Burger in November 2020 with a fusion of three
fruity layers! The aim behind this launch was to take the
jellies category to the next level. Today, Jelly Burger
stands as the third highest selling jelly at Candyland!

Jelly Burger is a unigue three-layered burger shaped jelly
which can be consumed all at once or one layer at a time!




ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED




ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Perfecling the vl of

/D

Carrying the ambition to bring an exquisite taste in every bite, Bisconni has inculcated an unbreakable bond with its customers,
becoming a leading player in the biscuit industry. With an array of tantalizing offerings, it has become a household name that
aspires to deliver unmatched quality every time.

At Bisconni, we have an exciting range that continues to expand and grow. By launching popular and powerful brands
over the past 17 years, Bisconni has firmly established itself among the three leading biscuit manufacturers. We are
poised to continue our journey towards opportunities and increase growth with innovative products of high quality and
impeccable taste. Currently present in two categories of Cookies and Cakes, our flagship brands include the country’s
favorites Cocomo, Chocolatto, Chocolate Chip, Novita, Rite, Craving, Flo Cake, Chai Wala Biskut and Crux. These are
widely preferred by consumers as they constantly bring compelling value proposition and unforgettable experience
that tantalizes the consumer’s taste buds.

Since the beginning, Bisconni has adopted a customer-centric approach. Innovation and quality are at the heart of our
corporate identity, resulting in all our products being ISO 22000 and Halal certified from SANHA. Our commitment to
creating the ultimate brand experience at the forefront of our guiding philosophy has enabled us to deliver our
promises and convert consumers’ brand loyalty into brand love.

Bisconni is the value driver for Ismail Industries Limited and will continue to increase its market share in all categories
by exploring untapped opportunities within the country and beyond. With great importance given to the introduction
of exciting choices elevating consumers’ delight, we are confident that Bisconni will reach new heights.

€/BisconniPk
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Also Availablein Rs. 20 € viscomive

CHOCOLATTO

Chocolatto ended the year with a classy advertisement,
poured with the celebrity power of Syra Yousuf, aesthetic
visuals and soft music, making it Bisconni’'s biggest

CRUX

Bisconni introduced a new age baked cracker,
delicious to its core and baked to perfection. This
campaign launch was one of its kind because the
groovy jingle and appealing visuals looked fresh on
the television screens. It was further amplified
through PR, digital and vehicle branding which
increased its viewability and awareness a lot, and
made #GimmeCrux go viral.

(Bisconni

campaign. On digital, it was further amplified by interesting

boomerangs and DVCs that increased brand engagement.

On the other hand, Chocolatto’s image was strengthened by
wonderfully put together PR packages, which were used by

the influencers/bloggers for styling themselves and
indulging in the delicious center-filled biscuit.

I'J Bisconnipi
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COCOMO

In August 2020, Bisconni's flagship brand, Cocomo,
brought a one-of-a-kind consumer promotion for all its
fans by introducing an exclusive NEW diamond doodle in a
few lucky packs! For the first time in the biscuit industry,
we witnessed up to 85 unique scratch code entries! The
campaign was fully supported on TV with a fresh new
consumer promo copy explaining the mechanics of the
promotien, along with in-store branding through posters,
countertops and mobiles, and amplification on digital with
100 winner announcements every week! The campaign
received an overwhelming response.

) /cocomopakistan

BISCONNI CHOCOLATE CHIP
COOKIES ‘SCRATCH KARO WIN
KARO’

Bisconni Chocolate Chip Cookies launched the 'Scratch Karo
Win Karo' consumer promotion campaign in October 2020
Through its collaboration with Bisconni Films, a movie trailer-like
communication, featuring Ali Rehman, was launched, capitalizing
on different marketing touchpoints such as TV, digital, PR, and
out-of-home in smaller cities to reach the masses. Over 500,000
peaople have taken part in the campaign with over 2 million
missed calls received so far.

B ok
sl

Also Avallable in Rs.D and rs. 20 e it sl
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FRESHLY BAKED EVERY DAY

The SnackCity division of Ismail Industries was established in June 2006 when the company set up its
purpose-built manufacturing facility in Hub and began the production of its potato chips, Kurleez.
Having achieved great success in a short period, the foundation for a second production facility was laid
down in Lahore in March 2010, which today is operational and caters to the demand of our potato chips
in the North and Central regions of Pakistan.

Customer satisfaction has always been a priority, which is why the company has invested in the world’s
best machinery, employed the best food technicians and experts, and adopted the best practices to
ensure that the consumers taste the goodness of SnackCity products in each bite. Since its inception,
SnackCity's Kurleez has grown to become the market leader in the crinkle chips category. The company
has successfully ventured into other categories as well. Chillz, our brand of potato sticks, has also grown
to become the market leader in its category, while our Nimko category includes the brand SnackCity
Peanuts.

Yearly goals for SnackCity consisted of achieving maximum coverage of its flagship brand Kurleez on
digital. The importance of using digital marketing platforms to support the digital transformation of the
respective brands and division growth was at the forefront of SnackCity’s yearly marketing plan.

Considering this, we aggressively pursued digital campaigns with greater emphasis on our website and
Facebook page to reach a wider audience.
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ASTRO FILMS

Astro Films is one of Pakistan’s leading flexible
packaging film suppliers, manufacturing CPP, BOPP,
and BOPET films. Operating from the port city of
Karachi, Astro Films is a regionally and globally
recognized brand in the flexible packaging industry;
offering a complete flexible packaging solution to
its prestigious customers.

Astro Films has its production facilities in two
locations in Pakistan; Hub and Port Qasim industrial
areas. In Hub, Astro Films set up a CPP plant from
renowned ltalian company Gruppo Colines with an
annual production capacity of 6,000 tons. Enhancing
capacity and market share in 2014, Astro Films set
up a new 10,000 tons per annum CPP plant from
the same company at Port Qasim, increasing overall
annual CPP films capacity to 16,000 tons.

In addition, we have three metallizers from General
Vacuum (UK). Two metallizers are installed at the Hub
CPP plant and one at Port Qasim. The two facilities have
an annual metallization capacity of 12,000 and 7,000
tons, respectively.

The Ismail Family added a small BOPP plant from
Bruckner (Germany) with a capacity of 4,500 tons per
annum as a strategic addition to packaging portfolio
under the name of Plastiflex Films (Pvt) Ltd. This
expansion was especially executed to support the
in-house requirement of IIL's food businesses.

In 2011, the company embarked on further expansion of
its packaging film portfolio by ordering the first-ever
BOPET film line in Pakistan from Bruckner. With an
annual capacity of 18,000 tons per annum, this
state-of-the-art film line is designed to produce BOPET
films ranging from 12u to 120p thickness.

The enhanced features in the BOPET line have further
improved operational efficiency, providing the technical
capabilities to meet the customer’s expectations.

Complying to the highest quality, process, and food
safety standards, Astro Films possesses certifications
including 1SO 9001:2015 and FSSC 22000 (version 5).
We are proud of our accomplishments and
manufacturing capabilities which have enabled us to
become one of the most competitive suppliers of CPP
and BOPET films in the international market.

Our international customer base, spanning from the
USA to Europe and Asia, is a testament to our truly
global footprint as a packaging film supplier. Our
competitive advantage in international markets has
been the ability to supply the best guality film in the
fastest lead times; creating sustainable business and a
strongly established image of reliability.
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Adding another milestone to its illustrious history, Astro
Films' new state-of-the-art 8.7-meter production line is
operational since November 2020 with an annual output
capacity of 42,000 tons, increasing Astro Films’ overall
BOPET capacity to 60,000 tons per annum. With the
addition of this latest production line, Astro Films' total
film production capacity will be 80,000+ tons per annum.
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ISMAIL NUTRITION

Malnutrition is a universal plague which affects a population of
over 815 million people in the world.

Due to overpopulation and scarcity of adequate nutrition in

Pakistan, stunting has become prevalent in children belonging

to low socioeconomic backgrounds. As a socially responsible

company dedicated to providing high quality food products, : ot

Ismail Industries Limited initiated the manufacturing of S S af’:"’

lipid-based nutritional products in 2010. R A A
? P N A N A S I AT A

The urgent need of nutritional foods combined with the food Development, Research & Technology
manufacturing experience of the company resulted in the 5 R :

creation of the Ismail Nutrition division. The overwhelming
success of these products in Pakistan encouraged Ismail
Industries Limited to begin exporting to neighboring countries.
Many international social welfare agencies joined in as
recipients of these vital nutritional aids. Ismail Nutrition is an
approved supplier of United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF)
and World Food Program (WFP). Ismail Nutrition's
manufacturing facility is currently capable of producing 75
metric tons per day.

Ismail Nutrition further aims to work towards freeing the world
of malnutrition.
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MISSION

Hudson Pharma's focus is to identify safe and
efficacious treatments that address patients’ unmet
needs across the globe. We identify treatments that are
either unavailable or under-penetrated, often with
innovative delivery methods or manufacturing
processes that wvastly improve both safety and
attainability. We have a well-established track record
of executing our vision based on a repeatable and
reliable process that we have developed and refined
over many years. Our mission is simple. We are making
game-changing drugs attainable and safer for the
populations we serve.

INTERNATIONAL
EXPANSIONS

Our first step is to identify geographies with similar
customer habits, socio-economic conditions,
genealogy and routes to market. We are continuously
looking across the world for new markets to plant
seeds of future growth. We are cognizant, however,
that the returns will be higher and execution risk lower
in geographies where we already have a strong
physical presence. Our view is to use a balanced
approach by continuously investing for long-term
growth while making sure that our current
competitiveness in our existing markets is not
hampered.

OPERATIONS

At our plant in Karachi, Pakistan, we produce
injectables, oral liquids and respules in polyethylene
containers using the innovative blow-fill-seal (BFS)
process. Our ophthalmic eye drops are manufactured
using barrier isolation, which ensures a safer and thus
superior end product. We have further extended our
portfolio with the introduction of Dry Powder
Inhalation (DPI) capsules filled through the
microencapsulation process to ensure accurate dosing.
Qur firm also plans to launch our dermatology line in
innovative lacquer-free packaging.

Our  activities include developing, contract
manufacturing, and marketing branded generic and
specialty drugs in the following therapeutic areas:
respiratory products, vitamins, diluting agents,
anti-inflammatories,  anaesthetics,  anti-infectives,
anti-nauseants, antiemetics, anti-ulcers, NSAIDs and
ophthalmics.

RESPONSIBILITY

Patients & Care Providers
Safety is our first priority. At every step, we make

e
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decisions and design processes with patient safety at
the forefront to ensure that the end product we market
is safe, efficacious and effectively addresses patient and
provider needs.

EMPLOYEES

The welfare and morale of our employees is an
important factor in order to ensure that our team is
singularly focused on the safety of both patients and
Hudson team members. We work diligently to promote
a culture where creativity, innovation, teamwork,
honesty and productivity are rewarded irrespective of
age, race, gender, seniority, ethnicity, or socioeconomic
background.

BUSINESS PARTNERS

We take seriously protecting the interests and
reputation of our partners as though they were our
own.

COMMUNITY &
ENVIRONMENT

We are committed to making business decisions that
protect and preserve the Earth's natural resources and
environment. Our procurement and business
development teams seek suppliers and partners
respectively that share Hudson's commitment to
environmental responsibility.

HUDSON AT PRESENT

Hudson Pharma has managed to achieve double-digit
growth in the past year, despite facing various
impediments because of COVID-19. Sales from all of its
current product portfolio have managed to achieve
commendable growth in this period. The firm is
currently in an expansion phase, with the ongoing
construction of a new healthcare facility for the
manufacturing of vitamins & minerals premix and
over-the-counter (OTC) vitamins, dermatology and
other healthcare products. The new facility will be
operational during the current fiscal year tentatively.
Furthermore, Hudson Pharma is installing a new
manufacturing line for steroidal inhalation and oral
capsule products, whose launch is also anticipated in
this coming fiscal year. Apart from manufacturing and
selling pharmaceutical products, the firm also engaged
in a consulting role for an international NGO regarding
dissemination of nutritional products among pregnant
and lactating women from low income groups in
Pakistan.

N
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LOCAL
PRESENCE

2000+ Sales Force Personnel 5 Regional Sales Office
400+ Towns 135,000 Qutlets

1400+ Vans 6 Warehouses

1200+ Distributors 400,000 Weekly Sales Calls
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lIL
EXPORT
BUSINESS

|IL is exporting to over 40 countries in 6 continents. OQur growing
distribution network has enabled us to expand our consumer
base across geographies and demographics. We have exhibited
our products across the globe by participating in multiple trade
fairs and exhibitions.

Africa & Afghanistan continue performing well and we have
made further inroads in GCC, EU, US and Oceania. Despite strong
headwinds in the form of Covid-19, exchange rate volatility and
increasing material cost, we closed the year at positive growth.

To build on our past success and meet the rapidly-evolving needs
of customers globally, the company is committed to an exports
future that is more agile, productive, and customer-centric. We
are making significant changes in the department, the way we
operate, what we prioritize, and how we work together. We are
moving faster, taking more calculated risks, and working towards
% what matters most - the customer. We would also be working on
packdling standardization and SKU rationalization that should
%, reduce complexity and lead to operational savings.

Our top priority for the next fiscal is to maximize inorganic
growth to boost our top-line sales and volume gains. We will
work on adjusting our route to market, on tapping white spaces
and on expanding our business with the current distributors. We
also plan to further develop our presence in modern trade and
digital.

6 Continents
40+ Countries
64+ Customers
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CORPORATE
SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Ismail Industries Limited is imbued with a noble mission of
inspiring hope and contributing to the well-being of
underserved communities in Pakistan. The aim is to initiate
social developmental projects; provide educational and
vocational opportunities; and to organize recreational
events that help in improving & strengthening society.
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SOCIAL WELLBEING EMPLOYMENT

& HEALTHCARE

Ismail Industries Limited has launched an initiative to
provide free health insurance to over 2000 field force to
ensure the well-being of the staff and their families. The
group also donates generously to leading healthcare
institutions such as Indus Hospital to help them deliver
quality healthcare to the underprivileged.

THE GREEN
INITIATIVE

It cannot be ignored that global warming is real & it is
affecting our environment drastically. The solution to
this is to plant more trees. Tree plantation drives
have always been central to the vision of Ismail
Industries Limited. From converting various barren
parks into gardens to collaborating with universities,
we have worked tirelessly towards a cleaner and
greener Pakistan. We recently collaborated with
Institute of Business Administration (IBA) to plant
over 10,000 plants within IBA, at Quaid's Residency,
and other areas of the city.

EDUCATION
FOR ALL

At Ismail Industries Limited, we are committed more
than ever to make guality education accessible for
everyone in Pakistan. A storytelling activity project has
been initiated that will cover government schools in
underserved areas of Karachi. This activity aimed to
engage students and attract them to a learning culture.
So far, we have carried out this activity in more than 20
schools and this long-term project continues to targets
many other schools in the city.

Moreover, a 3-day certified course was offered to young
individuals at Shanti Nagar. The course covered the
necessary entrepreneurial skills and technigues in order
to motivate participants to learn about how to start their
own businesses. The instructors also spent time in career
counseling and encouraged the participants to identify
their interests.

In addition to these initiatives, we continue to sponsor
Ismail Academy and Khadija Girls College, where
approximately 1000 underprivileged students are
receiving education through smart learning techniques
and extracurricular activities. With qualified faculty,
these institutes are places for students from low-income
families to learn and grow into productive members of
society.

OPPORTUNITIES

We organized a job fair in collaboration with Daraz at Shanti
Nagar. The job fair provided a window of opportunity to the
talented youth ready to step into the job market. This initiative
ended up providing occupational prospects for more than 100
individuals.

TAHAFFUZ
PROGRAM

The COVID pandemic undeniably affected a major chunk of
the population in Pakistan, and one major consequence was
unemployment. Ismail Industries Limited resorted to
contributing over Rs. 1 million to support its employees in
need during this difficult time. We provided health insurance
to around 1500 people - protecting approximately 5000
lives. We are the only local company which has taken such an
initiative.

SUSTAINABLE
ENVIRONMENT

After exploring various alternate sources of energy, we have
installed solar panels at our factories. This new energy source
now generates about 271 MW of electrical power for our
production units.

WASL (Water and Sanitation Logistics) is a project of Ismail
Industries Limited, launched with the aim of providing clean
drinking water to underdeveloped areas in Pakistan. The RO
plant installed in Landhi area has the capacity to provide
20,000 liters of clean drinking water every day, which can
be bought at a minimal price. The profits from the WASL
project are to be used for the betterment of the community.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice 1s hereby given that the 33rd Annual General Meeting of Ismail Industries Limited will be held at Hotel
Galaxy, Bushra Hall, 164, B.C.H.S. Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karacli on Monday, October 25, 2021 at 12:00 noon to

transact the following businesses.
Ordinary Businesses:
1 To confirm the minutes of the Extra Ordmary General Meeting ot the Company held on April 12, 2021.

2, To recerve, consider, approve and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2021 together with the Chairman’s Review, Directors’ Review, and Auditors’ Reports
thereon.

To approve and declare the final cash dividend @ 150% (Rs. 15/~ per share) on the ordinary shares of the
Company as recommended by the Board of Directors tor the year ended June 30, 2021.

To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2022 and fix their remuneration. The Audit Committee
of the Board has recommended that the retiring auditors M/s. Grant Thorton Anjum Rahman,
Chartered Accountants being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment.

Special Businesses:
5. To consider and approve the remuneration ot the Chief Executive Ofticer and Executive Director.

To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to approve transactions with Related Parties for the
tinancial year ending June 30, 2022 by passing the following special resolutions with or without
moditication:

RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authonized to approve
transactions to be conducted with Related Parties on case-to-case basis for the financial year endmng June

30, 2022.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT these transactions as approved by the Board shall be deemed to have
been approved by the shareholders and shall be placed betore the shareholders in the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company for their formal ratification/approval.

To consider and if deemed appropriate, pass the following resolutions, with or without modifications,
under Section 199 ot the Companies Act, 2017 and the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies

or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017.

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the requirements of section 199 of the Compasues Act, 2017 the Board
has decided to make further long-term equity investment 1n its subsidiary company M/s. Hudson Pharma
(Private) Limited up to Rs. 800,000,000/~ (Rupees: Eight hundred mullion only) to meet its capital
expenditures requirement of expansion planned tor setting up of Pakistan’s first Vitamins & Minerals
Premix facility as well as for operational expenses / working capital requirements.
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RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the requirements ot section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 the Board

has decided to further increase the Cross Corporate Guarantee amount for its subsidiary company M/s.

Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited as approved by the shareholders in the Extra Ordinary General
Meeting of the Company held on Aprl 12, 2021 from Rs. 600,000,000/~ (Rupees: Six hundred million
only) to Rs. 700,000,000/~ (Rupees: Seven hundred million only).

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the requirements ot section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 the Board
has decided to make further long-term equity mvestment in its subsidiary company M/s. Ismail Resin
(Private) Limited as approved by the shareholders in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company
held on April 12, 2021 from Rs. 1,500,000,000/- (Rupees: One thousand Five hundred muillion only) to Rs.
2,500,000,000/- (Rupees: Two thousand five hundred million only) to meet the estimated cost over-run
arises in which one of the reasons is massive devaluation of Pak Rupee.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer / Company Secretary of the Company
be and is hereby singly authorized to take any and/or all actions to implement and give effect to above
resolutions and to complete any or all required corporate and necessary legal formalities for the purpose
of implementation ot above resolutions.

To transact any other busimess with permussion ot the Char.

"Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, concerning the Special Resolutions,
is attached along with the Notice circulated to the members of the Company, and is deemed to
be an integral part hereof.”

By order of the Board

Karachi: October 1, 2021 Ghulam Farooq
Company Secretary

Closure of Shares Transfer Book

The shares transter book of the Company shall remain closed with effect from October 19, 2021 to
October 25, 2021 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of Share Registrar M/s.
THK Associates (Pvt.) Ltd, Plot # 32-C, Jamui Commercial Street 2, D.H..A. Phase VII, Karachi, Phone
# 021-111-000-322 (the Share Registrar) at the close of business on October 18, 2021 will be considered

i time to attend and vote at the meeting.
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Participation in Annual General Meeting

A member eligible to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to
attend and vote instead of him/her. Proxy, in order to be effective must reach the Company Share
Registrar Oftice not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting during working houss.

An individual beneficial owner of shares must bring his/her original CNIC or Passport, Account and
Participant I.D. numbers to prove his/her identity. A representative of Corporate members, must bring
the Board of Directors’ Resolution and/or Power of Attorney and the specimen signature of nominee.
CDC account holders will turther have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 on dated:
January 26, 2000 1ssued by the Secunties and Exchange Commussion of Pakistan.

Submission of the CNIC/N'TN Details (Mandatory)

In accordance with the notification of the Securities and Exchange Commussion of Pakistan Notifications
SRO 779 (I) dated: August 18, 2011, and SRO 831 (I) 2012 dated: July 05, 2012, which mandates that the
dividend counters should bear CNIC number of the registered member or the authorized person, except
1n case of minor(s) and corporate entities. Shareholder are requested to submit the same to the Company’s
Share Registrar. In case of non-complance, the Company shall withhold credit of dividend as per law.

Withholding Tax on Dividend

Pursuant to the provisions of section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 the rates ot deduction of
mcome tax from dividend payment shall be made on the basis of following criteria:

(1) Rate of tax deduction for filer of income tax return 15%
(1) Rate of tax deduction for non-filer of income tax return 30%

1)) All the shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax Payers List (ATL) provided
on the website of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their
names are entered into ATL before the start of book closure date otherwise tax on their cash

dividend will be deducted (@ 30% instead of 15%.

According to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue, Withholding Tax will be
determined separately on ‘Filer/Non-Filer’ status of Prncipal Shareholder as well as
Joint-holdex(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts. In this regard,

all Members/Shareholders of the Company either holding shares in physical form or in CDC, who

hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding proportions of Prncipal Shareholder
and jomnt-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them (only if not already provided) to our Share
Registrar, in wniting and m the following manner:

Folio/ Total | Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder(s)
CDS Shares

Account No.

Name & | Shareholding Name & | Shareholding
CNIC proportion  (No. | CNIC proportion (No. of
No. ot Shares) No. Shares)
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The required information must reach our Share Registrar withuin 10 days of tlus notice, otherwise

it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal Shareholder and Jomt Holdex(s).

A valid Exemption Certificate under Section 159 of the Ordinance, 2001 1s mandatory to claim
exemption of withholding tax under Clause 47-B of Part-IV of Second Schedule to the Ordinance,
2001. Those who wish to seek an exemption must provide a copy ot thewr valid tax exemption
certificate to the Share Registrar prior to the date of commencement of Book Closure otherwise

tax will be deducted according to the applicable Law.

Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (Mandatory Requirement)

The provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, and Companies (Distribution of Dividends),
Regulation 2017, a listed company, is required to pay cash dividend to the Shareholders ONLY through

electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. Accordingly, the
shareholders holding physical shares are requested to provide the following information to Company’s
Share Registrar at the address given herein above. In case of shares held in CDC, the same mformation

should be provided to the CDS participants for updating and forwarding to the Company.

(i) Sharcholder’s details:

Name of the Shareholder

CDC Participant ID & Sub-Account No. /CDC IAS
CNIC/NICOP/Passport/NTN No. (please attach copy)
Contact Number (Landline & Cell Nos.)
Shareholder’s Address

(i1) Shareholder’s Bank account details:

Title of Bank Account

IBAN

Bank’s Name

Branch Name & Code No.

Branch Address

Transmission of Annual Report through Email

We are pleased to inform shareholders that the Securities and Exchange Commussion of Pakistan pursuant
to SRO No. 787(1)/2014 dated: September 08, 2014 permitted Companies to circulate their Annual
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Accounts, Auditor’s Report and Director Report etc. (“Annual
Report”) along with the notice of annual general meeting (“Notice”), to its shareholders by email
Shareholders of the Company, who wish to receive the Company’s Annual Report and Notice by email,
are requested to provide the complete Electronic Communication details. However, the Company may
provide hard copy of Annual Report and Notice to such members on thewr request, tree of cost, within
seven days of receipt of such request.
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Transmission of Annual Report through CD

The Company has circulated annual audited financial statements to its members through CD at their
registered address. Printed copy of above said statements can be provided to members upon request.

Unclaimed / Unpaid Entitlements

Shareholders who by any reason could not collect their dividends/bonus shares/other entitlements are
advised to contact our Share Registrar to collect / enquire about their unclaimed dividends/bonus
shares/other entitlements, 1f any.

Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Account

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed company shall be required to replace
its physical shares with book-entry form 1n a manner as may be specitied and from the date notitied by the
Securities & Exchange Commussion of Pakistan, within a period not exceeding four years from the
commencement of this Act, re., May 30, 2017. Further, the Securnities & Exchange Commussion of
Pakistan vide its letter dated: March 26, 2021 has advised to comply Section 72 of the Act and encourage
shareholders to convert their shares in book-entry form.

The shareholders having physical shares are encouraged to open CDC sub-account with any of the broker
or Investor account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form, thus will facilitate
them in many ways, mcluding save custody and sale of shares, any time they want, as the trading of

physical shares 1s not permitted as per existing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

E-Voting

Pursuant to the Companies (E-voting) Regulations, 2016, shareholders will be able to exercise their right
to vote through e-voting by giving their consent in writing, holding 10% of the voting power, at least 10
days before the date of the meeting to the Company on the appomtment of Execution Ofticer by the
mtermediary as Proxy.

Postal Ballot

Pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018, for the purpose of election of Director and for
any other agenda item subject to the requirement of section 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017,
members will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal ballot, that 1s voting by post or
through any electronic mode, 1 accordance with the requirements and procedure contained in the

aforesaid Regulations.
Request for Video Conference Facility

In accordance with section 132(2) ot the Companies Act, 2017 if the Company recetves consent from
members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing 1n a geographical location, to participate
1n the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date of meeting, the Company will
arrange video conference facility in that city, subject to availability of such facility in that city. To avail this
tacility, fill the request form reproduce below and submutted to the registered address of the Company.
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REQUEST FOR VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY

\\\J‘/J

1/We /Messrs. of , being Member(s) of Ismail

Industries Limuted, holder of ordinary share(s) as per Folio # and/or

CDC Participant ID & Sub-Account No. , hereby opt for video conterence facility at

city.

Signature of Member(s)
(Please affix Company stamp in case of Corporate entity)
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STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement 1s annexed as an integral part of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of Ismail Industries
Limited to be held on Monday, October 25, 2021 at 12:00 noon, at Hotel Galaxy, Bushra Hall, 164, B.C.H.S.
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan, and set out the materal facts concerning the Special Business to be transacted
at the Meeting,

Agenda # 5. Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director Remunerations

Approval 1s being sought for the increase in payment of remunerations to the Chief Executive Officer and

Executive Director.
For this purpose, the following Resolutions will be moved at the meeting.

RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby approves and authorizes the payment as remunerations to
the Chief Executive Officer a sum of Rs. 16,800,000/~ per annum and Executive Director a sum of Rs.
14,400,000/ -per annum.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT in addition to remunerations, all utilities bills, perks & benetits will be paid by
the Company. The approximate value of utilities bill, perks & benefits to be borne by the Company would be Rs.
1,500,000/~ per annum for the Chief Executive Officer and Rs. 1,250,000/~ per annum for the Executive

Director.

Agenda # 6. Authorization for the Board of Directors to approve the related party transactions
during the vear ending June 30, 2022.

The Company shall be conducting transactions with its related parties during the year ending June 30, 2022 on an
arm’s length basis as per the approved policy with respect to ‘transactions with related parties’ in the normal
course of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common
directorship 1n the subsidiary / associated companies. In order to promote transparent business practices, the
shareholders desire to authorize the Board of Directors to approve transactions with related parties from
time-to-time on case-to-case basis for the year ending June 30, 2022, which shall be deemed to be approved by the
Shareholders. These transactions shall be placed before the shareholders in the next Annual General Meeting of

the Company for their formal ratification/approval.

Agenda # 7 and 8. Investment in subsidiary company M/s. Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited u/s. 199
of the Companies Act, 2017.

(A) Regarding associated company or associated undertaking:

Name of the associated company or | M/s. Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited
associated undertaking

Basis of relationship Subsidiary Company with 77.71% shareholding and common
directorship ot following directors:

1) Mz Munsarim Saifullah

2) Mzt Hamid Magsood Ismail

3)  Mr. Ahmed Muhammad
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Earnings per share for the last three | Loss per share:
years; 2021 —1.75
2020 —5.91
2019 —3.94

Break-up value per share, based on | Rs. 3.80/- per share

latest audited financial statements

Financial position, including main - - —
P & Financial Position and Profit or Loss

Year ended June 30, 2021

items of statement of financial position
and profit and loss account on the

Rs.

Non-Current Assets 1,024,514,369
Total Assets 1,392,272 460
Equity — net 785,262,495
Non-Current Liabilities 249,731,982
Total Liabilities 607,009,965
Loss for the Year 361,784,895

basis of its latest financial statements.

In case of investment in relation to a
project of associated company or
associated undertaking that has not
commenced operations, following
turther information, namely;

(i) Description of the project and | Vitamins & Minerals Premix manufacturing Plant with the
its history since conceptualiza-| capacity of 2,000 toas per annum.
tion;

Starting date and expected| Letter of Credits for procurement of Plant & machineries

date of completion of work; | have already been established and extension in factory
building is 1n tinal phase of constriction.

Time by which such project| By January 2022 project will be commercially operational.
shall become commercially
operational;

Expected time by which the| From financial year 2024-2025
project shall start paying
return on investment; and
Funds invested or to Dbe| Funds to be invested by the sponsors in shape of cash.
invested by the promotors,
sponsors, associated company
or associated undertaking
distinguishing between cash
and non-cash amounts;
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(B) General disclosures:

)

Maximum amount of investment to
be made

Further long-term equity investment upto Rs. 800,000,000/
(Rupees: Eight hundred million only)

Further increase the Cross Corporate Guarantee amount
from Rs. 600,000,000/ (Rupees: Six hundred million) to Rs.
700,000,000/ - (Rupees: Seven hundred million)

Purpose, benetits likely accrue to the
mvesting company and its members
from such mvestment and period of
investment

To make further long term equity investment to meet its
capital expenditures requirement of expansion planned for
setting up of Pakistan’s first Vitamins & Minerals Premix
facility as well as for operational expenses/ working capital
requirements.

The purpose of enhancement i Cross Corporate Guarante

amount 1s to facilitate the subsidiary company to securitize its
lender against financing facility for proposed expansion plan

The Company expects to get good return in long run on this
long-term strategic equity mvestment.

Period of Investment:
The investment would be made in piecemeal as and when
needed tll the completion of project.

Sources of fund to be utilized for
investment and where the investment
is intended to be made

borrowed funds:
(1) Justitication
investment

using

for
through
borrowings:

(11) Detail ot collateral,
guarantees provided
and assets pledged for
obtaining such funds:

and

Cost benetit analysis:

)

From Susplus tunds of the Company

Not Applicable

Salient features of the agreement(s), 1f
any, with associated company or
associated undertaking with regards to
the proposed investment;

Not Applicable

Direct or indirect interest of directors,
sponsors, majority shareholders and
their relatives, if any, in the associated
company or associated undertaking or
the transaction under consideration.

Mr. Munsarim Sasfullah, Mr. Hamid Maqgsood Ismail, and Mr.
Ahmed Muhammad, are Directors of Ismail Industries
Limited (the investing company), they are also Directors of
Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited. Whereas, the investing
company s a major shareholder of Hudson Pharma (Private)
Limited, However, they have no direct or indirect interest
except to the extent of their shareholding in the Hudson
Pharma (Private) Limited.
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In case any investment in associated
company or associated undertaking
already been made, the
performance of such

has
review
investment

including

complete

information/justification  for any

impairment or write offs:

Ismail Industsies Limited have made an equity investment of
Rs. 1,605,984,000/- (Rupees: One billion six hundred five
million nine hundred eighty-four thousand only) and issued
Rs. 578,811,644/~ (Rupees: Five hundred seventy-eight
million eight hundred eleven thousand six hundred forty-four
only) Cross Corporate Guarantee for facilitating the
subsidiary company to securitize its lender against financing

tacility for proposed expansion plan.

Hudson Pharma having the state of art and most modern
facility anywhere in Pakistan. It has a well-established track
record of executing their vision based on repeatable and
reliable process that they have developed and refined over
many years. It has an aim to provide health institution with
more sterile injectable materials which are easier to administer
as compare to other form of dosage. Now, they are moving
torward with a diversify vision to expand the business and
setting-up a Pakistan’s first vitamins and munerals premix

facility.

There are no impairment and write off relating to the
investment made so far.

(i)

Any other important details necessary
for the members to understand the
transaction.

Not significant

Additional information for equity investment:

Maximum price at which securities will
be acquired.

At face value of Rs. 10/- per share

In case the purchase price 1s higher
than is market value in case of listed
securities and fair value in case of
unlisted
thereof;

securities, justification

Not Applicable

Maximum number of securities to be
acquired.

80,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/~ each.

Number of securities and percentage
thereof held before and after the

proposed investment.

At present, the Company holds 160,598,400 ordinary shares
constituting 77.71%, after the proposed investment it will hold
240,598,400 ordinary shares in same proportion.

Current and preceding twelve weeks
weighted average market price where
investment is proposed to be made in
listed securities;

Not Applicable

Fair value determined in terms of sub-
regulation (1) of regulation 5 for
investments 1n unlisted securities;

The fair value of equity has been worked out at Rs. 14/- per
share, as determined by the M/s. Munaf Yusuf & Co.,
Chartered Accountants. The valuation has been carried out
using discounted cash flow method. The underlying 5 years
projections were prepared by the management.
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Additional information for Cross Corporate Guarantee:

Category-wise amount of investment.

Further Cross Corporate Guarantee upto Rs. 100,000,000/~
will be 1ssued by Ismail Industries Limited in tavor of Hudson
Pharma (Private) Limited’s to securitize its lender against
financing facility for proposed expansion plan.

of the
investing company, the Karachi Inter
Bank Offered Rate (KIBOR) for the
relevant period, rate of return for
Shaniah compliant products and rate

Average cost

borrowing

of return for unfunded facilities, as
the case may be, for the relevant

period.

The current average borrowing cost of Ismail Industries
Limited for the year ended June 30, 2021 is 4.56%.

Rate of interest, markup, fees or
commission etc. to be charged by
investing company.

Not Applicable

Particulars of collateral or security to

be obtained in relation to the

proposed investment.

No secunty obtained trom the subsidiary company as it will
be in the form of equity or subordinated debt to cover the
financial or any other obligation of the lenders.

If the investment carries conversion
features
securities, this fact along with terms
and conditions including conversion

i.e. it is convertible into

formula, circumstances in which the
conversion may take place and the
time when the conversion may be
exercisable.

Not Applicable

Repayment schedule and terms and
conditions of loans or advances to be
given to the associated company or

associated undertaking.

Not Applicable

Agenda # 9.

Investment in subsidiary company M/s. Ismail Resin (Private) Limited u/s. 199 of

the Companies Act, 2017.

(A) Regarding associated company or associated undertaking:

®

Name of the associated company or
associated undertaking.

M/s. Ismail Resin (Private) Limited

)

Basis of relationship

Subsidiary Company with 75% shareholding and common
directorship of tollowing directors:

1) M. Muhammad M. Ismail

2) Mrt. Magsood Ismail Ahmed

3) M. Munsarim Saifullah

4) Mzr. Hamid Magsood Ismail

5) Mr. Ahmed Muhammad
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Earnings per share for the last three
years;

Company incorporated on dated: January 13, 2021. The total
expense/loss of Rs. 159,348/~ charged on Profit and Loss
account at the close of its 1* financial year on dated: June 30,
2021. Only the subscriber shares issued at the reporting date,
1.e. 5,000 ordinary shares.

2021: Loss per share Rs. 31.87/-

Break-up value per share, based on
latest audited financial statements.

Rs. -21.87 per share (Negative)

Financial position, including main
items of statement of financial position
and profit and loss account on the
basis of its latest financial statements.

Financial Position and Profit or Loss
Year ended June 30, 2021

Rs.
615,581,090
824 613,811

(109,348)

655,600,000

168,697,000
169,123,159
159,348

Non-Current Assets
Total Assets
Equity — net

Advance against issue of
shares

Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Loss for the Year

In case of investment in relation to a
project of associated company or
associated undertaking that has not
commenced

operations, following

further information, namely;
(i) Description of the project and
its history since conceptualiza-
tion;

(if) Starting date and expected date
of completion of work;

(i) Time by which such project

shall become commercially

operational;

(iv) Expected time by which the
project shall start paying return
on investment; and

Funds invested or to be mvest-
ed by the promotors, sponsors,
associated company or associ-
ated undertaking distinguishing
between cash and non-cash
amouints;

)

Polyester Resin (PET Resin) Manufacturing Plant with capaci-
ty of 108,000 tons per annum.

Letter of Credits for procurement of Plant & machineries have
already been established and factory building is under
construction.

By September 2022 project will be commercially operational.

From ftinancial year 2023-2024

Funds to be invested by the sponsors in shape of cash.
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(B) General disclosures:

©

Maximum amount of investment to
be made.

Further long-term equity investment upto Rs. 1,000,000,000/
(Rupees: One billion only).

@

Purpose, benefits likely accrue to the
investing company and its members
trom such investment and period of
investment.

Purpose:

To make further long-term equity investment to meet the
estimated cost over-run arises in which one of the reasons is
massive devaluation of Pak Rupee.

Benefits:
1. To earn dividend income which ultimately maximize
the shareholder value of the investing company.
2. PET Resin will be available locally for investing
company which it presently procures locally as well a
from abroad through import.

Period of Investment:

The investment would be made in piecemeal as and when

needed till the completion of project.

Sources of fund to be utilized for
investment and where the investment
1s intended to be made using
borrowed funds:

(1) Justification for investment

through borrowings:

(i) Detail of  collateral,
guarantees provided and
assets pledged
obtamning such funds: and

for

(146)

Cost benefit analysis:

From Surplus funds of the Company

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Salient features of the agreement(s), if
any, with associated company or
associated undertaking with regards to
the proposed investment;

Not Applicable

Direct or indirect interest of directors,
sponsors, majority shareholders and
their relatives, if any, in the associated
company of associated undertaking or
the transaction under consideration.

Ms. Muhammad M. Ismail, Mr. Magsood Ismail Ahmed, M

Munsarim Saifullah, Mr. Hamid Magsood Ismail, and M.
Ahmed Muhammad, are the Directors of Ismail Industries
Limited (the investing company), they are also Directors of
Ismail Resin (Private) Limited. Whereas, the investing
company is the major shareholder i Ismail Resin (Private)
Limited, However, they have no direct or indirect interes
except to the extent of their shareholding in the Ismail Resin

(Private) Limited.
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In case any mvestment in associated
company or associated undertaking
been made, the
of  such
complete
for any

has  already

review

mncluding

performance
investment

information/justification
impairment or write offs:

Ismail Industries Limited have made an equity investment of
Rs. 1,125,000,000/- (Rupees: One billion one hundred twenty-
five million only) for acquisition of land and construction of
building and issued Cross Corporate Guarantee of Rs.
3,500,000,000/- Rupees: (Three billion five hundred million
only) for facilitating the subsidiary company to securitize its
lender for tinancing extended to them for setting-up the
project.

There are no impairment and wiite off relating to the
investment made so far.

(vid)

Any other important details necessary
for the members to understand the
transaction.

Not significant

Additional information for equity investment:

Maximum price at which securities will
be acquired.

At face value of Rs. 10/- per share

In case the purchase price 1s higher
than is market value in case of listed
securities and fair value in case of
unlisted securities, justitication thereot;

Not Applicable

Maximum number of securities to be
acquired.

100,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Number of securities and percentage
thereof held before and after the
proposed investment.

Ismail Resin (Private) Limited issued shares in September 10,
2021. The Company holds 112,500,000 ordinary shares
constituting 75%, and after the proposed investment
Company will maintain the same ratio of the paid-up share
capital of Ismail Resin (Private) Limited.

Current and preceding twelve weeks
weighted average market price where
investment is proposed to be made in
listed securities;

Not Applicable

Fair value determined in terms of sub-
regulation (1) of regulation 5 for
investments in unlisted securities;

The fair value of equity has been worked out at Rs. 19.21/-
per share, as determined by the M/s. Munaf Yusuf & Co.,

Chartered Accountants. The valuation has been carried out

using discounted cash flow method. The undeslying 5 years
projections were prepared by the management.

Information under Rule 4(1) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated

Undertakings) Regulations, 2017

As mentioned above and as per the disclosure requirement of Regulation 4(1) of the Companies (Investment in
Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017, it 1s mnformed that the following Directors

of the Company are also the Directors of Investee companies.
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Ismail Resin (Private) Limited

Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited

Mr. Munsarim Saifullah

Mr. Munsarim Saifullah

Mr. Hamid Magsood Ismail

Mr. Hamid Magsood Ismail

Mr. Ahmed Muhammad

Mr. Ahmed Muhammad

Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail

Mr. Magsood Ismail Ahmed

Statement Under Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated

Undertakings) Regulations, 2017

Name of the Investee Company

Ismail Resin (Private) Limited

Total Amount approved

Rs. 1,500,000,000 (Rupees: One billion five
hundred million only) as equity investment
and Rs. 4,700,000,000/- (Rupees: Four
billion seven hundred million only) as Cross
Corporate Guarantee in favor of Ismail
Resin (Private) Limited lenders for the
project financing extended to them was duly

approved by members in Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on April 12, 2021.

Amount of investment made to date

Equity Investment Rs. 1,125,000,000/-
Guarantee Issued Rs. 3,500,000,000/-

Reason for deviations from the approved
timeline of investment, where investment
decision was to be implemented in specified
time.

Investment in the Ismail Resin (Private)
Limited shall be valid till the completion of
the project.

Material change in financial statements of

associated company or associated

undertaking since date of the resolution
passed for approval of investment.

There is no material change in financial
statements of Ismail Resin (Private) Limited.

Name of the Investee Company

Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited

Total Amount approved

Rs. 600,000,000 (Rupees: Six hundred
million only) as Cross Corporate Guarantee
in favor of Hudson Pharma (Private)
Limited lenders for securitization the project
expansion financing extended to them was
duly approved by members in Extra
Ordinary General Meeting held on April 12,
2021.
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Amount of investment made to date

Guarantee Issued Rs. 578,811,644 /-

Reason for deviations from the approved
timeline of investment, where investment

decision was to be implemented in specified

time.

Guarantee shall be valid till the completion

of expansion project.

Material change in financial statements of

associated company or associated
undertaking since date of the resolution

passed for approval of investment.

There is no material change in financial
statements of Hudson Pharma (Private)
Limited.
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

ASSETS EMPLOYED
Operating fixed assets
Capital work - in - progress
Intangible assets

Long term investment
Long term deposits

Net current assets / (liabilities)

2021 2020 2019

12121
638
86
3,212
44

97

42
3,560
39
133

9221
1,175
3,926
33
725

Total Assets Employed

14,687

15,080

FINANCED BY

Shareholders equity

Long term financing

Deferred liabilities

7,220
6,037
1,430

6,272
7,595
1213

14,687

15,080

SALES & PROFITS

Net Sales / Turnover
Gross Profit

Profit before Taxation
Profit after Taxation
Proposed Dividend (%age)

Un - appropriated Profit

37,308 33218
7,194 6,878
2,213 1,323
1,777 932

150.00 35.00

10,611 9,236

23,906
5,361
1,838
1,412
27.50
6,582

19,605
3,721
1,643
1,166
65.00
5,634
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FINANCIAL RATIOS

GP to Sales (Yoage)

EBIT to Sales (%oage)

PAT to Sales (%oage)
Earnings per share (Rs.)
Break up value (Rs.)

Market Value per share (Rs.)
Return on equity (%oage)
Dividend per share (Rs.)
Dividend payout (%eage)
Price to earning ratio (Times)
Dividend Yield Ratio (%age)
Dividend Cover Ratio (Times)
Current ratio (Times)

Quick / Acid test ratio (Times)

Earnings per Share (in rupees) Return on Equity (in %age)
30.00 r 25.00% r

5 19.56%
2500 20.00%

20.00 18.59% 15.76%
15.00% 16.70% 13.11%

15.00
10.00%
10.00

5.00 5.00%

0.00%
2017 2017 2018 2019 2020

Price to Earning Ratio GP & PAT to Sales (%age)

30,00 r 25.00%
22.43%

21.12% 20.70%
25.00 20.00% 19.28%
18.98%

18.28%
20.00 15.00%

15.00 | 10.00%

- 5.91%
0.00 » 4.76%
5.00% . 3.21% =
T———

5.00 )
0.00% - . -

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 —B—GP %age —#— PAT %age
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SUMMARY OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT
SIX YEARS

(Rs. in million)

Cash generated from operations 2,432 2,619 2,241 2933 1,957
(Increase) / decrease in current assests e

Gratuity paid (69) (20) (20) 4 (19)
Income tax paid-net (178) 5 (340) (344) (375) (214)
Long term deposits - net 10 5 (6) 23 (2)

Net cash generated from operating activities 2,195 1,722

Capital expenditure (including CWIP) (3,355) (1,598)
Intangible assets (10) -
Long term investment - advances to subsidiary -

Investment in associated undertakings (492)

Proceed from dissolution of associated company 188

Proceed from sale of long term investment -

Purchase of investment - at fair value through profit or loss -

Sale of investment - at fair value through profit or loss - -

Dividend received 629 122

Short-term investment (124) (200)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 585 58

Net cash used in investing activities (2,579) (8,787) (1,934)

Receipts / (repayment) from long term financing-net 2,014 6,433 1,320
Sponsor's loan - 17 =
(Lease repayments) / lease repayments net off sale and lease back (106) (68) 122
Interest / mark-up paid (727) (1,166) (866)
Dividend paid (199) (223) (303)

Payment against purchase of shares &)

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 982 4,993 264

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 598 1,604 52
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (1,664) (3,268)
Transfer from APL = =
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (1,066) (1,664)
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SUMMARY OF PROFIT OR LLOSS
SIX YEARS

[ Rs %] %
Profit or Loss Account

Sales - gross 44,949 40,807 37,011
Sales - net 37,308 100.00% 33218 100.00% 30,091 100.00% 100.00% 19,605 100.00% 17,008 100.00%
Cost of Sales (30,114) -80.72% (26340)  -79.30% (@3737)  -78.88% (18545  -7757% (15884) -81.02% (13899) -81.72%

Gross profit 7.194 19.28% 6,878 20.70% 6,354 21.12% 5,361 2243% 3721 18.98% 3,109 18.28%
Selling & Distribution expenses (4,236) -11.35% (4469)  -1345% (3590)  -1193% (2896) -12.12% (1,663)  -BA8% (1367 8.04%
Administrative expenses (652) 1.75% (94 -179% (541)  -180% (381)  -159% (260)  -133% (191 -113%
Other operating expenses (@394) -106% (181)  055% 72 057% @54)  1.06% 147 075% (132  0T7%
Other n[x:rnlin.g income 393 1.05% 353 1.06% 213 071% 232 0.97% 195 1.00% 166 0.98%
Share of profit from associated company 601 1.61% 492 148% 45 0.15% 393 1.64% 468 2.39% 506 2.98%

Profit from operation 7.79% T 46% 2,309 T67% 10.27% 2314 1181% 1229%
Finance cost -1.86% -3.48% (905) -3.01% -2.58% (671) -3.42% -4.69%

Profit / (loss) before taxation 5.93% 3.98% 1,404 466% 7.69% 1643 838% 7.60%
Taxation -117% -118% (437)  -145% -178% @) 245% -171%

Profit/ (loss) after taxation 4.76% 281% 967 321% 591% 1,166 5.95% 5.89%

Balance Sheet

Total equity 27.51% 26.39% 27.35% 7220 31.29% 28.20% 29.12%
Total non-current liabilities 37.09% 4179% 32.72% 7467 32.36% 3961% 30.08%
Total current liabilities 35.41% 31.82% 39.93% 8,385 36.34% 3219% 40.81%

Total equity and liabilities 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 23,072 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Total non-current assets 63.96% 66.50% 59.71% 14,554 63.08% 64.55% 59.73%
Total current assets 36.04% 33.50% 40.29% 8,518 36.92% 3545% 40.27%

Toal assets 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 23,072 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

GROSS SALES (IN MILLION) NET PROFIT (IN MILLION)

Amount (In Million)
Amount {In Million)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2016 2017 2018 2019

Years Years

Segment Wise Net Sales (In million)
35000

30,000
25,000
20,000

15,000

2018 2019

—8—Food Sales —#— Plastic Sales

Local and Export Sales (In million)

35,000

25,000

15,000
10,000

5,000

1315

-

L i
2018
—&— Local Sales L]




Financial Position 2021

B Total Asset M Total Liabilities

Profit or Loss Account 2021

Profit or Loss Account 2020

Total Equity

ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Financial Position 2020

M Total Asset

M Total Liabilities

{ 1.79%

0.55%

{-1.06%

| 3.48%

1.48%)
1.18%

2.81%

Total Equity

B Cost of Sale

W Selling & Distribution expense
W Administration expense

B Other operating expense

M Other operating income

M Share of profit from associate
M Finance cost

B Taxation

M Profit after taxation

B Cost of Sale

W Sclling & Distnbution expense
M Administration expense

M Other operating expense

B Other operating income

M Share of profit from associate
B Finance cost

B Taxation

M Profit after taxation
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DUPONT ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Net Profit
Rs. 1,777

Operating
ETG
476 %

Net Sales
Rs. 37,308

Return on
Assets
433 %

Net Sales
Rs. 37,308

Asset
Turnover
0.91 Times

Total
Assets
Rs. 40,990

Return on

Equity
15.76 %

Owner's

Equity
Rs. 11,275

Total
Liabilities
Rs. 29,715

Ownership
Ratio
21.51 %

Total
Liabilities
Rs. 29,715

Total Assets
40,990

Owner's
Equity
Rs. 11,275
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

It gives me pleasure to present review report to the
shareholders on the Annual Report of Ismail
Industries Limited for the year ended June 30, 2021
and overall performance and effectiveness of the
Board of Directors 1n achieving the objectives of the

Company.
BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Duning the year under review, the Company had to
face continued serious challenges of COVID-19,
consequential lockdowns and slowdowns of
economic activity. I am glad that the Board of
Directors and senior management successtully faced
these challenges allowing only mimimum adverse
impact on operations of the Company. Even though
the country's economic and business climate was
difficult, the Company has delivered consistent
healthy results and held its position as market leader
i its different business ventures. The Company's
net revenue grew by 12% and operating profit by
27%. The focus of the Board of Directors and senior
management remains on sound business plans and
delivery of quality products for the success of the
Company. The Company continuously strves to
enhance 1ts production capacities both 1n food and
plastic segments for maximum market penetration
and growing demand of its products.

BOARD’S PERFORMANCE

Pursuant to requrements of Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019,
mechanism has been put in place for annual
evaluation of the Board of Directors of the
Company. The main objective of this exercise 1s to
evaluate the performance of the Board and its
committees to facilitate the management and play an
effective role for the success of the Company. The
above overall assessment 1s based on an evaluation
of integral components including vision, mussion,
and values engagement in strategic planning,
formulation of policies, monitoring organization
business activities, monitor financial

resource management, effective physical oversight,
equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in
carrying out the Board’s responsibility. The Board’s
overall performance benchmarked and effectiveness
crteria set for the financial year 2021, remaimned
satisfactory.

BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

The Company’s Board having seven Directors
including two Independent Directors. These Board
members having very vast and rich experience in the
fields of business, tinance, mformation technology
and regulations. The Board shall continue to play its
leading role 1n setting-up the business course of the
Company, promoting its success and performance
and guiding the senior management to conduct the
operations etficiently and diligently in accordance
with the Board’s approved strategies while
upholding the prnciples of good corporate
governance. The Board has constituted two
committees, the Audit Committee and Human
Resource & Remuneration Committee, that
comprises of suitably qualified persons having
relevant experience and competencies.  These
Commnuttees perform their functions in line with the
Terms of Reference assigned to the respective

Commuttee.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Goimg forward, the Company’s focus will be
continued on delivering the exceptional results with
the endeavor to create long term values for
shareholders. I would like to express my
appreciation for the contribution of the Board,
excellent etforts put i by the semior management
and employees as well as support recerved from the

valued customers, suppliers, banks and shareholders.

Muhammad M. Ismail

Chairman

Karachit: September 17, 2021




ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021 C@

It FL P 2 Bt 1 50 A e & kb & 3 26
-yt

Y
uL"?,J/ZJ_LL/Jf}ét:djgla,cd?iéé_ulubﬁd/u@gu‘iz”-luid.ﬁ/ AL
P i IR BBt P AL B S il B B e o e

—unt S B F e Ll il

2021, 1741




ﬁ ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
AN

TR
._5T)”J}{u:J)“"LMLE’»LJ’-’JAQOZluﬁ30&AﬁL14¢J{.’J;UVJﬁ$J}, S
—Unt e NP1 S TS A S SR EA S 15
19 4
S 6B L S S S ol IINAE L coviD19 AL JTH i
ZJ wKf'*-’wju&_}wa.{wﬁu&ﬂ,,u}?;uu T Sunt) e rend iy Ji-1y
J’V Lﬁ/dg‘ffffl};%uid;gumaﬁf‘f,gﬁ—z_ﬁg/gl}‘lg"ﬂytf%ﬂ»(&gﬁ{u’:i
L3P SFE L IE e e 2 S5 L LIV B SNKEAN L A J i
def:‘,-u.‘f/ﬂf Pelos®Slanm g sSSP LSS F L Fatly 5Lo0si12
ol KA S b S rig Lo ozt G AL I UL By i L
I 2 b S o f sl 5

AL,

L2 LSS MO Tin L 3L UL 2019 ftfj(u‘}fag;{_ﬁfﬁ)kﬁ@
& J‘-f:;!é_ I S b 6 ;ﬂ:’g SIS Ut S BB 6l 6T - 22208
Justl S Sy e BB 21 o1 P BA-L G It Q¥
UL AL s B3I o QAL Sl QUL A U St K S ot S
S 3 2 SSRGS B L UL e S oo S A 1S
ALY,

Pl GRS e Nl 2y & st I Trs P I e e 3 & 5
LR eSS S S L FERL it Sl e Bt
S3 e $BP o S AN 21 F 2L b or BN L e B i S
FEHE S fladUial g ST Sa-be S A }iju.t;,rg@wiux?@ﬁu})ﬁ?




DIRECTOR’S REVIEW REPORT

The Board of Directors takes pleasure in presenting
the annual report on performance of the Company
together with the audited financial statements (both

stand-alone & consolidated) for the year ended June

30, 2021.
ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The economic activittes durng the year were
adversely impacted by COVID-19 pandemic.
Pakistan has shown great resilience and was
fortunate enough to successtully elude severe effects
of the pandemic as opposed to pressures being felt
by the global economy. Prmary factors that
contributed towards this recovery were an
accommodative monetary policy, introduction of
refinancng facilities, targeted fiscal support, and
other financial initiatives.

Despite the broader macro-economic challenges and
higher inflationary environment, the management
remains  focused on meeting the consumer
expectations by offering quality and value-added
products and managing cost pressure through value
chain optimization initiatives and tighter controls on
overhead.

The Board has closely monitored the performance of
the busimess 1n line with economic challenges with a
focus to achieve continuous improvement in
productivity and etficiency while optimizing cost and
processes to ensure sustaned growth of the

Company.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

The Company maintamned its strong presence 1in
confectionary, biscuits and plastic films industries
and registered a topline sales of around Rs. 45 billion.
We can sustain our growth momentum and
progression in revenue owing to tmely capacity
enhancements, aggressive marketing campaigns and
mntroduction of new products. The snapshot of what

we have accomplished over the last year:
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Description 30-Jun-21 | 30-Jun-20
¢ PKR ln Million

44,949 © 40,807 |

] Gross Sales

Operatmg Proflt
Profit after tax : : ;
EPS in Rupees .

Net revenue of the Company grew by 12% and
operating profit by 27% on the back of volume
gains, selling price adjustments and product mix
changes across all categories. Product margins
remained under pressure due to nsing raw and
packing material and basic utilities prices.

Impressive  topline growth, optimization of
resources utilization, effective planning of selling and

distribution activities, efficient cost

11,777

W Sale BGP ENP

control, reduction 1n finance cost and amazing share
of profit from associates contributed to achieve an
astounding growth in bottom line.

The Company mamtains a strong financial profile,
through efficient working capital management and
strengthening innovation / renovation, portfolio
management, derving visibility and avaiability,
working effectively with customers and distributors
for adequate coverages.

The Company realizes the importance of investing in
advertising and promotion of its key brands and new
launches and plans to continue these crucial mputs
for strong branding equities and business growth in
future.
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SEGMENT REVIEW

Gross Turnover

A

BMlood M Plastic

The Company has been successtul in reviewing the
market changes and consumer demand and deliver
their services accordingly. To keep up with tlus
continuous transformation, we have been able to
anticipate new trends in the market and invest in
such a way that has allowed us to understand which
products will succeed and which need further
improvements. Segment wise analysis are given
below:

FOOD SEGMENT OPERATIONS

35,433
32,835

2021 2020
Our confectionary, biscuits, snacks and nutrition
divisions of the food segment offers wide range of
products, which includes jellies, marshmallows,
candies, chews, chocolates, cookies, cakes, wafers
and nutritional food supplements. The best-selling
patents that fall under thus segment are Candyland,

Bisconmi, Snackeity and Ismail Nutnition.

CandyLand

Setting its first foot in 1988, CandyLand 1s the
leading confectionary manufacturing player in
Palkustan since last many decades. Not only it is the
largest division of the food segment, but it 1s also
continuously innovating, creating and redesigning
products according to the needs of its valuable
customers.

CandyLand offers rich products under various
categories, such as jellies, chocolates, marshmallows,
candies, toffees, chews, lolipops, gums, mulk
chocolates, spreads, buittles, and trutfles. While
striving to ensure to meet its long-term growth
strategy with the help of a lughly qualified team,
CandyLand has been able to expand its existing
market share.

It holds the title of torch bearer of the industry
through constantly mnovating and launching new
products and expanding our state-of-the-art facilities
with  latest
methodology. In the year under review, it has

technologies and  production
focused on strengthening the sales and distribution
structure, channel management and ROI based
marketing, to further achieve customer satisfaction.

Bisconni

Pertecting the art of baking since past 18 years,
Bisconni has always succeeded in providing
scrumptious cookies, wafers, and biscuits, despite
the competition 1t faces, which match the taste buds
of the consumers. Consumers have not been only
loyal to Bisconni, but also love it and have made it a
part of their lives.

In December 2020, Bisconni became the first
Pakistani company to bring about a musical
plattorm, “Bisconm Music”, which comes with the
tagline of “The New Wave” and showcases the
essence of promoting fresh music and talented
artists.




Renowned brands, which includes Cocomo,
Chocolatto, Chocolate Chip, Rite, Novita, Chaitwala
Biskut, Craving and Flo Cake have a large
distribution nationwide. Bisconni continues to create
a powertul image by mnovating and introducing new
value added products, aiming to reach greater

heights.
SnackCity

Customer satisfaction has always been a priority,
which 1s why the Company has invested in the
wortld’s best machinery, employed the best food
technicians and experts, and adopted the best
practices to ensure that the consumers taste the

goodness of SnackCity products in each bute.

Since 1ts inception, SnackCity’s Kurleez has grown to
become the market leader in the crinkle chips
category. The Company has successfully ventured
mto other categories as well. Chillz, our brand of
potato sticks, has also grown to become the market
leader in its category, while Nimko 1s included 1n

Peanuts category.
Ismail Nutrition

The Nutritton Division of the Company has been
approved as the hiqud nutntional food supplement
supplier for the World Food Program of the United
Nations smce 2010. The Company contimues to
produce food that fight malnutrition through the
provision of precise nutrition required for the
development of child. These food supplements are
ready-to-use and are seeing continuous, strong
growth both 1 export and local markets as well. The
Nutrnition Division of the Company 1s the only
Pakistani Company which 1s in the approved

UNICEF suppliers list.

To meet the needs of these prestigious social
agencies, manufacturing facilities of producing food
supplements are expanding continuously. The

Company shows steady dedication to quality and
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efficiency to satisfy the customers' needs. Presently,
the Company 1s extending the Nutrition
manufacturing facility for producing new product
‘Super Cereal’ for these mstitutions to counter
malnutrition 1n countries where people are suffering
from acute malnutrition. Super Cereal 1s intended for
children older than 5 years of age and adults. Most of
this product 1s used in Africa and in some parts of
Asia. The annual production capacity of this product

would be around 25,000 tons per annum.
PLASTIC SEGMENT OPERATIONS

Company’s plastic films segment 1s the largest
manufacturer of BOPET and CPP Packaging Films
mn Pakistan and an industry leader being the home of
complete one window solution for Packaging &
Prnting Industries.

9,516

2021 2020

The Company has made best efforts during the year
under review to get back on track, as the pandemic
did not allow to achieve the targeted sales revenue on
commencement of commercial operations of its new

BOPET Film Plant.
succeeded 1n posting a revenue growth of 19% with

However, the Company

concentrated efforts are being made on R&D and
timely decision of the management to expand the
local market share and export its products to USA,
Europe, Middle East, South East Asia and the

African markets.
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EXPORT MARKET

Duining the year under review, the Company’s overall
export business have shown using trend, which 1s
contributing 15% in gross sales as compared to 11%
1 corresponding year. With the untiring efforts of
management, market segmentation, niche marketing,
diversitied product portfolio and aim to strengthen
and expand the global foothold. This year, export
sales have shown a tremendous growth of 48% over
the last year amounting to Rs. 6.7 billion mainly
owing to substantial contribution of Nutrition

Division.

Our most precious asset is the trust of domestic
customers on us, and we aim to replicate the same in
global market. Our primary source ot motivation and
most deriving factor is our vision to represent the
beloved Pakistan around the globe through our
diversitied set of products.

GROSS SALE

W Local

2021 2020

HUDSON PHARMA (PVT) LTD -
SUBSIDIARY

One more successtul year for Hudson Pharma of
tollowing and living up to its vision to identify sate
and efficacious treatments that address patient's
unmet needs across the globe. This execution of its
goal has translated into the topline growth of 5%
year on year and closed the financial year ending June
30, 2021 at net sales Rs. 217 million in value terms.
Besides increase in revenue, the Company is

prosperous in lowering its cost of production, selling
and distribution through relentless efforts of the
management, aggressive penetration, innovation,

and diversification 1n product mix.

Hudson Pharma has started working with the Global
Alliance for Improved Nutnition (GAIN) to
establish Pakistan’s first vitamins & minerals premix
facility. Plant and machineries with modern
technologies are procured all the way from Europe
to meet high-quality standards. This manufacturing
plant having annual capacity of producing 2,000
tons. Aiding the distribution that would allow
nutritious food producers to purchase and procure
vitamin and minerals premix directly from them in
the quantities needed. Currently, all premix
requirements are imported, and this mmtiative waill
result in import substitution providing good savings
in terms of the dollar spend. Currently, there 1s no
formal supply chain process or facility for large
quantities of premix in Pakistan.

Furthermore, Hudson Pharma has planned to install
new manufacturing lines for steroidal inhalation and
oral capsules, dermatology, and other healthcare
products 1n the future ahead.

The Board of Director of the Company has
approved 1n its meeting held on September 17, 2021
turther equity investment of Rs. 800 million in
Hudson Pharma to meet its capital expenditures
requirement of expansion planned for setting up of
Vitamins & Minerals Premix facility as well as for
operational expenses / working capital requirements,
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

ISMAIL RESIN (PVT) LTD — SUBSIDIARY

Ismail Resin (Prwvate) Limited 1s a subsidiary
company of Ismail Industries Limited. It was
incorporated 1 Karachi, Pakistan on January 13,
2021, with the intention of setting-up a 108,000 tons
per annum Polyester Resmn (PET Resin)
Manufacturing Plant at Port Qasim Authority
Karachi, at an estimated cost of Rs. 4.70 billion




i proportion of 75% debt and 25% equty. The
project will be commercially operational by

September 2022.

Polyethylene terephthalate (PET) 1s the most
common thermoplastic polymer resin of the
polyester family. PET Resin is a basic raw material of
BOPET Fim and presently Ismail Industres is
procuring this matenal for its two manufacturing
plants from abroad through imports as well as from
local producers, which 1s 50% of the total mstalled
capacity of Ismail Resmn. Now, PET Resin will be
available for Ismail Industries at its doorstep.

Ismail Industries having shareholders’ approval for
equity investment of Rs. 1,500 muillion which 1s 75%
of Ismail Resin’s paid-up capital. Additionally, the
Board of Director of the Company has approved in
its meeting held on September 17, 2021 further
equity investment of Rs. 1,000 million in Ismail
Resin to meet the estimated cost over-run arises in
which one of the reasons 1s massive devaluation of
PKR, subject to the approval of the shareholders in
the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

NOVELTY ENTERPRISES (PVT) LTD -
ASSOCIATE

During the year Novelty Enterprises has paid out full
dividend and remaining equity 1s distributed among
shareholders with respect to their shareholding.
Novelty Enterprises has no intention to continue the
business, therefore have filed an application with

SECP for winding-up of the Company.
BANK OF KHYBER - ASSOCIATE

The investment in Bank of Khyber proves to be an
mtelligent decision of diversification since 1t made.
BOKs investment again recorded a healthy return of
Rs.380 muillion in current year and added value to the
Company’s overall profitability. The Bank of Khyber
has declared cash dividend @ 15% and bonus shares
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@ 5% for the year ended December 31, 2020.

CORPORATE BRIEFING SESSION

The Company held its annual Corporate Briefing
Session (CBS) on November 18, 2020 at Ramada
Karachi Creek. Transmuting this interaction into
prme opportunity, the Company appuses the
existing and potential investors / stakeholders about
the business environment and economic indicators
of the country, explain its financial performance,
competitive environment in which the Company
operates, mvestment decisions, challenges faced as
well as business outlook. Participants were informed
about the upcoming projects and products of the
Company and presented its goal for sustainable

operations, future expansions, and diversifications.
CREDIT RATING

The Company has successfully mamntained the credit
rating ‘A’ 1in Long Term and ‘A-17 in Short Term,
reviewed by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency
during the year under review. Outlook assigned to
the rating 1s “Stable” which implies low credit risk
based on the Company’s ability to meet its financial

commitments in a imely manner.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has record of its strong commitment
for the improvement of society and the communities
m which it operates. The Company significantly
mcreased its contribution as a result of higher
profitability. The primary focus of Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) initiatives of the Company
remains i1 education, women empowerment, sports,

health, environment, and community development.

The Company 1s engaged in various health-oriented
activities, including Blood Donation Drve 1n
co-ordination with various hospitals and NGOs. It
also held a tree plantation activity in collaboration
with various social bodies, Go Green Society as part

of its dove to plant trees across Pakistan.
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The Company has also taken it upon 1itselt to
mmprove the living conditions of people 1n
underprivileged area and installed Water Filtration
Plants and RO (Reverse Osmosis) Plants.

The Company evolve the “Child Education
Program” and on continuous basis sponsoring
“Ismail Academy (School)” and “Khadya Giils
College” 1n Korangi.

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAME WORK

The Board's primary responsibility i1s to maintam the
sound internal control system and control
environment within the Company in order to ensure
that the Company's operations are conducted
etfectively and etficiently, compliance with internal
and external rules, laws, and regulations, asset
protection, and reliable and transparent financial and
management reporting.

As a result, the Company has established a
well-orgamized internal control framework that
mcludes well-detined policies and procedures,
authority limuts,

accountability, and review processes.

transparent structures,

Through the Audit Committee, the Board evaluates
the etfectiveness of internal control. The
management, mternal audit, and external auditors
submut their reports on the system of internal control
and nisk management arrangements to the Audit
Comumuittee, which makes necessary
recommendations to the Board regarding further
strengthening the framework and assure that
well-structured internal control system 1s m place
which guarantees that the Company's tfinancial
intormation, operational etficiency, and
etfectiveness are reliable, and that regulatory
requirements, transparency, and sincerity maintained
tor all stakeholders.

INTERNAL AUDIT

In accordance with our internal control framework
and commitment to the prnciple of mtegnty and

transparency, we established an independent Internal
Audit tunction that provides timely reporting to the
Audit Commuttee. Internal Audit conducts its
activities throughout the year in accordance with
approved audit program and makes
recommendations for improving the Company's

existing mternal controls and operations.

Internal audit :dentifies areas to improve the control
environment within the organization and helps the
business to make changes in operations and
processes.

Internal audit may cover all areas of organization or
specialize, depending on their skill-sets but the basic
aim of it 1s to identify weaknesses within the
organization processes and control environment so
that these can be addressed as quickly as possible to
prevent harm to the organization or its stakeholders.
Internal audit plan for an orgamzation should be
duven on risk basis or, be designed to examine those
areas that having high nsk to the Company. The
mternal audit plan should also include a component
of the strategic needs of the organization.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is important at all levels of the
Company from the tfunctional, business, and
corporate perspectives, means to provide a
three-dimensional view of nsk. The Board of
Directors, Board Audit Commuittee and Steering
Comnuttee comprising ot senior management team
are responsible for oversight of Company’s
operations and to evolve proactive strategies to
mitigate any potential adverse impact of major risks
and must ensure that internal control procedures are
employed to control risks.

Each functional area has its own set of departmental
key risks to be identified, assessed, and prioritized.
These risks are resolved by means of SOPs upgrades
and process restructuring and redesign. The task of
risk management 1s to find and address the tull range
of risks for a Company, especially those that could
lead to failure, while also reducing the uncertamty
surrounding its overall business performance.




Enterprise Rusk

implementation 1 the Company has offered a

Management Process

structured, disciplined, and reliable approach that
has improved decision making m the entire
organization by integrating risk assessment.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our Company’s governance structure detfines the
culture, behavior and conduct of the organization,
which focuses to facilitate etfective, entrepreneurial,
and prudent management that can deliver the
continued success in long-term.  Punciple of
mtegrity and accountability are core values behind
this governance structure that allows the Board to
lead the Company 1n right direction. We ensure that
the Company complies with all statutory and
regulatory requirements, along with the Code of
Conduct and Control Framework.

GENDER DIVERSITY

The Company ensures that gender diversity is
present across all functions including the

composition of the Board to create a culture that 1s

I
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not gender biased. Female employees are part of our
organization’s workforce who have been performing
a vartety of challenging roles across many function of

operations.

As part of our mnclusive business agenda, we are also
drving recruitment efforts for differently abled
mdividuals 1 the orgamzation. We continue to
provide equal opportunities to all our employees in
terms of working conditions, salaties, and benefits
(etc.).

OUR PEOPLE ARE OUR ASSETS

Our people are most vital asset of the Company. The
vision of human resources has been determined
based on the core value defined by the Company’s
Management. The Company continues its etforts on
development of personnel at all levels, proactively
building capabilities and retamming talents for
business sustainability and continuity.

Company believes that effective utilization of
competitive human resources is the most important
factor in ever-changing business environment and to
achieve sustainable growth. Employee’s engagement
has been managed with robust policies and
procedures. The Company has formulated
succession plan, which includes performance
evaluation and appropuate training requirements for
development of potential future leaders.
Considering the same, Company 1s contimnuously
mvesting 1 the grooming of employees by way of

various in house / out sourced training sessions.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Information technology (IT) is integral to every
mdustry, enabling companies to cut costs, increase
revenue, and stay competitive in the market. The
Company using IT to help for resource optimization,
rnisk management, and benefits realization, and all
these are essential aspects of enterprise governance.
We have focused on the efficient use of IT for
long-term and short-term goals of the Company.
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Investing in IT infrastructure and improving it aims
to make it easier to deliver value, minimize risk, and
save resources, as well as improve mnformation
cascadmg throughout the orgamzation. The
Company uses various platforms to streamline
process and enhance reporting, including business
mtelligence tools for dashboards. The benefits of IT
framework 1nclude: an efficient and etfective
decision-making process, timely regulatory and legal
compliance, sold internal controls, and a strong
governance system.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

All transactions with related parties during the year
were carried out at arm’s length and were placed
before the Board Audit Committee and the Board,
for review and approval. These transactions were
made and disclosed in complance with Code of
Corporate Governance.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of;

Total Number of Directors

Male 6

Female 1

Categories Name

CEO Mz. Munsarim Saifullah

Mzt. Ahmed Muhammad
Mit. Muhammad Zubair

Motrwala

Executive

Independent

Ms. Tasneem Yusuf

Mz, Muhammad M. Ismail
Mz. Magsood Ismail

Mz. Hanud Magsood Ismail

Non-Executive

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD & ATTENDANCE

Duning the year, there was no change among the
Board Members whose names are given here under
along with the number of meetings they have
attended,;

Meetings
Attended

Name of Directors

Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail*® 7/8

Mr. Magsood Ismail Ahmed* 7/8

Mr. Munsarim Saifullah 8/8

Mr. Hanud Magsood Ismail 8/8

Mr. Ahmed Muhammad 8/8

Mr. Muhammad Zubair
Motrwala*® 6/8

Ms. Tasneem Yusuf* 6/8

* Leave of absences were granted to those Directors
who could not attend some of the Board Meetings.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Board Audit Committee

Ms. Tasneem Yusuf
Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail
Mzi. Magsood Ismail

Chairperson
Member
Member

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Board Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee

Mr. Muhammad  Zubair | Chairman
Motiwala

Mzi. Magsood Ismail

Mz. Hamid Magsood Ismail

Member
Member

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Detail of remuneration and other benefits are
disclosed 1n the note 36 to the financial statements.
These remunerations are duly approved by the
Board of Directors. The remuneration of the
Directors is based on prevailing industry trend and
are 1n accordance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulation 2019. It 1s
ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his

own remuneration. Non-Executive Directors are not




pad any remuneration in accordance with the
remuneration policy ot the Company.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

A statement showing the pattern of shareholding as
at June 30, 2021, required under Section 227 (2) () of
the Compamnies Act, 2017 1s annexed to thus report.

COMPLIANCE WITH COROPORATE AND
FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Company complies with financial reporting and
corporate governance framework under the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations 2019 and the Compamies Act, 2017. It

states:

* The financial statements prepared by the
management of the Company are presented,
according to the result of its operations, cash flows
and changes 1n equty;

* Proper books of account of the Company have
been maintained;

* Consistent accounting policies following IFRS are
applied 1 preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment;

* The system of internal control 1s efficient and has
been eftectively implemented and momnitored;

* There are no doubts with Company continuing on
the principle of going concern;

* There has been no material departure from the
best practices of corporate governance.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Earnings Per Share (EPS) for the year ended
June 30, 2021 i1s Rs. 2677 compared to
corresponding year of Rs. 14.49. The growth in EPS
demonstrates our ability to maximize the value for
our shareholders.

DIVIDEND

The Company remains committed to increasing its

shareholders wealth and keeping in view of the

£\
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results, the Board of Directors are pleased to
propose a cash dividend @ 150% (Rs. 15/- per
share) tor the year ended June 30, 2021 which will be
paid to the shareholders whose names appear on the
shareholders register at the start of “Closed Period’

for the Annual General Meeting.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Company’s present auditor’s M/s. Grant Thornton

Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants retired and
being eligible, have offered themselves for
reappowmtment. The audit Committee of the
Company has suggested, and the Board has
approved and recommended their reappointment to
the shareholders as auditors of the Company for the

year ending on June 30, 2022.
FUTURE OUTLOOK

Uncertainty around the COVID-19 situation
continues as Pakistan 1s now expertencing its fourth
wave. Economies around the world are bufteted by
economic headwinds from multiple quarters,
pressure on weak health systems, loss ot trade and
tourism, dwindling remuttances, subdued capital
flows, supply demand distuption, and tight financial
conditions amid mounting debt. Recovery has
started as businesses and communities have adapted
the new ways of living and conducting business, but

the challenges are far trom over.

The Company has optimustic and aggressive view on
its growth prospects. We are commnutted to create
value through investments, innovations, and
operation efficiency enrichment. We will continue to
tollow a tocused approach to aggressively grow the
business by duving volumes and reaping the benefits
of economues of scale. The management 1s hopetful
to counter the economic and competitive challenges
and continue the success line with all the new zeal
and ever-growing motivation in the years ahead.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board expresses its gratitude to management,

statf and workers of the Company for their untiring
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efforts in achieving the Company’s objectives. The
results of the Company reflect the unrelenting
commitment and contribution of its people, and the
trust placed on the Company by its customers,

suppliers, service providers and shareholders.

Munsarim Saifullah Magsood Ismail
Chief Executive Officer Director

Karachit: September 17, 2021
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

\

Name of Company: Ismail Industries Limited (the “Company”)
Year ended: June 30, 2021

The company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)

Regulations, 2019 1n the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:
a. Male: 6
b. Female: 1

The composition of the Board 1s as follows:
Category Names

Independent Directors Mr. Muhammad Zubair Motrwala

Ms. Tasneem Yusuf

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail
Mr. Magsood Ismail Ahmed
Mr. Hamid Magsood Ismail

Executive Directors Mr. Munsarim Saifullah
Mr. Ahmed Muhammad

Female Director Ms. Tasneem Yusuf

Fraction (0.33) related to the requirement for number of ndependent Director is less than 0.5 and
therefore, has not been rounded up as one, because the existing independent directors have the requusite
skills, knowledge and diversified work experience to take independent decision in the interest of the

Company.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed

companies, including this company.

The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to

disseminate 1t throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.
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The Board has developed a vision/mussion statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies
along with their date ot approval or updating is maintained by the company.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken

by Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in lus absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations

with respect to trequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance

with the Act and these Regulations.

Out of Seven (7) directors, three directors meet the exemption requirement of the Directors’ traimning
program and four directors have obtained the Directors’ traiming program certificate i prior years.

. The Board has approved appointment of Chiet Financial Oftficer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with
relevant requirements of the Regulations.

. Chief Financial Officer and Chiet Executive Othcer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board.

. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee
*  Ms. Tasneem Yusuf Chairperson
*  Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail Member
*  Mr Magsood Ismail Ahmed Member

b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
*  Mr. Muhammad Zubair Motrwala - Chairman
*  Mr Magsood Ismail Ahmed - Member
*  Mr. Hanud Magsood Ismail - Member
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. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

. The frequency of meetings of the commuittees were as per following:
a) Audit Commuttee quartetly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee on required basis

. The Board has set up an etfective mternal audit function comprising of suitably qualified and expernienced
staff who are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

. The statutory auditors of the company have contirmed that they have been given a satistactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute
ot Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firms involved 1n the audit
are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent, and non-dependent children) of the chiet executive
otficer, chiet financial otficer, head of internal audit, company secretary, or director of the company.

. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

. We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied.

MUHAMMAD M. ISMAIL MUNSARIM SAIFULLAH

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Karachi: September 17, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Ismail Industries Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate

Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Ismail Industries Limited
(the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2021 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations s that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responstbility 1s to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review 1s limited primanly to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review

of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls
or to form an opimuon on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance

procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the

Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions.

We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related

party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Commuttee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not approprately reflect the Company's compliance, in all matenial respects, with the

requirements contained 1n the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Chartered Accountants

Dated: September 17, 2021

Karacht
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Ismail Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated tmancial statements of Ismail Industries Limited (the Company),
which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021, and the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated
statement ot changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the unconsolidated financial statements, mcluding a summary of significant accounting polictes and other
explanatory mformation, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best ot our knowledge and beliet, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opmion and to the best of our mnformation and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the
unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes formung part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable 1n Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), m the manner so required and respectively give a true and tair view of the state of the
Company's affairs as at June 30, 2021 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the changes 1n equity and
its cash tlows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable i Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the _4uditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are mdependent of the Company in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board tor Accountants’ Code of Ethus for Professional Acconntants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have tulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sutficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, 1n our professional judgment, were of most sigmificance in our audit of
the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and 1n forming our opion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opion on these matters.




Following 1s the key audit matter:

S.No. Key Audit Matter

Valuation of Stock-in-trade

As at June 30, 2021 the Company’s total
stock-in-trade balance amounting to Rs. 7.57
billion as disclosed 1n note 11 represents 51.25% of
the total current assets of the Company. The value
ot stock-mn-trade 1s based on the weighted average
cost method for raw materials, packing materials
and work 1n process and lower of weighted average
cost and net realizable value (NRV) for finished
goods, and 1nvoice value plus other charges for
stock 1n transit.

The Company 1s required to measure its
stock-in-trade at the lower of cost and NRV. There
1s an element of judgement involved relating to the
valuation, which 1s required for the estimation of
the net realizable wvalue

slow-moving and obsolete stock-in-trade. Such

and allowance for

estimation 1s made after taking into consideration
factors such as movement mn prices, current and
expected future market demands and pricing

competitions.

This was the key audit matter because of its
maternality and significance 1n terms of judgements
mvolved 1 estimating the NRV of underlying
stock-in-trade.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

In response to this matter, our audit procedures

included the following:

Reviewed the management procedures for

valuation of stock-in-trade and evaluating the

NRYV of stock-in-trade.

Observed physical counts at major locations to
ascertain the condition and existence of

stock-1n-trade.

Tested the valuation method used by the
management in valuation of stock 1n trade.

Reviewed stock-in-trade turnover ratios,
understood and evaluated the appropriateness
of the basis of identification of the obsolete
stock-1n- trade, tested the accuracy of the aging
analysis of stock-in-trade on a sample basis,
tested the cost of goods with underlying
mnvoices and expenses incurred 1n accordance
with stock-in- trade wvaluation method and
reviewed the minutes of the relevant meetings
at the board and management level to identity

any mndicators of obsolescence.

Tested the NRV of the stock-in-trade held by
preforming a review of sales close to and
subsequent to the year-end and compared with
the cost for a sample of products.

Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures on
stock-1n-trade in these unconsolidated financial

statements.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other mformation comprises the imnformation mncluded

i the annual report, but does not mclude the unconsoldated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.




ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
mformation and, in doimng so, consider whether the other information 1s materially inconsistent with the
unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be matenally
nusstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a matenial musstatement of this

other information, we are requred to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements
i accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable 1n Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such mnternal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from matenial misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from materal musstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
mncludes our opinton. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but i1s not a guarantee that an audit
conducted 1n accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a matenial misstatement when 1t
exists. Misstatements can arnse from fraud or error and are considered material 1f, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opimion. The sk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is hugher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
mvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnide of internal control.

Obtain an understanding ot internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropuate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
etfectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast sigiificant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a maternial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modity our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concerm.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We commumnicate with the board ot directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identity
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance 1n the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters i our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement ot comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity
and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up 1n
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account
and returns;

mvestments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of
the Company’s business; and

zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordimance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by
the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report 1s Muhammad Khalid Aziz.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Dated: September 17, 2021
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Long term investments

Long term deposits

T'otal non-current assets
Current assets

Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Short term investments
Other recervables
Taxation-net
Cash and bank balances
Total current assets

Total assets

2020

Rupees -

20,797,301,134
82,762,838
33,730,783
5,277,725,078
26,838,890

19,266,848,674
306,955,475
55,293,210
5,276,303,873
37,005,581

26,218,358,723

24,942 406,813

459,511,285
7,570,435,262
3,345,669,807
1,529,096,136
30,581,266
318,381,590
117,644,543
1,256,736,585
143,565,665

351,847,225
6,251,658,329
3,344,985,089

936,777,070

36,060,055

200,000,000

119,919,336
1,273,085,745

51,195,200

14,771,622,139

12,565,528,049

40,989,980,862

37,507,934,862

The annexed selected notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated tinancial statements.




EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorized share capital
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

250,000,000 (2020: 250,000,000) ordinary shares

of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Reserves

Total shareholders' equity

Non-current liabilities
Long term finances - secured
Lease liabilities
Deterred liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Accrued mark-up
Short term finances - secured
Current portion of:
- long term finances - secured
- Lease liabilities
Unclaimed dividend
Advances from customers - unsecured

T'otal current liabilities
T'otal liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Contingencies and commitments

27

2,500,000,000

2,500,000,000

663,569,400
10,611,167,244

663,569,400
9.236,215,197

11,274,736,644

9,899,784,597

12,890,753,566
19,401,180
2,291,284,075

13,513,452,828
91,245,081
2,069,506,039

15,201,438,821

15,674,203,948

3,993,579,951
162,665,518
6,063,068,547

3,672,098,318
42,765,702
2,902,597
576,724,764

3,436,484,784
195,966,471
6,789,925,030

985,228,903
77,281,836
2,644,785
446,414,508

14,513,805,397

11,933,946 317

29,715,244,218

27,608,150,265

40,989,980,862

37,507,934,862

The annexed selected notes from 1 to 48 form an mntegral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Munsarim Saifullah
Chief Executive Officer

Magqgsood Ismail

Director

Abdul Qadir
Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Sales

Sales returns, discounts and direct expenses

Export rebate

Sales tax
Sales - net
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses
Operating profit

Other operating expenses

Other income

Finance cost

Share of profit from associated companies - net
Profit before taxation

Taxation
Profit for the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

39

44,948,732,102

40,806,855,687

(1,959,203,601)
55,790,351

(1,989,079,667)
10,589,965

(1,903,413,250)

(1,978,489,702)

43,045,318,852
(5,737,558,980)

38,828,365,85
(5,610,093,075)

37,307,759,872
(30,113,980,222)

33,218,272,910
(26,340,648,564)

7,193,779,650

(4,235,501,771)
(651,886,237)

6,877,624,346

(4,469,256,842)
(593,693,129)

2,306,391,642
(393,717,058)

392,804,811

1,814,674,375
(181,562,202)
353,404,382

2,305,479,395
(693,703,984)

1,986,516,555
(1,155,785,614)

1,611,775,411

601,470,332

830,730,941

491,972,141

2,213,245,743

(436,580,434)

1,322,703,082

(390,737,914)

1,776,665,309

931,965,168

26.77

14.49

The annexed selected notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated tinancial statements.

Munsarim Saifullah
Chief Executive Officer

Director

Magsood Ismail

Abdul Qadir
Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Profit for the year 1,776,665,309 931,965,168

Other comprehensive (loss) / income:

Items that may be reclassified to unconsolidated statement

of profit or loss in subsequent periods

Items that will not be reclassified to unconsolidated statement

of profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Income on remeasurements of post employment benefit

obligation - net of tax 23.3.7 34,674,791 1,960,588

Unrealized loss on remeasurement of investment classified as fair

value through OCI - net of tax (3,857,616)

Share of other comprehensive (loss) / income from associate -

net of tax 2 (233,459,617) 896,140,406
Other comprehensive (loss) / income - net of tax (202,642,442) 898,100,994

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,574,022,867 1,830,066,162

The annexed selected notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Munsarim Saifullah Magqsood Ismail Abdul Qadir

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Total Reserves
Issued, Capital reserve Revenue reserve

subscribed and e Remeasurement
paid-up share Share Amalgamation 5 . |lof investments at|| Unappropriated Total reserves
ital 3 of investment in 5
cap1 premium reserves fair value profit

associate ugh OCI

Rupees
Balance as at July 01, 2019 638,047,500 579,265,000 916,862,067 (854,605,234) 6,094,677,327 6,736,199,160 7.374,246,660

Profit for the year B B . 2 931,965,168 931,965,168 931,965,168
Other comprehensive income - net of tax 2 2 £96,140,406 1,960,588 898,100,994 898,100,994
Total comprehensive income 5 = E 896,140,406 933,925,756 1,830,066,162 1,830,066,162

Right shares issue 25,521,900 893,266,500 - . 893,266,500 918,788,400

Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2019 @ Rs.

3 per share (191,414,250 (191,414,250) (191,414,250)

Interim cash dividend for the period ended December

31,2019 @ Rs. 0.50 per share - - . - = (31,902,375) (31,902,375) (31,902,375)

Balance as at June 30, 2020 663,569,400 1,472,531,500 916,862,067 41,535,172 - 6,805,286,458 9,236,215,197 9,899,784,597

Profit for the year - - - - - 1,776,665,309 1,776,665,309 1,776,665,309
- (233,459,617) (3.857,616) 34,674,791 (202,642,442) (202,642,442)

Total comprehensive income B 5 £ (233,459,617) (3,857,616) 1,811,340,100 1,574,022,867 1,574,022,867

Final cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2020 @

Rs 3 per share - # - : - (199,070,820) (199,070,820) (199,070,820)

Balance as at June 30, 2021 663,569,400 1,472,531,500 916,862,067 (191,924,445) (3.857,616)  8,417,555,738 10,611,167,244  11,274,736,644

Other comprehensive loss - net of tax =

The annexed selected notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsoldated financial

Munsarim Saifullah Maqgsood Ismail Abdul Qadir
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 41

Gratuity paid 2333 & 24.2

Income tax paid - net

Long term deposits - net
Net cash generated from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure (including CWIP)

Intangible assets

Investment in subsidiary 8.1
Investment in associated company 8.3
Proceed trom dissolution of associated company

Dividend received 8.2.3
Short-term investments 15

Proceeds trom disposal of property, plant and equipment 6.6
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from long term financing - net
Receipts from right share issue - net ott Sponsor's
loan - subordinated
Lease repayments
Interest / mark-up paid
Dividend paid
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprise of:

Cash and bank balances 18

Running finance utilized under mark-up arrangements 26

2,432,145,733

(69,755,521)

(178,055,152)
10,166,691

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

5,957,155,845

(32,269,070)
(534,802,892)
7,297,910

2,194,501,751

5,397,381,793

(3,355,480,700)
(10,306,201)
(491,737,500)
188,107,892
629,020,362
(123,541,590
585,328,439

(8,126,868,258)

(623,885,000)
(16,284,035)
122,169,516

(200,000,000)

58,234,562

(2,578,609,298)

(8,786,633,215)

2,014,170,153

(106,360,035)
(727,004,937)
(198,813,008)

16,636,630
(67,717,486)
(1,165,512,071)
223,010,340)

981,992,173

4,993 236,071

597,884,626
(1,663,611,508)

1,603,984,649
(3,267,596,157)

(1,065,726,882)

(1,663,611,508)

143,565,665
(1,209,292,547)

51,195,200
(1,714,806,708)

(1,065,726,882)

(1,663,611,508)

The annexed selected notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Munsarim Saifullah
Chief Executive Officer

Magqsood Ismail

Director

Abdul Qadir
Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Ismail Industries Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Karachi, Pakistan as a private limited
company on June 21, 1988. On November 01, 1989 the Company was converted into a public limited
company. The registered office / head office of the Company is situated at 17 - Bangalore Town,
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan. Previously the shares of the Company were listed on the Karachi
and Lahore Stock Exchanges. However, due to integration of these Stock Exchanges mto Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited effective from January 11, 2016 the shares of the Company are now quoted
on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. Principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and trading
of sugar contectionery items, biscuits, potato clups, nutritional products, cast polypropylene (CPP) and
Biaxially-oriented polyethylene terephthalate (BOPET) film under the brands of 'Candyland', 'Bisconni',
'Snackeity' and 'Astro films' respectively.

These are the separate unconsolidated financial statements of the Company in which investment in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment costs, if any and investment in assoctates are carried

under equity method of accounting.

Geographical location and addresses of business units including manufacturing units of the Company

are as under:
Factories:

Unit-1 Unit-6

C-230, Hub H.L'T.E., Balochistan. D-91, D-92 & D-94 North Western Zone, Port Qasim.
Unit-2 Unit-7

B-140, Hub H.I'T.E., Balochistan. E164-168, North Western Zone, Port Qasim.
Unit-3 Unit-8

G-1, Hub H.I'T.E., Balochistan. E154-157, North Western Zone, Port Qasim.

Unit-4 Unit-9

G-22, Hub HIT.E., Balochistan. G-1A, Hub HIT.E., Baloclistan.

Unit-5
38-C, Sundar Industnial Estate, Rarwind Road, Lahore.
In addition to above it 1s impracticable to disclose other administrative offices and warehouses as

required under paragraph VI (1)(1) of part I of the fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017.
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS

The Company in its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on April 12, 2021 has approved an equity
investment up to Rs. 1.50 billion to be made in its associated company M/s. Ismail Resin (Private)
Limited (IRL) incorporated on January 13, 2021 with the intention of setting-up a Polyester Resin (PET
Resin) manufacturing plant.

During the financial year 2021, the erection and mnstallation phase of BOPET project has been
completed and it has started commercial production in somewhere between fourth quarter of this
financial year. The relevant trial production cost has been capitalised as mentioned in note 6.7.2 of these

unconsolidated financial statements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been tollowed.

Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except as otherwise disclosed in the respective accounting policies' and the unconsolidated statement of

cash flows.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic eavironment in which the Company operates. The unconsolidated financial
statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Company's functional and presentation

currency. The figures have been rounded off to the nearest Pakistani Rupee.

Standard, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant to
the Company and adopted in the current year

The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and

mterpretations of IFRSs which became effective during the current year.

Effective Date
Standard or Interpretation (Annual periods beginning
on or after)

Various Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
i IFRS Standards January 1, 2020

TIFRS 3 'Definition of a business' Amendment to TFRS 3 January 1, 2020

IAS 1/IAS 8 Definition of Material' (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) January 1, 2020

IFRS 9 and IAS 39 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase I January 1, 2020

Adoption of the above standards have no significant effect on the amounts for the year ended June 30,

2021.
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3.4.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant

but not yet effective and not early adopted by the Company

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be

effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
(Annual periods beginning

on or after)

IBOR Reform and its Effects on Financial Reporting - Phase 2 January 1, 2021
Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ Test for Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
(Amendment to IFRS 9)

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to
IAS 37) January 1, 2022

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
(Amendments to IAS 16)

Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter (Amendment to IFRS 1) January 1, 2022

January 1, 2022

January 1, 2022

Taxation in Fair Value Measurements (Amendment to IAS 41) January 1, 2022
Updating a Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments

to IFRS 3) January 1, 2022

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments
to IAS 1) January 1, 2023

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (Amendmeants to IAS 12) January 1, 2023

Detinition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) January 1, 2023

Disclosure Initiative - Accounting Policies January 1, 2023

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and
interpretations to the published standards on these unconsolidated financial statements of the

Company.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

IASB effective date
Standard or Interpretation (Annual periods beginning

on or after)
IFRS 17 Tnsurance Contracts' January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2023




ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

USE OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with the approved
accounting standards as applicable 1n Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that atfect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets,

liabdlities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates underlying the
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
petiod in which the estimate 1s revised if the revision atfects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and tuture periods.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
accounting estimates and judgments which are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements:
Note
Property, plant and equipment 4.1

Stock-in-trade, stores and spares 4.2
Trade debts and other receivables 4.3
Taxation 4.4
Staff retirement benefits 4.5
Impairment of non-financial assets 5.3

Leases liabilities 5.15

Provisions 517
Contingent liabilities 5.25

Impairment of financial assets 5.27.5
Property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used in
the calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of
assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Company uses
the technical resources available with the Company. Any change in estimates in the future might affect
the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment with corresponding effects

on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Stock-in-trade, stores and spares

The Company's management reviews the net realizable value (NRV) of stock-in-trade, stores and spares

to assess any diminution in the respective carrying values and wherever required, provision for
impairment 1s made.

Trade debts and other receivables

Impairment loss against doubtful trade and other debts is recorded in accordance with basis mentioned
in note 5.27.5 of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Taxation

In making the estimate for taxation by the Company, the management refer to the current income tax

laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.
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Staff retirement benefits
Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 23.1 to these unconsolidated
financial statements for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations. Any changes in these

assumptions in future years might affect the amounts recognized in those years.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial

statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.
Property, plant and equipment

Owned

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and all additions except capital work-in-

progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost of
property, plant and equipment comprises acquisition cost and directly attributable cost of bringing the
assets to its working condition. Borrowing cost mcluding the exchange risk tee (if any) that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction and production of a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of
the cost during the period in which activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use

are carried out.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropiriate, only when it is probable that tuture economic benetits associated with the asset will flow to
the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognized. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss as and when mcurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized and the assets so
replaced, if any, are retired.

Depreciation on assets other than leasehold land is calculated so as to write-off the assets over their
expected economic lives under the dimimishing balance method at rates given in note no. 6 to the
unconsolidated financial statements. Depreciation on leasehold land is charged to the statement of
profit and loss, applying the straight-line method at rates given in note no. 6 to these unconsolidated
financial statements whereby the cost 1s written off over the lease term. Depreciation is charged from

the month when the asset 1s available for use and ceased from the month of disposal.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting

date.

The gain or loss on disposal or retitement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as other income or expense.

Right-of-use assets

1e right-of-use assets 1s initially measured based on the mitial amount of the lease liability, any lease
Tl ht-of t tiall d based on tl tial t of the 1 liabilt 1
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred, an estimate

of costs to dismantle and remove the undeslying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on

which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The rght-of-use asset is depreciated on a

diminishing balance method as given in note no. 6.1 of these unconsolidated financial statements of
June 30, 2021. The right-of-use assets is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain

remeasurements of the lease liability.
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The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
The lease payments assoctated with these leases is recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over

the lease term.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment if any. All expenditures
connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under
capital work-in-progress. These expenditures are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and

equipment as and when the assets start operation. Impairment losses if any are recorded on the basis as

defined in note 5.3.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset 1s an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits will
flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Cost of the intangible asset (i.e.
computer software) includes purchase cost and directly attributable expenses incidental to bring the
asset for its intended use.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an expense as and when
incurred.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Amortization is charged over the estimated useful life of the asset on a systematic basis applying

straight line method and impairment losses if any are recorded on the basis as defined in note 5.3.

Usetul lives of intangible operating assets are reviewed, at each reporting date and adjusted if the impact

of amortization 1s significant.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation / amortisation including capital work-in-progress are reviewed for

impairment whenever events or changes m circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identitiable (cash-generating units).

An impairment loss s reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or

amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
Investments in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are recognized and carried at cost m these unconsolidated financial
statements. The carrying amount of investments is reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists the mvestment's recoverable
amount is estimated which is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. An
impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses

are recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if
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there has been a change in estimates used to determine the recoverable amount but limited to the
extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the unconsolidated

statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are occurred.
Investments in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding between 20% and 50% of the voting rights or common directorship.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting unless other law and
regulations prescribe different criteria. Under the equity method, the mnvestment is initially recognized
at cost, and the carrying amount is mncreased or decreased to recognize the Company’s share of the

profit or loss and other comprehensive income / loss of the associate after the date of acquisition.
Long term deposits

These are stated at amortized cost which represents the fair value of consideration given.

Stores and spares

All stores, spares and loose tools either imported or purchased locally are charged to the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss when consumed and are valued at lower of moving weighted average cost or
estimated NRV except for items-in-transit which are stated at invoice value plus other incidental
charges paid thereon up to the reporting date. Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving items

where necessary and is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:
Types of stock Valuation method

Raw and packing materials weighted average cost method
Work-in-process weighted average cost method
Finished goods lower of weighted average cost or net realizable value

Goods in-transit mnvoice value plus other charges incurred thereon

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Judgement and estimates

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and selling
goods of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. A
review is made on each reporting date on inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and declines

i net realisable value and an allowance is recorded against the inventory balances for any such declines.

Trade debts and other receivables

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and

measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the

calculation of expected credit loss.
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Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the unconsolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents compiise of
cash in hand and bank balances, short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and short term

running finances under mark up arrangements.

Interest / Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at the tair value of the consideration received less
directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost with any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction cost) and the redemption value is recognized in the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss except for any amount included in the cost of property, plant and equipment

over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualitying assets
(those that take a substantial period of time to get ready tor their intended use) are capitalized as part of
the cost of the relevant asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees with one or
more years of service with the Company. Provision for gratuity is made to cover obligation under the
scheme in respect of employees who have completed the minimum qualifying period. Provision has
been made i accordance with actuarial recommendations summarized in note no. 23.1 using the

projected unit credit method.

Lease liabilities

From 1 July 2019, leases are recognized as a right-of-use assets and a corresponding liability at the date
at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. The lease liability is initially measured at

the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using

the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's

incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receivable.
The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the

Company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It
is remeasured when there 1s a change m future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease
payments or an index or rate, change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or it the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a

purchase, extension or termination option.
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5.16 'Taxation

5.16.1 Current

The chatge for current tax is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into
account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or in accordance with the final tax regime,
where applicable, of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) or the minimum tax under
section 113 of the Ordinance or Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT) under section 113C of the Ordinance,

whichever is higher.
5.16.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the statement of financial position liability method on all temporary

differences between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and their tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary ditferences.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all major deductible temporary ditferences to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and is recognized only
to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the assets may
be utilized. Deterred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized.

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it becomes probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset 1s utilized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or

substantially enacted at the reporting date.
Provisions

Provisions are recognized in these unconsolidated statement of financial position when the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation.

Trade and other payables

Liabdities for trade and other payables are measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration

to be paid in future tor goods and services.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistani Rupee at the rate of exchange

prevailing at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and monetary liabilities in foreign currencies as at
the reporting date are expressed in Pakistani Rupee at rates of exchange prevailing on that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange ditferences are taken to the unconsolidated

statement of profit or loss.
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Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chiet operating decision-maker for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments. Operating segment comprises of tood and plastic division.
Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the permod in which it is
approved by the shareholders.

Related parties transactions

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm’s
length at normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using
valuation modes, as admussible, except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to the approval

of the board of directors, it 1s in the interest of the Company to do so.
Share Capital

Ouxdinarily shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from

the proceeds.
Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders ot the Company by
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS s determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability 1s disclosed when:
a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the

occutrence of non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the

control of the company; or

a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Operating, administrative and selling expenses

These expenses are recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss upon utilization of the

services or as incurred except as specitically stated in these unconsolidated financial statements.

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and subsequent measurement

5.27.1 Initial recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration

given o recetved. These are subsequently measured at fair value or amortised cost as the case may be.




ﬁ ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
Al D

e
Il

5.27.2 Classification of financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
- at fair value through profit or loss ("FVIPL")
- at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"), or

- at amortised cost.

The Company determines the classifications of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification
of instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Cornpaﬂy's business model for managing

the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVIOCI:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date to cash tlows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
5.27.3 Classification of financial liabilities

The Company classities its financial liabilities in the following categories:

- at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), or

- at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using etfective yield method, unless they are required
to be measured at FVIPL (such as instrument held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has
opted to measure them at FVIPL.

5.27.4 Subsequent measurement

i) Financial assets at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVIOCI are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at tair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair

value recognized in other comprehensive income /(loss).

ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value plus or minus the
transaction cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial
liabilities and subsequently carried at amortised cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any
impairment.
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iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVIPL

Financial assets and liabdities carried at FVIPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs
are expensed in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Realised and unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are mcluded in the

unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Where the management has opted to recognise a financial liability at FVIPL, any changes associated
with the Company's own credit risk will be recognised in other comprehensive income /(loss).

Currently, there are no financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.

5.27.5 Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets measured
at amortized cost and FVTOCI at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the financial assets in
which there is no significant increase i credit risk since initial recognition or financial assets which are
determine to have low credit nisk at the reporting date, in which case twelve months' ECL is recorded.
The following were either determine to have low or there was no credit risk since initial recognition and
at the reporting date:

- long term investment;

- long term deposits;

- loans and advances;

- trade deposits;

- short term investment;

- other receivables; and

- bank balances;
Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs.

Lite ttme ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
tinancial instrument. Twelve months ECLs are portion of ECL that result from default events that are

possible within twelve months after the reporting date.

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present
value of all cash short falls (i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the entity in accordance with

the contract and cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable

expectation of recovering a tinancial asset in entirety or a portion thereof.
5.27.6 Derecognition

i) Financial assets

The Company derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the

financial assets expire or when it transfer the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and
reward of ownership to another entity. On derecognition of financial assets measured at amortized cost,
the difference between the assets carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of
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an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the nvestments revaluation reserve reclassified to the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company
has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVI'OCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to the unconsolidated statement

of profit or loss, but is transterred to retain earnings.

ii) Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises its financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities
are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial

liabilities derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets

transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

5.27.7 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in these unconsolidated
statement of financial position if the Company has a legal right to set-off the transactions and also

intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company is in the business of manufacturing and sale of goods. Revenue from contracts with
customers 1s recognised when control of the goods is transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods net
of discount and sales related indirect taxes. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods before transterring them to the

customer.
The tollowing are the specific recognition criteria that must be met before revenue is recognized:

a) Revenue from local sale of goods is recognized when the goods are dispatched and in case of

export sales, when the goods are shipped i1.e. when performance obligation are satisfied.

Other income

b) Processing income 1s recognized when services are rendered.

c) Gain and loss on sale of investments s taken to income in the period in which it arises.
d) Iaterest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
e) Dividend income, other than those from investments in associates, are recognized at the time the

right to receive payment is established.

Contract Assets
Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transterring goods to

a customer before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due.

Contract liabilities

Contract liability i1s the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made. Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations under the

contract.
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6.5 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:
Locations Usage of immovable property Total area
17 - Bangalore Town, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. Registered office / Head office 1000 sq. Yd
C-230, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 1 7.54 acres
B-140, Hub H.I.'T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 2 4.59 acres
G-1, Hub HI.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 3 3.486 acres
G-22, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 4 9.00 acres
38-C, Sundar Industrial Estate, Rarwind Road, Lahore. Manufacturing facility - Unit 5 4.02 acres
D-91, D-92 & D-94 North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi Manufacturing facility - Unit 6 7.50 acres
E164-168, North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi Manufacturing facility - Unit 7 6.24 acres
E154-157, North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi Manufacturing facility - Unit 8 5.04 acres
G-1A, Hub HIT.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 9 3.185 acres
D-101/M, D-101/N, S.I.T.E area, Nooriabad,
District Jamshoro, Sindh For future expansion 20.50 acres
PT2-24-2402, Pearl Tower, Plot # 7 (R9)

Cresent Bay, Karachi. Administrative purpose 2,209.57 sq. Ft
A-39 North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi For future expansion 4.7 acres
Sabzi mandi road, Chak no. 241 Dist. Faisalabad For future expansion 0.88 acres
39-B, Sundar Industrial Estate, Raiwind Road, Lahore. For future expansion 1.138 acres

6.6 Following are the particulars of the disposed assets having a book value of mpees five hundred thousand or more.

A ulated | Net book Particul Mode it
ccumulate et boo Sale proceeds | Gator? (fass) articulars Relationship RCe.o

depreciation amount of buyer disposal

Leasehold Land . )
298,146,954 4768339 293378615 500,000,000 206621385 o0 Enterprises  Independent
(Povate) Limited. party

298,146,954 4,768,339 293,378,615 500,000,000 206,621,385
Vehicles
Suzuki Cultus
1,765,250 229,483 1,535,767 1,760,000 224233

Negotiation

Jubilee General

Takaful
1,765,250 388,355 1,376,895 1,012,336 (364.,559) Tariq Aziz Employee Company Policy
1,765,250 388,355 1,376,895 1,553,420 176,525 Junaid Ahmed Employee Company Policy
1,771,550 494,900 1,276,650 949,594 (327,056) Qaiser Shahzad Employee Company Policy
1,428,750 469,112 959,638 1,183,705 224,067 E‘i‘“ Ttigah Employee Company Policy

Akhter -
1,398,200 522,884 875,316 1,248,954 373,638 Yousuf Peerwani Employee Company Policy
1,398,450 555,416 843,034 665,375 (177,659) Salman Rafiq Employee Company Policy
1,398,450 588,476 809,974 558,340 (251,634) Nazim Naseem Employee Company Policy
1,398,450 588,476 809,974 558,340 (251,634) Thsan Ahmed Employee Company Policy
1,265,000 605,238 659,762 847,316 187,554 Naveed Tariq Employee Company Policy
1,265,000 642,852 622,148 822,023 199,875 Ms.Mahira Zaidi Employee Company Policy
1,269,050 647,318 621,732 696,338 74,606 Muhmmad Kashif  Employee Company Policy
1,272,950 671,763 601,187 809,888 208,701 Zahid Qayum Employee Company Policy
1,272,950 683,104 589,846 809,888 220,042 z?eizlad Bl pliges Company Policy
heikh

1,250,000 651,612 598,388 593,873 (4,515) Taimoor Igbal Employee Company Policy

21,684,550 8,127,344 13,557,206 14,069,390 512,184

. . Independent T
857,980 273,028 584,952 780,000 195,048 Wagar Hussain party Negotiation
Independent
patty
837,825 254,346 583,479 890,000 306,521 Wagqar Hussain Employee Company Policy
Jubilee General
Takaful
838,575 277,036 561,539 840,000 278,461 Muhammad Ashraf Employee Company Policy
Independent
party
852,975 348,577 504,398 790,000 285,602 Naveed Ahmed Employee Company Policy

Insurance Claim Insurance Policy

857,980 273,028 584,952 780,000 195,048 Wagar Hussain Negotiation

873,175 295,483 577,692 860,000 282,308 Insurance Claim Insurance Policy

852,975 318 313 534,662 780,000 245,338 Ismail Igbal Secunty

Negotiation

5,071,485 2,039,811 3,931,674 5,720,000 1,788,326
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Accumulated Net book B4l peonesds | Gutnf Hons) Particulars Tl Mode of

depreciation amount disposal

of buyer

Suzuki Alto
121075727 253,492 964,235 1,207,727 243,492 Murtaza mehdi Employee Company Policy
1,325,905 386,963 938,942 1,118,691 179,749 Al Adnan Employee Company Policy

2,543,632 640,455 1,903,177 2,326,418 423,241

Suzuki Bolan
939,317 61,838 877479 1,045,000 167,521 Murtaza mehdi Independent Negotiation

939,317 61,838 877,479 1,045,000 167,521

Toyota Corolla
2,792,813 740,095 2,052,718 1,480,029 (572,689) Ahmed Igbal Employee Company Policy
Jubilee General
Takaful
2,331,290 956,480 1,374,810 1,970,990 596,180 Maryam Saleem Employee Company Policy
2,079,000 783,090 1,295,910 1,521,736 225,826 Khuaja Ziauddin Employee Company Policy
Rana Iftikhar
Ahmed
Muhammad Zia Ul
Hasan Abid:

Rahim Hussain

2,331,290 703,964 1,627,326 2,304,000 676,674

Insurance Claim Insurance Policy

1,935,100 975,672 959,428 1,284,524 325,096 Employee Company Policy

1,867,000 1,125,602 741,398 961,546 220,148 Employee Company Policy

1,819,385 1,118,498 700,887 1,140,543 439,656 Employee Company Policy

Bhalwani
1,771,500 1,182,004 589,496 715,774 126,278 Salman Sayani Employee Company Policy
2,411,915 941,349 1,470,566 1,804,061 333,495 Ahmed Raza Employee Company Policy
2,331,290 984,537 1,346,753 931,866 (414,887) Junaid Bawany Employee Company Policy

21,670,583 9,511,291 12,159,292 14,115,069 1,955,777

Toyota Yaris
2,404,707 280,549 2,124,158 2,725,000 600,842 M.Azam Iqbal Customer Negotiation

2,404,707 280,549 2,124,158 2,725,000 600,842

Land Cruiser
New Gagais

11,882,000 9,154,962 2,727,038 10,000,000 7,272,962 3
Automobile

Independent Negotiation

11,882,000 9,154,962 2,727,038 10,000,000 7,272,962

Honda Civic
2,984,958 1,506,981 1,477,977 1,819,527 341,550 Sajjad Ahmed Employee Company Policy
2,808,390 1,461,730 1,346,660 1,719,717 373,057 Yasir Mehmood Employee Company Policy
2,430,750 1,202,122 1,228,628 1,527120 298,492 Aqeel Abbas Employee Company Policy
2,633,200 1,429,400 1,203,800 1,503,503 299,703 Jawwad Ali Tipu Employee Company Policy
2,517,500 1,363,957 1,153,543 1,675,038 521,495 Mr Asif Employee Company Policy
2,517,500 1,364,212 1,153,288 1,555,402 402,114 Faisal Aheed Employee Company Policy
2,534,977 1,880,836 654,141 1,031,268 377,127 Ghulam Farooq Sb Employee Company Policy
2,810,500 1,653,953 1,156,547 1,539,698 383,151 Ehtisham Khan Employee Company Policy

21,237,775 11,863,191 9,374,584 12,371,273 2,996,689
88,334,049 41,679,441 46,654,608 62,372,150 15,717,542
386,481,003 46,447,780 340,033,223 562,372,150 222,338,927

Aggregate of assets disposed off having net book value below Rs. 500,000 each
L. Accumulated Net book R
Description Cost e Sale proceed Gain / (loss)
depreciation value

Plant and Machinery 203,213 157,129 46,084 90,000 43,916
Equipments 520,000 94,900 425,100 520,000 94,900
Computers 1,107,290 549,311 557,979 340,000 (217,979)
Vehicles 37,314,848 21,117,264 16,197,584 22,006,289 5,808,705

Sub-total 39,145,351 21,918,604 17,226,747 22,956,289 5,729,542

2021 - total 425,626,354 68,366,384 357,259,970 585,328,439 228,068,469

2020 - total 83,461,011 45,741,910 37,719,101 58,234,562 20,515,461

6.6.1 All disposals are made through negotiation or otherwise specified in 6.6 of these unconsolidated financial statements.




Capital work-in-progress

Civil works
Plant and machinery

Movement of capital work in progress:

Balance as at July 1, 2019

Capital expenditure incurred during the year

Trial production cost incurred - net
Transferred to operating fixed assets
Balance as at June 30, 2020

Capital expenditure incurred during the year
Trial production cost incurred - net

Transferred to operating fixed assets

Balance as at June 30, 2021

Civil works

ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Plant and
machinery

96,390,116
777,802,985

(204,444,676)

541,443,730
6,941,725 541
231,817,303
(2,541,682,617)

2021

ANNUAL REPCRT 2021 @

\

2020

Rupees

177,900,924
798,470,812

669,748,425
5,173,303,957

976,371,736

5,843,052,382

Rupees

Equipment
and fittings

Total

637,833,846
7,719,528,526

231,817,303
(2,746,127,293)

669,748,425
1,181,218,197

(1,673,065,698)

5,173,303,957

1,669,285,906
159,343,481
(6,203,462,532)

8,817,804

(8,817,804)

5,843,052,382

2,859,321,907
159,343,481
(7,885,346,034)

177,900,924

798,470,812

976,371,736

The Company has completed its trial production phase of BOPET line IT in this financial year. Therefore, the related sales and
expenses have been transferred to CWIP as trial production cost.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software

Add: Addition for the year

Less: Amortisation charge for the year
Closing net book value

As at June 30

Cost

Add: Addition for the year
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Amortisation rate (%)

2021

2020

Rupees

55,293,210

10,306,201
(31,868,628)

85,453,143

(30,159.,933)

33,730,783

55293210

88,667,156
10,306,201

(65,242,574)

88,667,156

(33,373,946)

33,730,783

55203210

33.33%

Software includes licenses which are amortized on straight line basis over a period of 36 months.

The amortization charge has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales
Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Investment in subsidiary company - unquoted shares
Investment in associated companies

Share deposit money

Investment in subsidiary company - unquoted shares
Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited

Add: Advance against shares

- opening balance

- increase during the year

Converted in to ordinary shares / advance

2021

33.33%

2020

Note Rupees

30 15,157,980
31 8,369,175
32 8,341,473

15,157,980
8,369,175
6,632.778

31,868,628

30,159,933

1,605,984,000
3,180,003,578
491,737,500

1,605,984,000
3,670,319,873

5,277,725,078

5,276,303,873

2021

2020

1,605,984,000

upees

605,984,000

376,115,000
623,885,000

1,000,000,000

1,605,984,000

1,605,984,000
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8.1.1 Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited

The company has acquired 160,598,400 (2020: 160,598,400) shares of Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited (HPL), which is equivalent
to 77.71% of total paid up capital (2020: 77.71%). The HPL is incorporated under Companies Act, 2017 as a private company
limited by shares. The registered office of the company is located at 17 Bangalore town, main Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi. Principal
activities of the HPL are manufacturing, processing, compounding, formulating, importing, exporting, packaging, marketing,
wholesale and retail, trading and selling of all kinds of pharmaceutical dmgs and medicines. The shares of subsidiary are not publicly
listed on a stock exchange and hence published price quotes are not available. The financial reporting date of subsidiary is June 30.

The fair value of equity has been worked out at Rs. 44.91/- per share (2020: Rs. 44.91/- per share), as determined by M/s. Munaf
Yusuf & Co., Chartered Accountants. The valuation has been carried out using discounted cash flow method and thus there 1s no

indication of any impairment in the value of these investment.

2021 2020
Rupees

Investment in associated companies

Novelty Enterprises (Private) Limited - 228,703,777

The Bank of Khyber 3,180,003,578 3,441,616,096
3,180,003,578 3,670,319,873

Novelty Enterprises (Private) Limited

Novelty Enterprises (Private) Limited (NEL) has filed an application with SECP for winding-up. NEL has paid out full
dividend and remaining equity is distributed among shareholders with respect to their shareholding. The Company held Nil (2020:
33%) voting and equity interest in Novelty Enterprises (Private) Limited (NEL). The shares of NEL were not publicly listed on a
stock exchange and hence published price quotes were not available. The financial reporting date of NEL was June 30.

The Bank of Khyber

The total shareholding of the Company including the recent bonus entitlement of 5% announce by the Bank of Khyber (the Bank) is
256,555,982 shares (2020: 244,339,031 shares) which represents 24.43% of paid-up capital of the Bank (2020: 24.43%). In addition
to this, the Company also has representation on the board of directors of the Bank. The Bank concludes its annual financial results
on December 31 as required by the State Bank of Pakistan for financial institutions. Amounts in these unconsolidated financial
statements have been taken from annual andited financial results for the year ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2020 and

from reviewed condensed interim financial information of the Bank for the six-months periods ended June 30, 2020 and June 30,

2021. Adjustment to confirm to the Bank's accounting policies is not warranted as the Bank is not engaged in like transaction under
similar circumstances.

The market value of holding in the Bank as on June 30, 2021 was Rs. 4,156.206 million (June 30, 2020: Rs. 3,467.171 muillion)

Novelty Enterprises (Private)
Limited

2021 2020 2021 2020

Rupees

The Bank of Khyber Total

Balance as at July 1 3,441,616,096 2,001,232,631 228,703,777 228,717,751  3,670,319,873 2,229,950,382
Investment made dunng the year 2. - 16,284,035 - - 16,284,035
Share of profit / (loss) 379,554,402 491,986,115 221,915,930 (13974) 601,470,332 491,972,141
Proceed from dissolution - - (188,107,892) - (188,107,892) .
Dividend received (366,508,547) (122,169,516) (262,511,815) - (629,020,362) (122,169,516)
Share of other comprehensive

income / (loss) (274,658,373) 1,054,282,831 - (274,658,373) 1,054,282,831
Balance as at June 30 3,180,003,578 3,441,616,09 228,703,777  3,180,003,578 3,670,319.873

Ismail Resin (Private) Limited

As mentioned mn note 2.1 of these unconsolidated financial statements, the Company has made an investment in its newly
incorporated associated company Ms Ismail Resin (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 491.74 million. This amount is classified as

share deposit money and the allotment against this investment has been made subsequent to the year end, as mention in note 47.1.




Balance as at July 1
Share deposit money paid during the year

Balance as at June 30

ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

£)

Y

Ismail Resin (Private)
Limited

2021

2020

491,737,500

491,737,500

Summarized financial information in respect of the Company’s associates as at June 30 is set out below:

The Bank of Khyber

Ismail Resin (Private)
Limited

Novelty Enterprises

(Private) Limited

2021
Unaudited

2021
Audited

2020

2021

Audited

2020

Rup

Non-current assets 328,776,835,009

Current assets

318,194,917,000

615,581,090
209,032,721

560,351,964
1,068,166

328,776,835,000

Total assets

318,194,917,000

824,613,811

561,420,130

Non-current liabilities

312,089,306,000
Current liabilities ? i ?

300,436,247,000

168,697,000
426,159

33,060

Total liabilities 312,089,306,000

6,774,926,000

Revenue

300,436,247,000
5,673,133,000

169,123,159

33,060

Profit / (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the

1,553,788,000

(1,124,372,000)

year

2,014,047,000

4,315,925,000

(159,348)

790,627,192

(35,750)

Total comprehensive income / (loss)

for the year 429,416,000

6,329.972,000

(159,348)

- 790,627,192

(35,750)

All transfers of funds to the Company, i.e. distribution of cash dividends, are subject to approval by means of a resolution passed by
the shareholders of the associates. During the year, Rs. 1.50 per share cash dividend have been received from the Bank of Khyber
(2020: Rs. 0.50 per share) and 5% bonus shares (2020: nil). Further the details of NEL is disclosed in note 8.2.3 of these

unconsolidated financial statements.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Lease - Conventional

Lease - Islamic

Less: Current maturity - Conventional

Less: Current maturity - Islamic

Utlities
Others

STORES AND SPARES

Stores
Spare parts
Others

Reconciliation of provision for slow moving spare parts

2021

2020

Rupees---------

3,482,300
9,287,190
(1,580,900)
(3,901,690)

13,702,400
12,282,390
(8,686,100)

7,286,900

12,074,393
7,477,597

17,298,690

12,029,293
7,677,598

26,838,890

37,005,581

120,539,268
321,347,478
17,624,539

89,546,100
232,077,384
30,223,741

459,511,285

351,847,225

Spare parts

Stores and spares

Provision for slow moving

129,130,688

321,347,478

17,624,539

468,102,705

- opening

- charge for the year

(8,591,420)

(8,591,420)

- closing

(8,591,420)

(8,591,420)

Stores and spares - net

120,539,268

321,347,478

17,624,539

459,511,285
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Stores and spares
Provision for slow moving
- opening
- charge for the year
- closing

Stores and spares - net

STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials
Packing materials
Work-in-process

Finished goods

Stock-in-trade of the Company is under hypothecation charge against short term finances as mentioned in note no. 26.

Reconciliation of provision for stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade
Provision for slow moving
- opening
- charge for the year
- reversal
- closing

Stock-in-trade - net

Stock-in-trade
Provision for slow moving
- opening
- charge for the year
- reversal
- closing

Stock-in-trade - net

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2020

Stores Spare parts

Others

Total

————————— Rupees

98,137,520 232,077,384

30,223,741

360,438,645

(8,591,420) .

(8,591,420)

(8,591,420) -

(8,591,420)

89,546,100 232,077,384

30,223,741

351,847,225

Note

11.2&11.3
112
30
11.2

2021

2020

Rupees

3,869,985,980
827,608,134
232,913,398
2,639,927,750

2,752,429,006
661,948,508
175,501,874
2,661,778,941

7,570,435,262

6.251,658.329

2021

Raw

materials

Packing

materials

Finished
goods

3,883,562,836

980,456,683

Rupees ————————————-

2,639,927,750

(12,959,090)
(617,766)

30.1 & 30.2

(109,848,549)
(43,000,000)

(13,576,856)

(152,848,549)

3,869,985,980

827,608,134

2,639,927,750

2020

Raw

materials

Packing
materials

Finished
goods

2,765,388,096

Rupees ——————v—=

771,797,057

2,661,778,941

(13,384,583)

425,493

(109,848 549)

(12,959 090)

(109 848 549)

2,752,429 006

661,948 508

2,661,778 ,941

This includes raw materials in transit amounting to Rs. 1,130,732,151 (June 30, 2020: Rs. 275,163,978).

TRADE DEBTS
Considered good

- export - secured

- local - unsecured
Trade debts

Allowance for expected credit loss

Trade debts - net

Trade debts of the Company is under hypothecation charge against short term finances as mentioned in note no. 26.

Note

2021

2020

Rupees

542,466,672
2,904,173,775

1,056,320,953
2,384,634,776

12.3

3,446,640,447
(100,970,640)

3,440,955 729
(95,970,640)

3,345,669,807

3,344,985 089

There is no receivables from related party at reporting date (2020: Rs. Nil). Further it does not include defaulter parties in export

customers.




Allowance for expected credit loss

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge during the year - net
Balance at the end of the year

Age analysis trade debts

Not Due

More than 45 days but not more than 3 months
More than 3 months but not more than 6 months
More than 6 months but not more than 1 year

More than 1 year

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans - secured - employees
Advances - unsecured

- suppliers

- LC margins

)
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2021

K

2020

Rupees

(95,970,640)
(5,000,000)

(76,343,145)
(19,627 ,495)

(100,970,640)

(95,970,640)

2,066,509,262
481,295,742
509,262,009
324,727,891
64,845 543

2,544,350,781
356,189,161
298 242,708
176,559,683
65,613,396

3,446,640,447

3,440,955 729

42,502,645

1,349,066,861
13.2 137,526,630

49,935,105

825,763,077
61,078,888

1,529,096,136

936,777,070

These represent interest free loans that are to be repaid within a period of one year in equal monthly installments. Any outstanding

loan due from an employee at the time of leaving the service of the company is adjustable against the final settlement of staff.

Allied Bank Ltd.

Bank Alfalah Led
Meezan Bank Ltd

Bank Al Habib Limited
Standard Chartered Bank

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Trade deposits - unsecured
Short term prepayments
Current maturity of lease deposits- Conventional

Current maturity of lease deposits- Islamic

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Term Finance Certificates
Pakistan Investment Bonds

2021

2020

Note Rupees

75,112,954
31,315,236
31,098,440

29,604,128

24,447 200
7,027,560

137,526,630

61,078,388

17,958,740
7,139,936
1,580,900
3,901,690

17,017,157
10,356,798
8,686,100

30,581,266

36,060,055

15.1 194,840,000
152 123,541,590

200,000,000

318,381,590

200,000,000

The Company has made an investment of Rs. 200 millions (2020: 200 million) in listed Term Finance Certificates (TFC) of Habib
Bank Limited having face value of Rs. 100,000 per certificate. This investment is classified at fair value through other comprehensive

income and unrealized loss or gain 1s recognized in other comprehensive income. The investment carries mark-up at the rate of three
months KIBOR + 160 bps (2020: KIBOR + 160). The market price of each certificate as at June 30, 2021 is Rs. 97,420 (2020:
100,000).

During the year , the company has made investment in Pakistan Investment Bonds having face value of Rs. 120 muillions. This
carries markup of 9% (2020: mil) per annum and will mature in 2022. This investment 1s classified at fair value through other
comprehensive mcome and unrealized loss or gain is recognized in other comprehensive income.
2021 2020
Note Rupees

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Export rebate

Other receivables

17,242,514
100,402,029

19,588,761
100,330,575

117,644,543

119.919.336
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16.1 This amount includes Rs. 100.217 million (June 30 2020 Rs. 100.217 million) due from Nazir of the Sindh High Court as refer inn

note 27.1.2.

TAXATION - net

Advance income tax

Provision for taxation

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand
Cash at banks:
- current accounts - conventional

- current accounts - Islamic

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

Number of Shares
2021 2020

50,520,750 50,520,750 Oxdinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as fully paid for
13,284,000 consideration other than
arrangement for amalgamation

2,552,190  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as fully paid against
cash consideration through right issue

13,284,000 cash under scheme of

2,552,190

66,356,940 66,356,040

RESERVES

Capital reserve

- Share premium

- Reserve arising due to amalgamation

Revenue Reserve

- Remeasurement of investment in associate

- Unrealized loss on remeasurement of investment
classified as fair value through OCI - net of tax

- Unappropriated profit

2021

2020

Rupees

1,435,051,450
(178,314,865)

1,554,860,275
(281,774,530)

1,256,736,585

1,273,085,745

4,830,605

71,083,473
67,651,587

17,840,930

12,680,687
20,673,583

143,565,665

51,195,200

505,207,500

132,840,000

25,521,900

505,207,500

132,840,000

25,521,900

663,569,400

663,569,400

1,472,531,500
916,862,067

(191,924,445)
(3,857,616)

8,417,555,738

1,472,531,500
916,862,067

41,535,172

6,805,286,458

Total reserves

10,611,167,244

9,236,215,197

This represents share premmm amount pertains to issue of shares at premium. This reserve can be utilized by the Company for the

purpose specified in section 81(2) of the Companies Act, 2017.

This represents reserve created under scheme of arrangement for amalgamation of an Astro Plastics (Private) Limited with the
Company.

Movement of the total reserves have been reflected in the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity.




LONG TERM FINANCES - secured

Long term finances - secured - conventional

Long term finances - secured - islamic

CONVENTIONAL
Financier /
Facility type

Habib Bank Limited

mode

- Term Finance -

FCY Monthly

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly

- Term finance Monthly

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly

- SBP-TERF Quarterly
Bank Al-Habib Limited

- Term finance Monthly

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly
MCB Bank Limited

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly

- SBP-TERF

Quarterly

Allied Bank Limited

- SBP-LTFF Semi-annual

- Term finance Monthly

Balance carried forward

Installments Repayment

period

2021-2024

2018-2030

2017-2023

2021-2030

2022-2031

2018-2022

2019-2029

2020-2029

2018-2028

2020-2030

2024-2031

2022-2031

2021-2024
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2021

2020

--—------ Rupees ------—---

10,622,303,391
2,268,450,175

10,741,575,438
2,771,877,390

12,890,753,566

13,513,452,828

Number of
Installments

Mark-up
(Rate)

1 month
EURIBOR +
1.75%
SBP + 0.25%
1 month

KIBOR +
0.25%

SBP + 0.25%

SBP + 1.25%

3 months
KIBOR +
0.25%

SBP + 0.75%

SBP + 0.50%

SBP + 0.75%

SBP + 0.25%

SBP + 1%

SBP
+0.25%/0.75
%

3 months
KIBOR +
0.25%

2021

2020

==mmm=--= Rupees -=--=--==

562,972,212

369,167,351

183,333,346

1,483,128,671

242,349,300

32,142,843

339,118,000

51,591,000

241,454,570

460,789,006

21,200,000

1,749,413,000

300,000,004

738,680,000

382,696,040

208,333,341

1,341,810,108

42,857,136

346,543,000

53,363,000

247,046,948

474,275,169

1,749,413,000

400,000,000

6,036,659,303

5,985,017,742
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Financier / Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of 2021 2020
Facility type mode period (Rate) Installments --——-—---- Rupees ———mmv

Balance brought forward 6,036,659,303 5,985,017,742

3 months
- Term finance Monthly 2015-2021 3 months KIBOR + 0.25% 7,920,911
0.25%

3 months
- Term finance Monthly 2018-2022 3 months KIBOR + 0.25% 75,000,009 100,000,008
0.25%

3 months
- Term finance Monthly 2016-2022 3 months KIBOR + 0.25% 63,960,000 74,620,000
0.25%

Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited

- SBP LTFF Quarterly  2020-2029 SBP + 0.5% 490,445,000 496,424,000

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2021-2030 SBP + 0.5% 193,574,000 193,574,000

Pak Oman Investment Company Limited
1 month
- Term finance Monthly 2016-2022 KIBOR + 35,000,000 50,000,000
0.5%

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 20222030 SBP + 1.5% 474,566,000 474,566,000

Bank Al falah Limited
6 month
- Term finance Quarterly 2022-2025 KIBOR + 500,000,000 500,000,000
0.75%
3 month
- Term finance Quarterly 2023-2026 KIBOR + 600,000,000
0.75%

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly  2017-2029  SBP+0.5% 345,355,085 357,994,963
JS Bank Limited

-SBP Payroll

finance Quarterly 2021-2023 SBP+3% 485,899,719 647,866,294

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly  2022-2030 SBP+0.30% 129,759,000 129,759,000
Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd
- SBP-TERF Semi Annual 2024-2031 SBP+1.50% 198,931,000
The Bank of Punjab
- SBP-TERF Quarterly  2023-2031 SBP + 1.25% 130,681,254
Faysal Bank Limited
3 months

- Term finance Monthly 2017-2022 KIBOR + 62,500,000 93,750,000

0.25%
Balance carried forward 9,822,330,370 9,111,492,918




Financier /

Facility type
Balance brought forward

National Bank of Pakistan

Installments Repayment

mode period

1 month
KIBOR +
0.25%

- Term finance 2019-2023

Monthly

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly  2021-2030 SBP+0.65%

- SBP-TERF Quarterly  2022-2031 SBP+1%

Askari Bank Limited

- SBP-LTFF 2021-2031 SBP+0.50%
1 month

KIBOR +
0.50%

Quarterly

- Term finance 2019-2024

Monthly

-SBP Payroll

finance

Quarterdly  2021-2023  SBP+1.5%

Soneri Bank Limited

1 month
KIBOR +
0.75%

- Term finance 2019-2025

Monthly

PAIR Investment Company Limited

3 month
KIBOR +
0.75%
2023-2033 SBP+0.50%

- Term finance 2021-2025

Quarterly

- SBP-REFF Quarterly
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Number of

Installments

£

Vi
2020

Rupees ---===---

9,822,330,370

200,000,008

967,132,500

442,074,000

213,070,975

291,666,671

567,000,168

391,666,671

281,250,000

21,694,074

9,111,492,918

225,000,007

938,168,080

230,347,000

316,666,670

416,666,670

300,000,000

Total long term loan - secured 13,197,885,437 11,538,341,345
Less: Current portion of long term finances shown
under current liabilities

(2,575,582,046)
10,622,303,391

(796,765,907)
10,741,575,438

ISLAMIC

Financier /

Facility type
Habib Bank Limited

Installments Repayment Mark-up

mode period (Rate)

1 month
KIBOR +
0.25%

- Islamic financing  Monthly 2016-2022

MCB Islamic Bank Limited

3 months

KIBOR +
0.25%

- Islamic financing  Quarterly  2018-2023

- SBP ITERF Quarterly ~ 2023-2030 SBP+0.75%

Balance carried forward

Number of
Installments

100,000,016

140,000,000

42,859,000

125,000,015

157,500,000

282,859,016

282,500,015
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Financier / Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of 2021 2020
Facility type mode period (Rate) Installments --—--—-- Rupees --———---

Balance brought forward 282,859,016 282,500,015
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited

- SBP ILTFF Quarterly 20222027  SBP+1% 294,831,035 292,653,700

3 months
- Islamic financing Quarterly ~ 2017-2022 KIBOR + 37,500,000 50,000,000

0.25%
Meezan Bank Limited

1 months
- Islamic financing  Monthly 2023-2029 KIBOR + 600,000,000
0.75%
1 month
- Islamic financing  Monthly 2022-2025  KIBOR + 937,500,001 1,000,000,000
0.75%

1 month
- Islamic financing Monthly 2022-2025 KIBOR + 400,000,000 400,000,000
0.75%

3 month
- Islamic financing Monthly 2019-2022  KIBOR + 133,333,336 166,666,669

0.25%
3 month

- Islamic financing Monthly 2020-2023 KIBOR + 312,500,003 375,000,002
0.25%

Faysal Bank Limited

3 months
- Islamic financing Quarterly ~ 2018-2022 KIBOR + 75,000,000 93,750,000
0.25%

- SBP-ILTFF Quarterly  2021-2030 SBP+1% 291,443,056 299,770,000
Total long term loan - secured 3,364,966,447 2,960,340,386
Less: Current portion of long term finances shown

under current liabilities (1,096,516,272) (188,462,996)
2,268,450,175 2,771,877,390

These represent financings for property, plant and equipment. The above mentioned facilities are secured by way of
creation of equitable mortgage and first pari-passu / ranking charge over present and future fixed assets of the
Company and personal guarantees of sponsors.

The Company's total limit for long term loan amounting to Rs. 24,835 million. (June 2020: Rs. 19,207 million)

Last year, the Company has requested Banks / Financial Institutions who have extended long term loans facilities to
defer the repayment of principal loan amounts by one year in relevance of BPRD Circular Letter no. 13 of 2020
issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (the SBP). The idea behind this policy of the SBP is to combat the impact of
COVID-19 and to help the businesses. The Company will continue to service the markup to Banks / Financial

Institutions as per agreed terms and conditions with them the extension period of this deferment expired on March
31, 2021 .

The Company entered into a long-term loan agreement with JS Bank Limited and Askari Bank Limited-
conventional amounting to Rs. 648 million from each Bank under the Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and
Salaries to the Workers and Employees of Business Concerns by the State Bank of Pakistan. The loan is repayable in
eight equal quarterly instalments, starting from January 2021 and April 2021 respectively. This long term financing
facility is secured by way of equitable mortgage and first pari-passu over present and future fixed assets of the
Company. The facility carries mark-up at State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) rate at zero percent plus bank’s spread of 3%
(2020: 3%) and 1.50% (2020: nil) per annum starting from the date of disbursement and is payable in arrears on
quarterly basis.
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21.7 The long-term financing has been obtained for plant and equipment under temporary economic refinance facility
scheme of State Bank of Pakistan for a term of 10 years with grace period of 12 months from disbursement and carry
markup at the rate ranging from 1.75% to 2.50% per annum payable quarterly in arrears. The principal repayment will
take place in 36 quarterly installments which shall commence from December 2021.

The markup rate of facilities has not changed sigmificantly from the last year.

LEASE LIABILITIES

Under the agreements, lease rentals are payable in 36 equal monthly, 16 equal quarterly & 6 equal biannually installments.
Taxes, repairs, replacement and insurance costs, if any, are borne by the Company. The financings from conventional
banks carry mark-up at rates ranging from 7.76% to 7.96% (2020: 8.78% to 14.73%) per annum and financing from
Islamic banks carry mark-up at rates ranging from 7.28% to 8.48% (2020: 8.39% to 14.68%) approximately which have
been used as a discounting factor. The Company has the option to purchase the asset upon completion of the lease

pericd.

The net carrying amount of nght-of-use assets held under lease arrangement is Rs. 82.76 million (2020: Rs. 306.96
million) (refer note 6.1).

These are secured against deposits of Rs. 10.41 million (2020: Rs 23.64 million), title of ownership of right-of-use assets
and personal guarantees of the directors of the Company.

Maturity analysis of lease repayments for which the Company has committed to pay in future under the lease agreements
are as follows:

2021 2020
-------—-- Rupees —--—----

Lease liability 62,166,882 168,526,917

Less: Current portion (42,765,702) (77,281,836)
19,401,180 91,245,081

As at July 1, 2020 168,526,916 236,244,403
Additions 817,992 76,024,480
- (11,294,832)
Interest expense relating to lease liabilities 12,581,444 24,759,032

Payments (Lease & interest) (119,759,470) (92,476,518)
- (64,729,649)

As on June 30, 2021. 62,166,882 168,526,917

Transfer to own

Disposals

2021 2020
Financial Present value Minimum Financial Present value
charges of minimum lease charges of minimum

allocated lease payments allocated lease payments

payrnents

(Rupees)
Conventional
Up to one year 5,651,908 562,545 5,089,363 20,316,233 1,661,354 18,654,879

Later than one year but
not later than five years 4,503,624 90,583 4,413,041 19,003,092 656,870 18346222

10,155,532 653,128 9,502,404 30,319,325 2,318,224 37,001,101

Islamic
Up to one year 41,088,675 3,412,336 37,676,339 69,871.417 11,244 460 58,626,957

Later than one year but
not later than five years 15,490,989 502,850 14,988,139 79,015 326 6,116,467 72,898,859

56,579,664 3,915,186 52,664,478 148,886,743 17,360,027 131,525,816
66,735,196 4,568,314 62,166,882 188,206,068 19,679,151 168,526,917

The Company has lease contract for plant and machinery and vehicles, which generally have lease term in between 3 to 5
years. The Company's oligation under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the lease assets. There are several lease

contracts that include extension and termination optiomns.
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2020
Rupees ---------

DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Provision for staff gratuity scheme - unfunded 447,306,385 436,910,015
Deterred tax liability 1,843,977,690 1,632,596,024
2,291,284,075 2,069,506,039

Provision for staff gratuity scheme - unfunded

In accordance with the requirements of IAS-19 “Employee Benelfits”, actuarial valuation was carried out
as at June 30, 2021, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Provision has been made in these
unconsolidated financial statements to cover obligations 1n accordance with the actuanal
recommendations. Details of significant assumptions used for the valuation and disclosures in respect of
above-mentioned schemes are as follows:

Risk on account of staff gratuity scheme - unfunded
The Company faces the following risk on account of staff gratuity scheme.
Final Salary Risk (linked to inflation risk)

The sk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the
benefit 1s calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic
factors), the benefit amount increases as salary increases.

Mortality Risk

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect is more
pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

Withdrawal Risk
The rsk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The

significance of the withdrawal risk vares with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.
Significant actuarial assumptions 2021 2020

Financial assumptions

Discount rate (per annum) 10.00% 9.25%

Expected rate of increase in salages (per annum) 10.00% 9.25%

Dernographic assumptions
Mortality rates (for death in service) Adjusted Adjusted
SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

Retirement assumption 60 years 60 years

2020

Statement of financial position reconciliation Rupees ---------

Present value of defined benefit obligation 447,306,385 436,910,015
Fair value of plan assets - =
Net liability in statement of financial position 447,306,385 436,910,015

Maturity Profile

1-5 Years 279,426,874 191,597,014
6-10 Years 391,972,739 320,611,914
10 Years onwards 4,641,086,841 7,010,376,327

Weighted average duration 8 Years 11 Years
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23.3.3 Movement in the defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at July 1
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Re-measurement on obligation

Payments dunng the year

Benefits payable transterred to short term liability

436,910,015
78,818,098
4,631,686
37,448,601
(46,381,475)
(56,151,439)
(7,969,101)

358,574,405
74,375 324
3,927,345
48,667,485
(2,761,392)
(32,269,070)
(13,604,082)

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at June 30

447,306,385

436,910,015

Movement in the net liability at reporting
date is as follows:

Opening balance of net liability
Charge for the year

Re-measurements recognized in 'OCI'
Payments during the year

Benefits payable transterred to short term liability

436,910,015
120,898,385
(46,381,475)
(56,151,439)
(7,969,101)

358,574,405
126,970,154

(2,761,392)
(32,269,070)
(13,604,082)

Closing balance of net liability

447,306,385

436,910,015

The amounts recognized in the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss account against defined benefit scheme are as

follows:

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost

78,818,098
4,631,686
37,448,601

74,375 324
3,927,345
48,667,485

Charge for the year

120,898,385

126,970,154

For the year ended June 30, 2022, expected provisions to the statf retirement benefit scheme 1s Rs.

123.484 million.

Re-measurement recognised in 'other comprehensive income'

Experience (gains) / losses

Re-measurement of the fair value of the plan assets

(46,381,475)

(2,761,392)

Related deferred tax

(46,381,475)
11,706,684

(2,761,392)
800,804

(34,674,791)

(1,960,588)

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

Comparison for five years 2021 2020 2019
Rupees

2018

Present value of the defined

benefit obligation 447,306,385 436,910,015 358,574,405

231,080,176

175913366
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The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumption is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumption assumption

--—---—--—-Rupees-----—--—-—--

Discount rate 1% 412,536,758 (487,528,607)
Salary growth rate 1% 488,183,275 (411,287,605)

The above sensitivity analysis 1s based on a change 1n an assumption while holdmng all other assumptions

constant. In practice, thus 1s unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuanial assumptions the
same method (present value of the defmed benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the statf retirement

gratuity recognized within the unconsolidated statement of financial position.

2021 2020
----—---- Rupees ---------
Deferred taxation

The details of deferred tax on temporary differences are as follows:
- accelerated tax depreciation allowances 1,891,286,053 1,649,441,874
- provision for gratuity (112,900,132) (126,703,904)
- allowance for expected credit loss (25,484,990) (27,831,486)
- imnvestment in associates at fair value through OCI 136,553,389 175,795,267
- STI - Term finance certificates (1,302,384) -
- provision for stores and spares (2,168,474) (2,491,512)
- provision for stock 1n trade (42,005,772) (35,614,215)
Deferred tax Liability 1,843,977,690 1,632,596,024

23.41 The movement in temporary differences is as follows:

Recognized in ... Recogzed in
Recognized
other Bhcessat o other Balance as at

statement of _ statement of ,
comprehensive  June 30, 2020 comprehensive  June 30, 2021

Recognized 1
Balance as at ceoguedin

uly 1, 2019
Jup, profit ot loss profit or loss

income ncome

Rupees
Provision for gratuty (103,986,578)  (23,518,130) 800,804  (126,703904) 2,097,088 11,706,684 (112,900,132)
Allowance for expected credit loss (@2139512)  (5,691974) 5 (27831486) 2,346,496 = (25,484.990)
Investment in associates at faxr value through OCL ~ (37,818,069) 55470910 158142425 175795267 1,956,878 (41198756) 136,553,389
Other investment at fair value through OCI - - - - - -
Provision for stotes & spares (2491512) . . (2491512) 323038 - (2,168474)
Provision for stock i trade (35,737,608) 123,393 - (35,614215)  (6,391,538) - (42,005,772)
Accelerated tax depreciation allowances 1476261432 173,180,442 5 1,049441874 241844179 - 1,891,286,053
Term Finance Certificates-Habib Bank Limited - - - - - (1,302,384) (1,302,384)
1274088153 199,564,642 158943229 1632596024 242,176,121 (30,794.456)  1,843977,690




TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors

Accrued liabilities

Gratuity payable

Workers' profit participation fund
Workers' welfare fund

Sales tax payable

Other liabilities

ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2020

Rupees ---—--—-

1,869,718,370
1,753,635,793
7,969,101
106,257,803
45,446,869
184,747,427
25,804,588

2,225,495,468
801,929,421
13,604,082
54,621,136
26,993,940
299,733,305
14,107,432

3,993,579,951

3,436,484,784

This includes payable to related party amounting to Rs. 1.96 million (2020: Rs. 30.75 million)

This represents benefits payable transferred to short term liability (note 23.3.3).

Workers' profit participation fund

Balance at the beginning of the year

Contribution for the year

Interest on funds utilized in the Company’s business

Less: Payments made during the year

Balance at the end of the year
ACCRUED MARK-UP

Accrued mark-up on:
Conventional

- long term finances - secured

- short term finances - secured
Islamic

- long term finances - secured

- short term finances - secured

SHORT TERM FINANCES - secured
From banking companies

Term finances - conventional
Term finances - 1slamic
Export refinances

Running finance utilized under

ma_fk—up arrangements

Note

26.1
26.2
26.3

264

2020

Rupees ---—-—-

54,621,136
118,683,864
1,911,739

54,718,374
71,036,685
1,697,092

175,216,739
(68,958,936)

127,452,151
(72,831,015)

106,257,803

54,621,136

70,415,581
68,711,539

22,409,710
1,128,688

66,467,839
96,951,846

19,591,809
12,954,977

162,665,518

195,966,471

4,853,776,000

1,209,292,547

855,000,000
971,931,342
3,248,186,980

1,714,806,708

6,063,068,547

6,789,925,030

These represent facilities for term finances arranged from various banks aggregating to Rs. 1,005 million

(2020: Rs. 1,005 million). These are secured against pari-passu hypothecation over stocks and book debts

of the Company along with the personal guarantees of the directors. These carry mark-up at the rates
ranging from 7.18% to 8.96% per annum (2020: 8.43% to 14.29% per annum). As at the reporting date the

amount of facility 1s ml.
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These represent facilities for term finances arranged from various banks aggregating to Rs. 300 million
(2020: Rs. 1,000 million). These are secured against pari-passu hypothecation over stocks and book debts
of the Company along with the personal guarantees of the directors. These carry mark-up at the rates
ranging from 6.81% to 8.63% per annum (2020: 8.09% to 14.38% per annum). As at the reporting date the

amount of facility is nil.

These represent facilities for export refinance arranged from various banks aggregating to Rs. 4,950.70
mullion (2020: Rs. 3,650.70 million). These were secured against pari-passu / ranking hypothecation of
stocks, book debts and lien on export letters of credits of the Company along with the personal
guarantees of the directors. These carded mark-up at the rate ranging from 0.25% to 1% above the State

Bank of Pakistan (SBP) rate per annum (2020: 0.25% to 1% above SBP rate per annum).

These represent facilities for running finances available from various banks aggregated to Rs. 3,829. 30
million (2020: Rs. 4,039.30 million). These are secured against pari-passu / ranking hypothecation of
stocks, book debts and personal guarantees of the directors. These carry mark-up at the rates ranging

from 7.35% to 8.28% per annum (2020: 8.43% to 14.86 % per annum).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

As the Ministry of Industries has declared that BOPET film manufacturing project of the Company as
Pioneer Industry, after which imports of capital goods shall be duty free. The Company approached the

Board of Investment (BOI) for the permission of imports who entertained the request and was in the

process of evaluating the permission of import vide SRO 41(I)/2009. In the meantime, the Company

imported some capital goods and as per section 81 of the Customs Act, 1969, 1ssued postdated cheques in
favor of Collector of Custom amounting to Rs. 557.403 million (2019: Rs. 557.403 million) for provisional
clearance of goods. However, due to delay on the part of Federal Board of Revenue, the formal SRO to
endorse the decision of Ministry of Industries 1s still awaited. The Company had filed the subject
Constitutional Petition in the High Court of Sindh vide D-2666 on May 13, 2015 to refrain FBR and
Pakistan Customs to encase the securities submitted against the provisional release of the plant and
machineries, and also to issue formal notification to endorse the eadier decision of the Ministry of
Industres dated August 15, 2012, The High Court has passed interim order dated: May 13, 2015, in favor
of the company which is still operative and last hearing was held on Dec 07, 2020. The management of
the Company, based on legal counsel’s opinion, is confident that exemption shall be granted on duties
related to import of capital goods against BOPET project retrospective.

The Company has filed Constitutional Petition 620-K of 2015 on November 27, 2015 against Federation
of Pakistan, Federal Board of Revenue and Collectorate of Custom in the High Court of Sindh against the
operation of SRO 170(I)/2013 dated March 04, 2013 which required 8% duty on import of Poly Ethylene
Terephthalate (PET Resin). In this connection the High Court vide order dated March 12, 2013 directed
those custom duties at the rate of 3% to be paid by the Company and so far as differential amount 1s
concerned 2.5% shall be deposited in cash and 2.5% shall be paid through postdated cheques to the Nazir
of the High Court. In this connection the Company has deposited pay orders amounting to Rs. 100.217
million (2020: Rs. 100.217 mullion) and issued postdated cheques amounting to Rs. 100.217 million (2020:
Rs. 100.217 million) in favor of Nazir of the High Court as directed. Further, the Company has filed
petition in the High Court of Sindh for rationalisation of duty structure on PET Resin. The main
grievance of the Company was for classifying the Pet Resin (Film Grade) and Pet Resin (Yam Grade)
under the same PCT heading has already been redresses in Fiscal Budget (2015-16) and from 01st July
2015, the raw material for BOPET film manufacturing 1.e., PET Resin — Film Grade 1s being imported on
the same rate as applicable to PET Resin — Yarn Grade. However, the retrospective relief on the previous
consignments has been regretted by the High Court which has been challenged in the Honorable

Supreme Court of Pakistan and last hearing was held on Feb 06, 2020. As per legal Counsel, there i1s no
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i
immediate financial liability against the Company in the above-mentioned matter and has a good prima
facie case.

The company has filed various Suits/Petitions in the High Court of Sindh against the Federation of
Pakistan and others against the orders of Commissioner (Inland Revenue) refused to issue exemption
certificates under section 148 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 (the Ordinance) on 22 October, 2018,
in order to avail the benefit of exemption from advance tax at import stage on plant and machineries as
per SRO 947 of 2008, and the company is not going to pay any tax on income from business under the
ordinance on the basis of brought forward assessed losses available to the company, advance taxes
deducted during the financial years and carried forward tax refunds from fiscal year 2015-16 and onwards,
the High Court has allowed the Company and ordered the concerned authorities to release the goods on
turnishing of bank guarantees with the Nazir of the High Court and the concerned collectorate against all
consignments which were released under similar grounds. The total quantum of bank guarantees involved
in above Suits/Petitions is Rs. 606.4 million. These Suits/Petitions are still pending in the High Court and
the last hearing was held on May 03, 2021. The company legal counsel is of the opinion that company has
a good prima facie case.

During the fiscal year 2017, Federal Board of Revenue has issued a show cause notice (SCN) on the basis
of scrutiny of sales tax returns of various tax periods which revealed that the Company has claimed the
mput tax of Astro Plastics (Private) Limited (APL) amounting to Rs. 477.804 million in their sales tax
returns. In response of that SCN, the company has given the reference of the letter dated: October 2016
sent to the Federal Board of Revenue in which it was categorically mentioned that the High Court of
Sindh, at Karachi, has sanctioned the petition no. J.Misc. 13 /2016 for amalgamation by way of merger of
APL and its members with and into Ismail Industries Limited and its members and the Company has
claimed the input sales tax on that basis. However, the Company has filed Suit in the High Court of Sindh
vide No.1539/2017 on June 13, 2017 and obtained the stay order from the Court. In the year 2020,
subject suit was ultimately withdrawn by the Company, to pursue the remedy available under section

134A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 1.e., Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee.

The Company had filed sale tax reference no. A.823 of 2015 on August 28, 2015 with the High Court of
Sindh upon the dismissal of appeal filed by the Company before the Appellate Tribunal for tax year 2013
regarding sales tax audit. The High Couzt has restrained the Commissioner Inland Revenue from initiating
the proceeding on the basis of the order passed by the Appellate Tribunal as well as operation of the
Order / Judgement passed by the Tribunal has also been suspended. In the year 2020, subject suit was
ultimately withdrawn by the Company, to pursue the remedy available under section 134A of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 ie., Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee.

The Company has filed the Constitutional Petition 2752/2011 on August 09, 2011 in the High Court of
Sindh against the Excise and Taxation Department in respect of infrastructure cess / fee being charged by
the Government of Sindh on Imports and prayed to declare that Sindh Finance (Amendment) Act, 2009
and / or rules made thereunder to be unconstitutional, illegal, void ab imitio, and of no legal effect. In all

the five versions of the law 1.e. Sindh Finance Act / Ordinance, the incidence of tax arise upon ensuring
of goods entering or leaving the province and such goods enter or leave the country through air or sea.
Furthermore, import and export are within the exclusive domain of the federal legislature i.e. the Sindh
legislature throughout lacked the jurisdiction to impose the levy. The imported goods were not released
by the custom authorties without paying the infrastructure cess / fee charged by the Government of
Sindh. Subsequently, the High Court ordered the custom authonty to release the goods upon furnishing
Bank Guarantee. The total quantum of bank guarantees involved in above Petitions is Rs. 290 mullion
which 1s equivalent to 50 % of amount of cess. During the year, the case has been disposed off by the
High Coust of Sindh in favor of Excise and Taxation Department. However, the Company along with the mdustry
has challenged the applicability of said order in Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan and the Court has granted
the stay order on Sep 01, 2021 and restrained the authorities to take any coercive action against the
plaintiff.
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In September 2014, the Federal Government promulgated Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC)
Ordinance No. VI of 2014 to circumvent earlier decision of the Supreme Court on the subject, where 1t
had up held that the eacher introduction of GIDC Act 2011 was unconstitutional and ultra vires on the
ground, amongst others, that GIDC was a ‘Fee’” and not a “T'ax’ and the same suit was also filed against
Federation of Pakistan, OGRA , SSGC and SNGPL 1n different Honorable High Courts of Pakistan by
Industry at Large. In May 2015, the Government passed the GIDC Act, 2015 and the Company has
challenged that GIDC Act 2015 and filed a wnt petition i the High Court of Sindh including
retrospective treatment of the provisions of the GIDC Act, 2015. On October 2015, SHC decided tlus
sutt 1 favor of Company. However, the Government filed an appeal in Honorable Supreme Court of
Pakistan, where the Company was not party to such litigation. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan
has disposed off the case on 13 August, 2020 and instruct the gas distubution companies to recover the
outstanding amount in 24 equal nstallments only from those consumers who have already passed the
burden of GIDC cost to their customers. Based on the judgement of the Supreme Court, the Company
has obtained the stay order from the High Court of Sindh on 16th September, 2020 against the gas
distabution companies for recovering of outstanding GIDC and disconnection of gas supply. The last

hearing of thus case was held on August 16, 2021. The cummulative differential amount of GIDC not yet

recognised 1n these books amount to Rs 746 mullions (inclusive of Sales Tax) The management and its
legal counsel are of the view that there 1s no need to maintamn any provision against this hability and has a

good prima facie case.

Through Finance Act, 2019, the Government has reduced tax credit available on new investments under
Section 65-B from 10% to 5% in FY-2019 and Nil from onward. The Company has challenged the
provision of Finance Act, 2019 before the High Court of Sindh on 19 December, 2019 agamst the
Federation of Pakistan and obtained the interim relief of claiming 10% tax credit on all investments
already planned including its ancillary cost of last and current fiscal year. The last hearing was held on
Apml 26, 2021 and the management 1s confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Company

based on the opion of legal counsel.

The Company has filed two petition S-1803 & 1905 of 2020 before the High Court of Sindh and
challenged the OGRA notification bearing no. OGRA-(10)-3(8)/2020 dated October 23, 2020 for
increase in the price of national gas and different prices for industrial and captive connection where the
same 1s used for internal consumption by industmal undertaking. The Court vide its order dated
November 11, 2020 & December 03, 2020 passed an interim stay order m favor of the Company and
suspended the afore-mentioned notification by allowing to pay monthly gas charges as per previous
notitication and directed the company to pay the balance amount by way of bank guarantee or cheque in
tavor of the Nazir of Court. The cummulative differential amount accounted for approximately Rs 31.10
million (inclusive of sales tax). The management 1s confident that the case will be decided 1n favor of the

Company based on the opinion of legal counsel.

In note 20.3 of intenm financial statement of The Bank of Khyber (the bank) an associated company for
the period ended June 30, 2021 the bank has disclosed contingent liability for disallowing of markup and
others expense by the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue. The said matter standing in adjudication
with commussioner Inland Revenue (Appeal) and the Honorable Peshawar High Court. The bank's

managements 1s confidence about the positive outcome of the matter.
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2021 2020
-------— Rupees --—-—--
Commitments

Outstanding letters of guarantee 2,112,978,557 2,136,440,528

Cross Corporate guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of
subsidiary / associates company 4,078,811,644

Outstanding letters of credit for:
- capital expenditure 2,600,935,956 592,832,875
- raw matenals 1,018,228,669 945,731,340

The Company has executed sponsors support agreement with the lenders of M/s. Ismail Resin (Private)
Limited for investment in the form of equity or subordinated debts to cover the cost over-run, or to
cover the funding shortfall or any other obligation that may arise under financing documentations /

agreements executed with them.

The Company's share of commuitments of associated companies.

- Guarantees 4,874,734 3,985,251
- Commitments 158,324,352 10,847,832
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OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Contribution to:
- workers' profits participation tund
- workers' welfare fund
Auditors' remuneration
Exchange loss
Donations
Other
Trial production cost transterred to CWIP

Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee - unconsolidated
Audit fee - consolidated

Fee for statutory certification
Fee for half yearly review

Out-of-pocket expense

118,683,864
45,099,868
4,548,872
169,069,616
56,091,438
223,400

71,036,685
26,993,940
4,248 872
6,188,796
78,370,118
912,587
(6,188,796)

393,717,058

181,562,202

2,600,000
800,000
200,000
500,000
448,872

2,400,000
700,000
200,000
500,000
448 872

4,548,872

4,248 872

Donation to the following organizations exceed 10% of total donation

- Khadija Guls College
- Indus Hospital
- Al Mustufa Welfare Trust

5,708,141

19,719,431

22,678,528
18,084,960
15,204,615

25,427,572

55,968,103

None of the donations were made to any donee in which a director or lus spouse had any mterest at any

tume during the year.

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Exchange gain

Income from non financial assets

Recovery from the sale of production scrap

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - net
Processing mcome

Income from Term Finance Certificates

Trading income

Gain on Forward Contract

Others

95,589,381
228,068,469
27,145,208
18,243,890
2,006,008
13,840,518
7,911,337

87,662,874

198,251,009
20,515,462
23,338,275
22,000,000

1,636,762

392,804,811

353,404,382
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FINANCE COST
Mark up on:
- long term finances - conventional 123,207,729 561,582,211
- long term finances - 1slamic 211,807,044 259,663,232
- short term finances - conventional 216,712,303 90,662,982
- short term finances - 1slamic 42,259,105 214,158,809
Interest on workers' profits participation fund 1,911,739 1,697,092
Fmance charge on lease liabilities 12,581,444 24,759,032
Bank charges 85,224,620 54,962,256
Tral production cost transferred to CWIP 6.7.2 - (51,700,000)
693,703,984 1,155,785,614

REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND
EXECUTIVES

2021 2020
Chief Chief
executive Directors Executives executive Directors Executives

officer officer

Rupees.

Managerial remuneration 12,800,000 10,800,000 479,113,759 11,800,000 9,703,900 447,415,528
Gratuity - - 24,546,002 - - 23,448,302
Bonus - - 24,546,002 - = 23,448,302
Leave encashment - - 19,513,073 - = 18,639,859
Reimbursement of expenses

Utilities 1,166,668 916,664 . 1,000,000 750,000 _
13,966,668 11,716,664 547,718,836 12,800,000 10,453,900 512,951,991

Number of persons 1 1 107 1 1 105

In addition to the above, Company maintamned cars are provided to the chief executive officer, directors
and executives.

The remuneration has been allocated as follows:

2021 2020
Chief Chuef

executive  Directors Executives executive Directors Executives

officer officer

Rupees
Cost of goods sold 228,581,818 208,997,668

Selling and distribution expenses - - 164,786,716 - - 166,443,208

Administeative expenses 13,966,668 11,716,664 154350302 12800000 10453900 137,511,115
13,966,668 11,716,664 547,718,836 12800000 10453900 512951991

Number of persons 1 1 107 1 1 105

36.2  Bonus is given to employees as per the Company's policy.
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CLASSIFICATION OF EXPENSES
2021

Export Common
expenses

Rupees
Selling and distribution expenses 3,673,099,906 562,401,865 4,235,501,771

Administrative expenses 532,004,358 119,881,879 651,886,237
Finance cost 566,131,821 127,572,163 693,703,984

2020
Local Export Common Total
expenses

--- Rupees

Selling and distribution expenses 4,217,728,450 251,528,393 = 4,469,256,843

Administrative expenses - - 593,693,129 593,693,129

Finance cost 1,062,756,219 93,029,395 ~ 1,155,785,614
2021 2020

Note ---—----- Rupees -----—----

TAXATION

Current 178,314,865 281,774,530
Prior year 16,089,447 (90,601,258)
Deferred 242,176,122 199,564,642

436,580,434 390,737,914

The relationship between accounting profit and tax expense

The relationship between tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented in these unconsolidated financial
statements as the current year's income of the Company attracts minimum tax under section 113 of Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

2021 2020
EARNING PER SHARES - basic and diluted ----—---- Rupees ---------

Basic earnings per share

Profit for the year 1,776,665,309 931,965,168

Number of shares

Opening Number of shares at July 01, 2020 66,356,940 63,804,750

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

issued during the year - 531,415
Closing weighted number of shares 60,356,940 04,336,165
Weighted average number of shares outstanding as at year end 66,356,940 64,336,165
Basic and diluted earnings per share 26.77 14.49

Diluted earnings per share
There is no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2021 & June 30, 2020.

2021
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES --——--—--Numbers

Number of employees as at the year end 2,324

Average number of employees during the year 2,198
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CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Depreciation

Amortisation charge

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - net
Provision for staff gratuity scheme - unfunded

Finance cost

Share of profit from associated companies - net

Provision for slow moving - stock in trade

Allowance for expected credit loss

Unrealized exchange gain
Unrealized exchange loss on borrowings

Unrealized exchange loss

Working capital changes
(Increase) / Decrease in current assets

Stores and spares

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Other recervables

(Decrease) / Increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Short term finances - secured

Advances from customers - unsecured

Net (decrease) / increase in working capital

Cash generated from operations

ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2021

2020

--------- Rupees ---------

2,213,245,743

1,691,960,908
31,868,628

(228,068,469)
120,898,385
693,703,984

(601,470,332)
43,617,766
5,000,000
50,000,000
61,642,086

1,322,703,082

1,274,047,121
30,159,933
(20,515,462)
126,970,154
1,155,785,614
(491,972,141)

19,627,495
(46,658,848)

9,191,212

4,082,398,699

(107,664,060)
(1,362,394,699)
(5,684,718)
(592,319,066)
5,478,789
2,274,793

3,379,338,160

(72,871,331)
(1,140,042,201)
(571,621,768)
663,063,457
(2,650,359)
12,043 467

(2,060,308,961)

501,088,062
(221,342,322)
130,310,256

(1,112,078,735)

1,362,471,554
2,075,204,930
252,219,936

410,055,996

3,689,896,420

(1,650,252,965)

2,577,817,685

2,432,145,733

5,957,155,845
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Reconciliation of movement of liabilities and equity to cash flow arising from financing activities.

Balance as at July 01, 2020

Proceeds from long term finance

Payment of long term finance

Payment of liabilities subject to finance lease
Dividend paid

Mark-up paid

Finance cost charge during the year
Foreign exchange (gain) / loss

Profit for the year

Changes in other comprehensive income

Changes in unclaimed dividend

Balance as at June 30, 2021

Balance as at July 01, 2019

Payment of long term finance

Receipts from right share issue - net off Sponsor's
loan - subordinated

Proceeds from long term finance

Payment of liabilities subject to finance lease

Dividend paid

Mark-up paid

Changes in accrued mark-up

Finance cost charge during the year
Profit for the year

Changes in other comprehensive income
Right shares issue

Changes in unclaimed dividend

Balance as at June 30, 2020

Liabilities

Long term
finances-secured

Lease Liabilities Accrued mark-up

Issued and
paid up share
capital

14,498,G81,731

168,526,917

Rup
195,966,471

663,569,400

9,236,215,197

24.762,959,716

3,157,681,714
(1,143,511,561)

(106,360,035)

(727,004.937)

(198,813,008)

3,157,681,714
(1,143,511,561)
(106,360,035)
(198,813,008)
(727,004,937)

2,014,170,153

(106,360,035)

(727,004,937)

(198,813,008)

981,992,174

50,000,000

693,703,984

1,776,665,300
(202,642,442)
(257.812)

693,703,984
50,000,000
1,776,665,309
(202,642,442)
(257,812)

50,000,000

693,703,984

1,573,765,055

2,317,469,039

16,562,851,884

62,166,882

162,665,518

663,569,400

10,611,167,245

28,062,420,928

Long term
finances-secured

Lease Liabilities Accrued mark-up

Issued and
paid up share
capital

8,065,842,393

236,244,403

Rup
205,692,929

638,047,500

6,736,199,160

15,882,026,385

(1,665,139,753)
8,097,979,091

(67,717,436)

(1,165,512,071)

16,636,630

(223,010,340)

(1,665,139,753)
16,636,630
8,097,979,091
(67,717,486)
(223,010,340)
(1,165,512,071)

6,432,839,338

(67,717,486)

(1,165,512,071)

16,636,630

(223,010,340)

4,993,236,071

1,155,785,614

8,885,270

931,965,168
898,100,994
893,266,500

(306,285)

1,155,785,614
931,965,168
898,100,994
902,151,770
(306,285)

1,155,785,614

8,885,270

2,723,026 377

3,887,697,261

14,498,681.731

168,526,917

195,966,471

663,569,400

9,236,215,197

24.762,959.717




FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
RELATED DISCLOSURES

Financial instruments by category

Financial assets

At amortised cost

Long term deposits

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits - unsecured
Other receivables

Cash and bank balances
At fair value through OCI
Short term investments
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

At amortised cost

Long term finances

Lease liabilities

Trade and other payables
Accrued mark-up

Short term finances
Unclaimed dividend
Total financial liabilities
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2021

2020

----—--- Rupees --——--——-

26,838,890
3,446,640,447
137,526,630
17,958,740
185,028
143,565,665

318,381,590

37,005,581
3,440,955,729
111,013,993
17,017,157
113,575
51,195,200

200,000,000

4,091,096,990

3,857,301,235

16,562,851,884
62,166,882
3,668,202,129
162,665,518
6,063,068,547
2,902,597

14,498,681,731
168,526,917
3,055,122,766
195,966,471
6,789,925,030
2,644,785

26,521,857,557

24,710,867,700

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (iLe. an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the:

a) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

c) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The Company recogmuzes transters between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the transfer has occurred.

The Company’s policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have occurred includes
monitoring of the following factors:

- changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases / decreases in activity)

- changes 1n inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming / ceasing to be observable in the market)

There is a transfers of level 3 short term investment to level 1 as it become listed during the year.

The valuation techniques used are as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

Level 2: Non active markets The fair value of financial instruments of non active market is based on inputs available in
the market.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on market value of shares at the reporting date.
A market is regarded as active when it 1s a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The following table analysis within the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s financial assets (by class) measured at fair
value at June 30, 2021:
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Financial assets

Financial investments: fair value through

OCI 194,840,000 318,381,590

Level 1 Total

Financial investments: fair value through

OCI 200,000,000

Investment in associates Level 1 Total

Investment 1n associates 3,180,003,578 3,180,003,578

Level 1 Total

Investment 1n associates 3,441,616,096 228,703,777 3,670,319,873

Financial risk management

The board of directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's

risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquudity risk
- Market risk

43.3.1 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter-parties failed
completely to perform as contracted. The Company does not have significant exposure to any individual counter-party.
To reduce exposure to credit nisk the Company has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are
applied to its customers. The management also regulardy monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and
makes allowance for ECLs against those balances considered doubtful of recovery. To mitigate the risk, the Company
has a system of assigning credit limits to its customers based on evaluation of customers profile and payment history.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from the trade debts, loans and advances, trade deposits, other receivables
and deposits with financial institutions. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit

exXposure.

Trade debts

The Company's exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors 1s mainly mfluenced by the individual characteristics
of each customer. The majority of the customers have been transacting with the company for several vears. Actual
credit loss experience over past years 1s used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Bank balances

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing in liquid securities and maintaining bank accounts only with
counter-parties that have stable credit rating. Given these high credit ratings, management does not expect that any
counter party will fail to meet their obligations.
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The bank balances along with the credit ratings are tabulated below:

Short- term 2021 2020
Ratings --—---— Rupees —---——--

Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited Al - 40,944
Allied Bank Limited Al+ 10,590,468 =
Bank Al Falah Limited Al+ 181,966 -
Bank Al Habib Limited Al+ 1,157,497 382,735
Bank Tslami Pakistan Limited Al 691,127 915,170
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited Al+ 1,254,558 929 224
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ 3,649,739 399,656
Habib Bank Limited Al+ 57,482 56,482
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al+ 27,706,172 5,002,455
JS Bank Limited Al+ 15,085,805 2,234,401
MCB Bank Limited Al+ 428,012 32,423
MCB Islamic Bank Limited Al 176,591 758,452
Meezan Bank Limited Al+ 65,232,539 17,970,457
National Bank Of Pakistan Al+ 1,305,316 3,430,868
Samba Bank Limited Al 14,185 13,185
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ 10,188,530 1,128, 484
Summit Bank Limited Suspended 296,771 59,335
Standard Charted Bank Limited Al+ 630,097 -
Askari Bank Limited At 88,205 ~

138,735,060 33,354,271

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk
at the reporting date was:

2021 2020

Note = e Rupees -———-—-—---
Long term deposits 9 26,838,890 37,005,581
Trade debts 12 3,446,640,447 3,440,955,729
Loans and advances 13 137,526,630 886,841,965
Trade deposits - unsecured 14 17,958,740 1701757
Bank balances 18 138,735,060 33,354,270
3,767,699,767 4.415174.702

To reduce the exposure to credit risk, the Company has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are
applied to its customers. The management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes
provision against those balances considered doubtful of recovery.

Advances recoverable from employees are secured against their retirement benefits.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit rating.

As at June 30 the Company has certain trade debts that are past due but are not considered to be impaired. The
amounts as at June 30 are as follows:

Note 2021 2020

————————— Rupees ———————-
More than 45 days but not more than 3 months 481,295,742 356,189,161
More than 3 months but not more than 6 months 509,262,009 298,242.708
More than 6 months but not more than 1 year 324,727,891 176,559,683
More than 1 year 64,845,543 65,613,596
12.4 1,380,131,185 896,604,948

In respect of trade debts, the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counter party
or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade debts consists of a large number of customers.
Based on historical information about customer default rates management consider the credit quality of trade debts that
are not past due and impaired to be good. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of
expected credit loss.
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43.3.2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that
the Company could be required to pay its labilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity risk is
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

Based on the above, management believes the liquidity risk is insignificant.

As at the reporting date the Company's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as summarized below:
Effective rates of return /mark-up on financial liabilities are as follows:

2021

Effective rate
of interest

Carrying
amount

Maturity upto one

year

Maturity after
one year

Note

Financial liabilities - Interest bearing
Long term finances - secured
(Conventional) 21

Long term finances - secured
(Islamic)

4%

6.3%
7.76% to
7.96%
7.28% to
8.48%
7.18% to
8.96%

6.81% to
8.63%

Lease liabilities - conventional

Lease liabilities - Islamic

Short term finances - secured -
conventional 26

Short term finances - secured - Islamic 26
Non - interest bearing

Trade and other payables 24
Accred mark-up 25

13,197,885,437

3,364,966,447
9,502,404

52,664,478

6,063,068,547

3,668,202,129
162,665,518

Rupee

2,575,582,046

1,096,516,272
5,089,363

37,676,339

6,063,068,547

3,668,202,129
162,665,518

10,622,303,391

2,268,450,175

4,413,041

14,988,139

26,518,954,960

13,608,800,214

12,910,154,746

2020

Effective rate
of interest

Carrying amount

Maturity upto one
year

Maturity after
one year

Rupee

Financial liabilities - Interest bearing

Long term finances - secured -

conventional 21 5%
Long term finances - secured -

Islamic 9%
8.78% to
14.73%
8.39% to
14.68%
8.43% to
14.86%
8.09% to
14.38%

Lease liabilities - conventional

Lease liabilities - Islamic

Short term finances - secured -
conventional

Short term finances - secured -
Tslamic

Non - interest bearing

Trade and other payables

Accmed mark-up

11,538,341,345

2,960,340,386

37,001,101

131,525,816

5,817,993,688

971,931,342

3,055,122,766
195,966,471

796,765,907

188,462,996

18,654,879

58,626,057

5,817,993,688

971,931,342

3,055,122,766
195,966,471

10,741,575,438

2,771,877,390

18,346,222

72,898,859

24,708,222,915

11,103,525,006

13,604,697,909

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the statement of financial position would not affect profit or loss of the
Company.
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

At June 30, 2021, if interest rates on long term financing had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held
constant, pre tax profit for the year would have been affected by Rs. 165.12 million (2020: Rs. 144.99 million) higher /
lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

At June 30, 2021, if interest rates on short term borrowings had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held
constant, pre tax profit for the year would have been atfected by Rs. 60.63 million (2020: Rs. 68.01 million) higher /
lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

43.3.3Market risk
Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices. Market prices comprise of three types of risks namely foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk, such as equity risk.
a) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into

foreign currencies. The Company primarily has foreign currency exposures in US Dollars.
Exposure to Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency value fluctuations due to the following:

2021 2020

Trade debts 3,437,685 6,282,408
Cash and bank balances 141,599 2,488
Trade and other payables (5,044,483) (3,291,629)
Loans and advances 871,525 363,263
Advances from customers (449,586) (54,044)

(1,043,259) 3,302,486

Off balance sheet exposures
Letter of credit (22,935,137) (9,150,522)

Net Exposure (23,978,396) (5,848,0306)

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year.

2021 2020
Rupee per USD

Average rate 162.97

Reporting date rate 157.80

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

A 10 percentage strengthening of the PKR against the USD at June 30, 2020 would have effect on the equity and profit
and loss of the Companyas shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The analysis 1s performed on the same basis for June 30, 2021.

2021 2020
--------- Rupees -—--------

Strengthening of PKR against respective currencies 378,379,096 98,328,585

Weakening of PKR against respective currencies (378,379,096) (98,328,585)

As at 30 June 2021, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar with all other
variables being constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 378.38 million (2020: Rs.
98.33 million) mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains / losses on translation of dollar denominated financial assets.
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The maximum exposure to foreign currency risk i Pakistant rupee at the reporting date 1s as follows:

2021 2020

Note -==mm=m== Rupees =---=----

Export debtors 12 542,466,672 1,056,320,953
Import creditors 796,019,344 553,452,905
1,338,486,016 1,609,773,858

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of
the changes in market interest rates. Majority of the mterest rate exposure arises from short and long term borrowings
from banks, runmng finance facilities and finance leases. At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the
Company's mark-up bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Carrying amount

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets 194,840,000 200,000,000

Financial liabilities 6,377,492,002 6,010,938,346
6,572,332,002 6,210,938,346

As at 30 June 2021, if KIBOR had been 100 bps lower/higher with all other variables held constant, profit before tax
tor the year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 65.72 mullion. (2020: Rs. 212.57 million) mainly because of

higher/lower mterest expense on variable rate instruments.

c) Equity risk
It 1s the risk that the listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk, anising from uncertainties about future
values of the investment securities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital
base to support the sustained development of its businesses.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light
of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintamn or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividend paid to the shareholders or issue bonus / nght shares. There were no changes in the Company's
approach to capital management during the vear and the Company i1s not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

The Company’s capital includes share capital, unappropriated profit and reserves. As at reporting date the capital of the
Company 1s as follows:

Share capital 663,569,400 663,569,400
Reserves 10,611,167,244 9,236,215,197
11,274,736,644 9,899,784,597

The Company manages its capital risk by monitoring its debt levels and liqud assets and keeping in view future
mvestments requirements and expectations of the shareholders. Debt s calculated as total borrowings (long term
finances). The Company's capital signifies equity as reported in statement of financial position and includes share
capital and accumulated losses.
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During 2021 the Company's strategy was to maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing ratios as at June 30, 2021 and 2020

were as follows: L
Rupees —————

Total borrowings 22,625,920,431 21,288,606,761
Less: Cash and bank balances (143,565,665) (51,195,200)

Net debt 22,482,354,766 21,237,411,561
Total equity 11,274,736,644 9,899,784,597

Total equity and debt 33,757,091,410 31,137,196,158

Net gearing ratio (%) 66.6% 68.2%

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to
maintain an appropriate mix amongst various sources of finance to minimize risk.

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

2021 2020
Metric Ton Metric Ton
Rated Actual Rated Actual
Capacity Production Capacity Production

Food processing 166,562 88,363 162,462 98,331

Plastic film 63,000 29,608 33,000 24,824

During the year, rated installed capacity of Food Division is increased by 4,100 tons. Enhanced capacities in
production lines were fully operative in fourth quarter of the financial year, due to COVID-19 Pandemic and high
inflation, the demand of products was under pressure.

In Plastic Division, new BOPET Film production line was commissioned in delay of around 6 months due to COVID-

19 Pandemic and become fully operational in fourth quarter of the financial year.

TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise associated undertakings, directors of the Company and key management personnel. The
Company continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at commercial terms
and conditions.

Details of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these
unconsolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Name Direct shareholding %
Mr. Ahmed Muhammad 15.22
Mr. Munsadim Saif 0.000009
Miz. Ghulam Farooq
Mr. Abdul Qadir

Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited
(Subsidiary Company - 77.71% shareholding)

Investment made during the year 1,000,000,000

Bank of Khyber Limited
(Associated Company - 24.43% shareholding)

Investment made during the year 16,284,035

Ismail Resin (Private) Limited.
(Associated Company - common directorship)

Balance as at June 30 491,737,500 =

Salaries & Benefits to KMP 52,143,332 45,736,571
Post employment benefit to KIMP 1,386,863 1,269,994
Loan balance to KMP - 2,000,000
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Plastiflex Films (Private) Limited
(Associate Company - Common Directorship)

- Purchase of raw & packing Materials
- Metallization of raw material
- Sales of raw and packing material

Recovery against Sales

70,392,521

81,113,035

(31,759,987)

(27,305,781)

(4,595,597)

26,597,506

31,667,166

- Payment against purchases (94,017,364) (64,718,196)

Balances
Plastiflex Films (Private) Limited

- Payable to associate 1,960,087 30,747,411
NON - ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Referring to the note 8.3 of these unconsolidated financial statement, subsequently the Company has made further
investment in Ismail Resin (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 633,811,644. The requisite regulatory compliances has
been completed and 112,500,000 shares amounting to Rs. 1,125,000,000 has been allotted to the Company subsequent
to the year end.

The board of directors in its meeting held on September 17, 2021 has proposed dividend in respect of the year ended
June 30, 2021 of Rs. 15/- per share (2020: Rs. 3/- per share) for approval of the members at the annual general

meeting. The unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 do not include the effect of

proposed dividend, which will be accounted for in the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ending June 30,
2022.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for 1ssue on September 17, 2021 by the board of directors
of the Company.

Munsarim Saifullah

Magqsood Ismail
Chief Executive Officer Director

Abdul Qadir
Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Ismail Industries Limited

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements ot Ismail Industries Limited and its subsidiary (the
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021, and the consolidated
statement ot profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes 1n equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a2 summary of signuificant accounting policies and other explanatory
intormation.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at June 30, 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash tlows
for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are mdependent of the Group in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Protessional Accountants as
adopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities 1 accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamed is
sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opiuon.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, 1n our professional judgment, were of most significance 1n our audit of

the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 1n the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and m forming our opimon thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opiuon on these matters.




Following 1s the key audit matter:

S.
No.

Key Audit Matter

Valuation of Stock-in-trade

As at June 30, 2021 the total
stock-m-trade balance amounting to Rs. 7.72
billion as disclosed in note 12 represents 51.02% of
the total current assets of the Group. The value of

Group’s

stock-in-trade 1s based on the moving weighted
average cost method for raw matenials and packing
matemnals, weighted average cost method for work

1 process and lower of weighted average cost and
net realizable value (NRV) for finished goods, and

mvoice value plus other charges for stock mn tran-

sit.

The Group 1s requured to measure its
stock-m-trade at the lower ot cost and NRV. There
1s an element of judgement involved relating to the
valuation, which 1s required for the estimation of
the net realizable wvalue and allowance for
slow-moving and obsolete stock-in-trade. Such
estimation 1s made after taking mto consideration
factors such as movement in prices, current and
expected future market demands and pricing com-
petitions.

This was the key audit matter because of its materi-
ality and significance 1 terms of judgements
mvolved 1 estimating the NRV of undeilying
stock-in-trade.

£
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

In response to this matter, our audit procedures
included the following:

Reviewed the management procedures for
valuation of stock-in-trade and evaluating the
NRYV of stock-mn-trade.

Observed physical counts at major locations
to ascertain the condition and existence of
stock-in-trade.

Tested the valuation method used by the
management in valuation of stock in trade.

Reviewed stock-in-trade turnover ratios,
understood and evaluated the appropriateness
of the basis of identification of the obsolete
stock-in-trade, tested the accuracy of the aging
analysis of stock-in-trade, on a sample basis,
tested the cost of goods with underlying
mvoices and expenses incurred in accordance
with stock-in-trade valuation method and
reviewed the minutes of the relevant meetings
at the management and board level to identity
any indicators of obsolesce.

Tested the NRV of the stock-in-trade held by
performing a review of sales close to and
subsequent to the year-end and compared
with the cost for a sample of products.

Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures on
stock-in-trade 1n these consolidated financial
statements.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management 1s responsible for the other mformation. The other information comprises the information included
i1 the annual report, but does not include the consolidated tinancial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opiion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any torm of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other
mnformation and, i doimng so, consider whether the other information is matenally inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained m the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a material misstatement of this

other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for
such internal control as management determines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Boaid ot directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s finanaal reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to traud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes

our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s 2 high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted 1n
accordance with ISAs as applicable m Pakistan will always detect a material musstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can anise from fraud or error and are considered material if; individually or 1n the aggregate, they

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit 1n accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opimion. The sk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

mvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omussions, misrepresentations, or the overnide of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are approprate 1n the arcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opion on the
etfectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtamned, whether a matenial uncertainty exusts related to events or conditions
that may cast signiticant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. It we conclude that
a maternial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures 1n the consolidated financial statements or, it such disclosures are madequate, to modify our
opinton. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtamed up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concerm.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events 1n a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sutficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated tinancial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remam solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the board ot directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in mternal control that we identity
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to commuicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance 1n the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters 1 our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, 1n extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated 1n our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report 1s Muhammad Khalid Aziz.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Date: September 17, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Long term investments

Long term deposits

Total non-current assets
Current assets

Stores and spares

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Short term investments

Other receivables

Taxation-net

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

Total assets

21,817,195,645
82,762,838
33,730,783
11,959,187
3,671,741,078
31,458,748

20,350,123,183
306,955,475
55,293,210
11,959,187
3,670,319,873
40,690,439

25,648,848,279

24,435 341,367

481,325,971
7,723,683,283
3,393,522,541
1,633,606,052

39,453,161

318,381,590

117,644,543
1,273,215,243

158,547,846

367,944,563
6,412,002,447
3,370,612,422

952,135,742

43,815,508

200,000,000

119,919,336
1,296,310,915

358,884,421

15,139,380,230

13,121,625,354

40,788,228,509

37,556,966,721

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an mtegral part of these consolidated financial statements.




EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves

Authorized share capital

ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTTION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

250,000,000 (2020: 250,000,000) ordimary shares

of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Non-controlling interest
Reserves

Total shareholders' equity

Non-current liabilities

Long term finances - secured
Lease liabilities
Deferred Liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Accrued mark-up

Short term finances - secured

Current portion of:
- long term finances - secured
- lease liabilities

Unclaimed Dividend

Advances from customers - unsecured
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Contingencies and commitments

28

2,500,000,000

2,500,000,000

663,569,400
116,036,838
9,686,368,083

663,569,400
195,749,872
8,589,399,383

10,465,974,321

9,448,718,655

13,115,268,004
19,401,180
2,316,501,620

13,881,308,010
91,245,081
2,091,252 475

15,451,170,804

16,063,805,566

4,033,432,976
166,153,705
6,168,068,547

3,878,636,296
42,765,702
2,902,597
579,123,561

3,490,910,788
199,737,582
6,789,925 030

1,036,500,768
77,281,836
2,644,785
447 441,711

14,871,083,384

12,044 442 500

30,322,254,188

28,108,248,066

40,788,228,509

37,556,966,721

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Munsarim Saifullah
Chief Executive Officer

Magqsood Ismail

Director

Abdul Qadir
Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Sales

Sales returns, discounts and direct expenses

Export rebate

Sales tax

Sales - net

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Selling and distribution expenses

Admunistrative expenses
Operating profit

Other operating expenses

Other income

Finance cost

Share of profit from associated companies-net
Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation

Profit for the year attributable to:

Shareholders of the Holding Company
Non-controlling interest

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

41

45,207,932,207

41,034,240,755

(2,001,323,009)
55,790,351

(2,009,975,223)
10,589,965

(1,945,532,658)

(1,999,385,258)

43,262,399,549
(5,737,558,980)

39,034,855,497
(5,610,093,075)

37,524,840,569
(30,354,451,977)

33,424,762,422
(26,592,382,801)

7,170,388,592
(4,437,895,864)
(766,223,974)

6,832,379,621
(4,780,161,529)
(692,201,269)

1,966,268,754
(395,199,411)
405,770,103

1,360,016,823
(182,184,602)
356,159,161

1,976,839,446
(726,142,880)

1,533,991 382
(1,211,530,291)

1,250,696,566
601,470,332

322,461,001
491,972,141

1,852,166,898
(437,286,484)

814,433,232
(390,737,914)

1,414,880,414

423,695,318

1,495,504,577
(80,624,163)

569,251,461
(145,556,143)

1,414,880,414

423,695,318

22.54

8.85

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Munsarim Saifullah Magqsood Ismail
Chief Executive Officer Director

Abdul Qadir
Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income :

Items that may be reclassified to consolidated statement

of profit or loss in subsequent periods

Items that will not be reclassified to consolidated statement
of profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Income on remeasurements of post employment benefit

obligation-net of tax

Unrealized loss during the year on re-measurement
of imnvestment classitied as fair value through OCI -net of tax

Share of other comprehensive (loss)/ mncome

trom associated companies - net of tax

Other comprehensive (loss)/ income - net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to :

Shareholders of the Holding Company
Non-controlling interest

1,414,880,414

423,695,318

38,763,305

(3,857,616)

(233,459,617)

2,253,417

896,140,406

(198,553,928)

898,393,823

1,216,326,486

1,322,089,141

1,296,039,520
(79,713,034)

1,467,561,425
(145,472,284)

1,216,326,486

1,322,089,141

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Munsarim Saifullah
Chief Executive Officer Director

Magqsood Ismail

Abdul Qadir
Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Total Reserves
Capital reserve Revenue reserve

Issued,

subscribed and R R Non-controlling

paid-up share Share i of i in || of i Tnterest
capital premium associated

Total
shareholders’
equity

companies

Balance a5 at July 01, 2019 638,047,500 579,265,000 916,862,067 (854,605,234) 5,810,366,250 6,451,888,083 179,714,690 7,269,650,273
Profit for the year e = 569,251 461 569,251,461 (145,556,143} 423,695,318
Other comprehensive income / (loss) - net of tax || 896,140 406 “ 2,169,558 898,300 964 83,859 || 398,393 823 |
Total comprehensive income // (loss) - net of tax . 896,140,406 571,421,019 1,467,561 425 (145,472,284) 1,322,089,141
Advance against issue of shares . = = = (55,000,000) (55,000,000)
Right shares issue 25,521,900 893,266,500 - = 93,266,500 216,507,466 1,135,295,866
Transactions with owners recognized

directly in equity:
Cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2019 @ Rs.3 . (191,414,250) (191 414,250) (191 414.250)
per share

Interim cash dividend for the period ended December 31,

2019 @ Rs. 0.50 per share - - - - - (31,902,375) (31,902,375) 2 (31,902,375)
Balance as at June 30, 2020 663,569,400 1,472,531,500 916,562,067 41,535,172 z 6,158,470,644 8,589,399,383 195,749,872 9,448,718,655
Profit for the year ~ = = || = “ = H 1,495,504,577 1,495,504,577 (30,624,1ﬂ3}|| 1,414,880,414
Other comprehensive income / (loss) - net of tax - - - (233,459,617) (3,857,616) 37,352,176 (199,465,057) 011,120 (198,553,928)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) - net of tax = = = (233,459,617) (3,857,616)  1,333,356,753 1,296,039,520 (79,713,034)  1,216,326,486
Final cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2020 @
Rs 3 per share

= -~ = < E (199,070,520) (199,070,820 = (199,070,820)
Balance as at June 30, 2021 663,569,400 1,472,531,500 916,862,067 (191,924,445) (3,857,616)  7,492,736,577 9,686,368,083 116,036,838 10,465,974,321

The annexzed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consohdated financial statements.

Munsarim Saifullah Maqgsood Ismail Abdul Qadir
Chiet Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations after working capital changes
Gratuity paid
Income tax paid-net

Long-term deposits refund

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure (including CWIP)

Acquisition of Intangible assets during the year
Investment i associated company

Proceed from dissolution of associated company
Dividend received

Short-term investments

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from long term financing-net off repayment
Lease repayments
Contribution from non-controlling shareholders
Receipts from right share issue - net of sponsors' loan - subordinated
Interest / mark-up paid
Dividend paid
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprise of:

Cash and bank balances

Running finance utilized under mark-up arrangements

2533 & 252

2020

Rupees ------------

2,206,366,725

(75,633,443)
(172,014,690)
9,231,691

5,639,616,679

(33,393,705)
(541,614,574)
7,295,409

1,967,950,283

5,071,903,809

(3,410,920,395)
(10,306,201)
(491,737,500)
188,107,892
629,020,362
(123,541,590)
595,409,013

(8,146,574,013)
(16,284,035)
122,169,516

(200,000,000)
60,521,079

(2,623,968,419)

(8,180,167,453)

2,026,095,522
(106,360,035)
(759,726,757)
(198,813,008)

6,363,077,496
(67,717,487)
161,507,466
3,430,663
(1,221,558,242)
(223,010,340)

961,195,722

5,015,729,556

305,177,586
(1,355,922,287)

1,907,465,912
(3,263,388,199)

(1,050,744,701)

(1,355,922,287)

158,547,846
(1,209,292,547)

358,384,421
(1,714,806,708)

(1,050,744,701)

(1,355,922,287)

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Munsarim Saifullah
Chief Executive Officer

Magsood Ismail

Director

Abdul Qadir
Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

The Group consist of:
Holding Company : Ismail Industries Limited

Subsidiary Company : Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited
Ismail Industries Limited

Ismail Industries Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Karachi, Pakistan as a prvate limited
company on June 21, 1988. On November 01, 1989 the Company was converted into a public limited company.
The registered office / Head Office of the Holding Company is situated at 17 - Bangalore Town, Shahrah-e-
Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan. Previously the shares of the Holding Company were listed on the Karachi and Lahore
Stock Exchanges. However, due to mtegration of these Stock Exchanges mto Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
effective from January 11, 2016 the shares of the company are now quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.
Principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and trading of sugar confectionery items, biscuits, potato
chips, nutritional products, cast polypropylene (CPP) and Biaxially-oriented polyethylene terephthalate (BOPET)
film under the brands of 'Candyland', 'Bisconni', 'Snackeity' and '"Astro films' respectively.

Geographical location and addresses of business units including manufacturing units of the Holding Company
are as under:

Factories:

Unit-1 Unit-6

C-230, Hub H.I.'T.E., Balochistan. D91, D-92 & D-94 North Western Zone, Port Qasim.
Unit-2 Unit-7

B-140, Hub H.I1.T.E., Balochistan. E164-168, North Western Zone, Port Qasim.
Unit-3 Unit-8

G-1, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. E154-157, North Western Zone, Port Qasim.

Unit-4 Unit-9

G-22, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. G-1A, Hub H1.T.E., Balochistan.
Unit-5

38-C, Sundar Industrial Estate, Raiwind Road, Lahore.

In addition to above it is impracticable to disclose other administrative offices and warehouses as required under

paragraph VI(1)(i) of part 1 of the forth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017.

Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited

The Subsidiary Company was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on May 5, 2010, under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act 2017). The registered office of the Subsidiary
Company is located at 17, Bangalore Town, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. Principal activities of the Subsidiary
Company are manufacturing, processing, compounding, formulating, importing, exporting, packaging, marketing,
wholesale and retail, trading and selling of all kinds of pharmaceutical, animal health, allied consumer products,
drugs and medicines

Geographical location and addresses of business units including manufacturing units of the Subsidiary Company
are as under:

Head Office:
17 - Bangalore Town, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

Factory:
D-93, North Western Industrial Zone, Port Qasim.

Administrative office:
24/1 - Bangalore Co-operative Housing Society, Block 7/8, Banglore Town, Karachi.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS
The Holding Company in its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on April 12, 2021 has approved an equity
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investment up to Rs. 1.50 billion to be made in its associated company M/s. Ismail Resin (Private) Limited (TRL)
incorporated on January 13, 2021 with the intention of setting-up a Polyester Resin (PET Resin) manufacturing
plant.

During the financial year 2021, the erection and installation phase of BOPET project has been completed and it
has started commercial production in somewhere between third quarter of this financial year. The relevant trial

production cost has been capitalised as mentioned in note 6.7 of these consolidated financial statements.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

-International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of anddirectives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions of

and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as
otherwise disclosed in the respective accounting policies' and the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Pakistani Rupee, which is the Group's functional and presentation currency. The figures have been rounded off
to the nearest Pakistani Rupee.

Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its
Subsidiary Company.

A company is a subsidiary, if the Holding Company directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds
more than fifty percent of its voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than fifty
percent of its directors. The Holding company can govern the financial & operating policies of subsidiary.

Subsidiary Company is consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiary company are prepared for the same reporting period as the Holding
Company, using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated in full.

Where the ownership of a subsidiary is less than hundred percent and therefore, a non controlling interest (INCI)

exists, the NCI is allocated its share of the total comprehensive income for the year, even if that results in a
deficit balance.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of Subsidiary Company are consolidated on a line by line basis and
carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the Subsidiary Company’s
shareholders’ equity in these consolidated financial statements.

Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant to the
Group and adopted in the current year

The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of
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IFRS which became effective during the current year.

Standard or Interpretation

Various Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
IFRS 3 'Definition of a business' Amendment to IFRS 3

TAS 1/IAS 8 Definition of Material' (Amendments to IAS 1 and TAS 8)
IFRS 9 and IAS 39 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 1

Adoption of the above standards have no significant effect on the amounts for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant but not yet

effective and not early adopted by the Group

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from

the dates mentioned below agamnst the respective standard or iterpretaton.

Standard or Interpretation

IBOR Reform and its Effects on Financial Reporting - Phase 2

Fees m the ‘10 per cent’ Test for Derecogmtion of Financial Liabilities
(Amendment to IFRS 9)

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fu.lﬁlling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
(Amendments to IAS 16)

Subsidiary as a Pirst-time Adoptet (Alnendnlent to IFRS 1)
Taxation in Fair Value Measurements (Amendment to TAS 41)

Updaung a Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS
3)

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS
1)

Deterred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities amsing from a Single
Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12)

Detfinition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS §)

Disclosure Initiative - Accounting Policies

The Group 1s in the process of assessj_ng the i{npact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the

published standards on these consolidated financial statements of the company.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Following new standards have been i1ssued by the International Accouﬂtiﬂg Standards Board (LXSB) which are

yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of appﬁcabﬂit}f 1n Pakistan.

Effective Date

(Annual periods beginning

on or after)

January 1, 2020
January 1, 2020
January 1, 2020
January 1, 2020

Effective Date

(Annual periods beginning on

or after)
January 1, 2021
January 1, 2022

January 1, 2022
January 1, 2022

anuary 1, 2022
ry
January 1, 2022

January 1, 2022

January 1, 2023

January 1, 2023

January 1, 2023
January 1, 2023
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Standard or Interpretation IASB effective date
(Annual periods beginning on

or after)
IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts' January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2023

USE OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conforrnity with the approved accounthg standards
as applicable in Pakistan requires management to make judgmcnts, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical exper_ience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about the ca:crying values of assets and liabilities that are not readﬂy apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. The estumates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoimng basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recogmzed in the pertod m which the estimate 1s revised if the revision
affects only that pcriod, or in the period of the revision and future penods if the revision affects both current and
future periods

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the foHowing accounting

estimates and judgments which are significant to the consolidated financial statements:

Note
a) Property, plant and equipment 4.1

b) Stock-in-trade, stores and spares 4.2
c) Trade debts and other receivables 4.3
d) Taxation 4.4

e) Staff returement benefits 4.5
f) Impairment of non financial assets 5.3
g2) Leases liabilities 513
h) Provisions 5.15
1) Contingent liabilities 5.23
1) Impairment of financial assets 525.5

Property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used in the
calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assets is made
for possible impairment on an annual basis. In making these esumates, the Group uses the technical resources
available with the Group. Any change in esumates in the future might affect the carrving amount of respective

item of property, plant and c—:quiprnent with corresponding effects on the dcprcciation chargc and irnpa_irment.

Stock-in-trade, stores and spares
The Group's management reviews the net realizable value (NRV) of stock-mn-trade, stores and spares to assess

any diminution m the respective carrying values and wherever required, provision for impairment is made.

Trade debts and Other receivables

Impairmcnt loss agai_nst doubtful trade and other debts 1s recorded in accordance with basis mentioned in note
5.25.5 of these consolidated finacial statements.

Taxation

In making the estimate for imncome taxes by the Group, the management refers to the current income tax law and

the decisions of appellatc authorities on certain issues in the Past.
Staff retirement benefits

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 25.1 to these consolidated financial
statements for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligations. Any changes in these assumptions in

future years xnjght affect the amounts recognizcd 1n those years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set

out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years.

Property, plant and equipment

Owned

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and all additions except capital work-in-progress are

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost of property, plant and
equipment comprises acquisition cost and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working
condition. Borrowing cost including the exchange risk fee (if any) that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction and production of a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of the cost during the period in which
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are carried out.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Normal
repairs and maintenance are charged to the Consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major

renewals and improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Depreciation on assets other than leasehold land is calculated so as to write-off the assets over their expected
economic lives under the diminishing balance method at rates given in note. 6.2 to the consolidated financial
statements. Depreciation on leasehold land is charged to the statement of profit and loss, applying the straight-
line method at rates given in note.6.2 to these consolidated financial statements whereby the cost is written off
over the lease term. Depreciation is charged from the month when the asset 1s available for use and ceased from
the month of disposal.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of assets represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as other income or expense.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease lability, for any lease

payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred, an estimate of costs

to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a diminishing balance as given in
note.6.1 to these consolidated financial statements. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any,
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The Group has elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The lease payments
associated with these leases is recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment if any. All expenditures connected to the
specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress.
These expenditures are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and equipment as and when the assets
start operation. Impairment losses, if any, are recorded on the basis as defined in note 5.3.

Intangible assets
An mtangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Cost of the intangible asset (i.e. computer software)
includes purchase cost and directly attributable expenses incidental to bring the asset for its intended use.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an expense as and when incurred.
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amortization is charged over the estimated useful life of the asset on a systematic basis applying the straight line
method. The impairment losses if any are recorded on the basis mentioned in note. 5.3.

Useful lives of intangible operating assets are reviewed, at each reporting date and adjusted if the impact of
amortization is significant.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation / amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An mmpairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss
had been recognized.

Investments in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding between 20% and 50% of the voting rights or common directorship. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting unless other law and regulation prescribe different criteria.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income/ loss of the
associate after the date of acquisition.

Long term deposits
These are stated at amortized cost which represents the fair value of consideration given.

Stores and spare

All stores, spares and loose tools either imported or purchased locally are charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss when consumed and are valued at lower of moving weighted average cost or estimated NRV except
for items-in-transit which are stated at invoice value plus other incidental charges paid thereon up to the
reporting date. Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving items where necessary and is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Stock-in-trade
These are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost 1s determined as follows:

Types of stock Valuation method

a) Raw and packing materials weighted average cost method
b) Work-in-process weighted average cost method

c) Finished goods lower of weighted average cost or net realizable value
d) Goods in-transit invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Judgment and estimates

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and selling goods of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. A review is made on each
reporting date on inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and declines in net realisable value and an
allowance is recorded against the inventory balances for any such declines.

Trade debts and other receivables

These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at fair
value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in
hand and bank balances, short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and short term running finances under mark

up arrangements.
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Interest / Mark-up bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are mutially recognized at the fair value of the consideration recerved less directly

attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost with any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction cost) and the redernption value 1s recognized in the consolidated statement of proﬁt or loss except
for any amount included 1n the cost of property, plant and equiprnent over the period of the borrowing using the

effective interest method.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acqu.isition, construction or Production of qua]ifying assets (those
that take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use) are capitalized as part of the cost of the
relevant asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated statement of proﬂt or loss in the Period

]‘.Il W}licll tllCY arc i.ncurred.

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity

The Group operates an untunded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees with one or more years
of service with the Group. Provision for gratuity 1s made to cover obligation under the scheme in respect of
employees who have completed the muumum qualifying period. Provision has been made in accordance with
actuarial recommendations summarized in note. 25.1 using the projected unit credit method.

Lease liabilities

From 1 July 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use assets and a correspondmg lLiabiity at the date at which
the leased asset 1s available for use by the Group. The lease liability 1s 1utially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the mterest rate implicit in the
lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate eXpected to
be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee 1s
reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for terrninating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives recervable. The extension and termination
options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
these options.

The lease liabﬂity is Subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change m fixed lease payments or an

imdex or rate, change in the Group's estumate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value

guarantee, or 1£ t}.lE G'IOUP changes itS assessment Of Whether it WLU. EXEICiSC a purchase, CXECLlSiOLl or terrnination

option.

Taxation

Current

The charge for current tax is based on taxable income at current rates of taxauon after taking mto account tax
credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or 1 accordance with the final tax regime, where applicable, of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) or the mummum tax under section 113 of the Ordinance or
Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT) under section 113C of the Ordinance, whichever 1s higher.

Deferred

Deferred tax 1s recognized using the statement of financial Position liabﬂjty method on all temporary differences
between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and their tax bases.

Deterred tax liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary differences.

Deterred tax assets are recogmuzed for all major deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductble temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of the deferred tax asset 1s reviewed at each reporting date and 1s recognized only to the
extent that it i1s probable that future taxable proﬂts will be available aga_inst which the assets may be utilized.
Deterred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized.
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Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent
that it becomes probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is utilized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at
the reporting date.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized in these consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other payables are measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid
in future for goods and services.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistani Rupee at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
date of transaction. Monetary assets and monetary liabilities in foreign currencies as at the reporting date are
expressed in Rupee at rates of exchange prevailing on that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences are taken to the Consolidated Statement of profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.
Operating segment comprises of food and plastic

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved by the
shareholders.
Related parties transactions

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm’s length at
normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation modes, as
admissible, except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to the approval of the board of directors, it is
in the interest of the Group to do so.

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is

calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and weighted average number of ordinary shares for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is disclosed when:

a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity; or

b) a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability.
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o/
5.24 Operating, administrative and selling expenses

T]lese EXPC-:HSCS are [Ccoglﬁzed J_f]. t]:le Coﬂsohdated Stﬂtﬁmeﬂt Of Proﬁt or lOSS uPOIJ utilizatiofﬂ Of tlle Se[ViCCS or
as mcurred except for specifically stated 1 the Consolidated financial statements.

5.25 Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and subsequent measurement

5.25.1 Initial recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which 1s the fair value of the consideration given or

received. These are subsequently measured at fair value or amortized cost as the case may be.
5.25.2 Classification of financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

- at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")

- at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"), or
- at amortized cost.

The G[Ollp deterrnines dlﬁ classiﬁcations Of ﬁnancml assets at nntxal recogﬂjtion. The ClaSSiﬁCﬂtiOl’l Of
iﬂStﬂl[l’lEIltS (Othﬂf T.l'lﬂﬂ C(lllity instruments) ]-.S dflVﬁ‘Il by tllC Group's bllSj.IlCSS l'IlOdCl fOL’ Hlﬁﬂﬂgiﬂg tllﬁ t‘].IlﬂIle.Q.l

assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:

- the financial asset 1s held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give nise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

- the financial asset 1s held within a business model whose objective aclueved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling the financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give nise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of

principzl and interest on the principal amount outs tandiﬂg.

By detault, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVIPL.

5.25.3 Classification of financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities 1n the following categories:
- at fair value through proftit or loss ("FVTPL"), or
- at amortized cost

Financial hiabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective yield method, unless they are required to be

measured at FVIPL (such as mstrument held for trading or derivatives) or the Group has opted to measure them
at FVIPL.

5.25.4 Subsequent measurement
i) Financial assets at FVTOCI
Investments in equity mstruments at FVITOCI are Lnitia]ly recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

Subse(]uently, they are Ineasured at fﬂlI Vﬂhle, Wltll gﬂiﬂ.S or IOSSCS arising ffOll'l changes J-.Il fﬂl‘.f Vﬂ.llle, ICCOgIliSCd J-.il

Ot]JEL’ COmPl’EllCﬂSiVE income/(loss).

ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are tmitially recognised at fair value plus or minus the transaction

cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial Liabiites and
subsequently carried at amortised cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVIPL are mmitially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are

CXPCI]SCC]. lﬂ tllC Consolidated statement Of proﬁt or IOSS. Realised and llI].fCﬂliSﬁd gams and IOSSCS arising from

changes iﬂ tllC f:m‘: value Of ﬂilﬂilciﬂl assets ﬂ.ﬂd habﬂiﬁes held at FVITPL are illCllldCd 1.11 the COﬂSOthtEd
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statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Where the management has opted to recognise a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with the
Group's own credit risk will be recognised in other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets measured at amortized
cost and FVTOCI at an amount equal to life ime ECLs except for the financial assets in which there is no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or financial assets which are determine to have low
credit risk at the reporting date, in which case twelve months' ECL is recorded. The following were either
determine to have low or there was no credit risk since initial recognition and at the reporting date:

- long term investment;

- long term deposits;

- loans and advances;

- trade deposits;

- short term investment;

- other receivables; and

- bank balances;

Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs.

Life time ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. Twelve months ECLs are portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible within
twelve months after the reporting date.

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present value of all
cash short falls (i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and cash
flows that the Group expects to receive).

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in entirety or a portion thereof.

5.25.6 Derecognition
i) Financial assets
The Group derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets
expire or when it transfer the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and reward of ownership to
another entity. On derecognition of financial assets measured at amortized cost, the difference between the assets

carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable recognised in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt mnstrument classified as at FVTOCI,

the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve reclassified to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity mstrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, but 1s transferred to retain earnings.
ii) Financial liabilities
The Group derecognises its financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabilities
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in consolidated Statement of profit or loss.

5.25.7 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in these consolidated statement of
financial position if the Group has a legal right to set-off the transactions and also intends either to settle on a
net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The Group is in the business of manufacturing and sale of goods. Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of the goods is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
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to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods net of discounts and sales related indirect
taxes. The Group has generally concluded that it 1s the principal i its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods before transferring them to the customer.

The following are the specific recognition criteria that must be met before revenue 1s recognized:

a) Revenue from local sale of goods is recognized when the goods are dispatched and in case of export sales,
when the goods are shipped Le. when performance obligation are satisfied.

Other income

b) Processing income is recognized when services are rendered.

¢) Gain and loss on sale of investments is taken to income in the period in which it arises.

d) Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

e) Dividend income, other than those from investments in associates, are recognized at the time the night to
receive payment is established.
Contract Assets

Contract assets arise when the Group performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a customer
before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due.

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Group to transfer goods to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods, a
contract hability is recognized when the payment 1s made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the
Group performs its performance obligations under the contract.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the holding company’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill 1s tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that the value may be impaired, and carried at cost less accumulated

impairment losses, if any. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
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6.5 Particulars of immovwvable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

Locations Usage of immovable property ‘Total area

17 - Bangalore Town, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. Registered office / Head office 1000 sq. Yd
C-230, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Mamafacturing facility - Unit 1 7.54 acres
B-140, Hub HIT.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 2 4.59 acres
G-1, Hub HI.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 3 3.486 acres
G-22, Hub HI.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 4 9.00 acres
38-C, Sundar Industrial Estate, Raiwind Road, Lahore. Manufacturing facility - Unit 5 4.02 acres
D-91, D-92 & D-94 North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi Manmufacruring facility - Unit 6 7.50 acres
E164-168, North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi Manufacturing facility - Unit 7 6.24 acres
E154-157, North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi Manufacturing facility - Unit 8 5.04 acres
G-1A, Hub H.I.T.E., Balochistan. Manufacturing facility - Unit 9 3.185 acres
D-101 /M, D-101 /NN, S.I.'T.E area, Nooriabad, For future expansion 20.50 acres
PT2-24-2402, Pearl Tower, Plot # 7 (R9) Cresent Bay, Karachi. Administrative purpose 2,209.57 sq.ft
A-39 North Western Zone, Port Qasim, Karachi For future expansion 4.7 acres
Sabzi mandi road, Chak no. 241 Dist. Faisalabad For future expansion 0.88 acres

39-B, Sundar Industrial Estate, Raiwind Road, Lahore. For future expansion 1.138 acres

6.6 Following are the particulars of the disposed assets having a book value of rupees five hundred thousand or more.

Accumulated Net book Sale Gain / Particulars

= Relationshi
depreciation amount proceeds of buyer P

Leasehold Land

Soorty Enterprises Independent

208,146,954 4768339 293378,615 500,000,000 206,621,385 (Peivate) Limited. paty

Negotiation

298,146,954 4,768,339 293,378,615 500,000,000 206,621,385
Vehicles
Suzuki Cultus
Jubilee General Insurance
Takaful Claim
1,765,250 388,355 1,576,895 1,012,336 (364,559) Tariq Aziz Employee Company Policy
1,765,250 388,355 1,376,895 1,553,420 176,525 Junaid Ahmed Employee Company Policy
1,771,550 494 900 1,276,650 949 594 (327,056) Qaiser Shahzad Employee Company Policy
Haider Nawab
Akhter
1,598,200 522 884 875,316 1,248,954 373,638 Yousuf Peerwani Employee Company Policy
1,398,450 555416 843,034 665,375 (177,659) Salman Rafiq Employee Company Policy
1,398,450 588,476 809,974 558,340 (251,654) Nazim Naseem Employee Company Policy
1,398,450 588,476 809,974 558,340 (251,634) Thsan Ahmed Employee Company Policy
1,265,000 605,238 659,762 847,516 187,554 Naveed Tariq Employee Company Policy
1,265,000 642,852 622,148 822,023 199,875 Ms.Mahira Zaidi Employee Company Policy

1,765,250 220,483 1,535,767 1,760,000 224233 TInsurance Policy

1,428,750 469,112 959,638 1,183,705 224,067 Employee Company Policy

1,269,050 647,318 621,732 696,338 74,606 Muhmmad Kashif Employee Company Policy
1,272,950 671,763 601,187 809,888 208,701 Zahid Qayum Employee Company Policy

Shehzad Hussain
Sheikh

1,250,000 651,612 598,388 593,873 (4,515) Taimoor Igbal Employee Company Policy
21,684,550 8,127,344 13,557,206 14,069,390 512,184

Suzuki Mehran

1,272,950 683,104 589,846 809,888 220,042 Employee Company Policy

Independent
party
Independent
party
837,825 254,346 583,479 890,000 306,521 Wagqar Hussain Employee Company Policy
Jubilee General
Takaful
Muhammad
Ashraf

Ismail Igbal Independent
Security party
852,975 348,577 504,398 790,000 285,602 Naveed Ahmed Employee Company Policy
840,000 288,179 551,821 770,000 218,179 Jameel Shahzad Employee Company Policy
Muhammad
Tanveer Igbal

857,980 273,028 584,952 780,000 195,048 Waqgar Hussain Negotiation

857,980 273,028 584,952 780,000 195,048 Wagqar Hussain Negotiation

873,175 295,485 577,692 860,000 282,308 Employee Insurance Policy

838,575 277,036 561,539 840,000 278,461 Employee Company Policy

852975 518,313 534,662 780,000 245,338 Negotiation

860,000 313,716 546,284 885,000 538,716 Employee Company Policy

7,671,485 2,641,706 5,029,779 7,375,000 2,345,221
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Accumulated
depreciation

Net book
amount

Sale
proceeds

Particulars
of buyer

Relationship

Suzuki Alto
1,217,727
1,325,905
2,543,632

Suzuki Bolan
939,317

939,317

Toyota Corolla
2,792,813

2,331,290

2,331,290
2,079,000

1,935,100
1,867,000

1,819,385

1,771,500
2,411,915
2,331,290

2,046,450
1,812,375
25,529,408

Toyota Yaris
2,404 707

2,404,707
Land Cruiser

11,882,000

11,882,000
Honda Civic
2,984,958
2,808,390
2,430,750
2,633,200
2,517,500
2,517,500

2534977
2,810,500
21,237,775
93,892,874
392,039,828

253,492
386,963
640,455

61,838
61,838

740,095
703,964

956,480
783,090

975,672

1,125,602

1,118,498

1,182,004
941,349
984,537

1,178,010
1,068,691
11,757,992

280,549
280,549

9,154,962
9,154,962

1,506,981
1,461,730
1,202,122
1,429 400
1,363,957
1,364,212
1,880,836
1,653,953

11,863,191

44,528,037

49,296,376

964,235
938,042
1,903,177

877.479
877,479

2,052,718
1,627,326

1,374,810
1,295,910

059 428

741,398

700,887

589,496
1,470,566
1,346,753
868,440
743,684
13,771,416

2124158
2,124,158

2.727,038
2,727,038

1,477,977
1,346,660
1,228,628
1,203,800
1,153,543
1,153,288

654,141
1,156,547
9,374,584

49,364,837

1,207,727
1,118,691
2,326,418

1,045,000
1,045,000

1,480,029
2,304,000

1,970,090
1,521,736

1,284,524
961,546

1,140,543

715,774
1,804,061
931,866

1,221,919
1,186,923
16,523,911

2,725,000
2,725,000

10,000,000  7.272.962

10,000,000

1,819,527
1,719,717
1,527,120
1,503,503
1,675,038
1,555,402

1,031,268

1,539,698
12,371,273
66,435,992

243,492 Murtaza mehdi
179,749 Ali Adnan
423,241

167,521 Murtaza mehdi
167,521

(572,689) Ahmed Igbal
Jubilee General
Takaful

Maryam Saleem
Khuaja Ziauddin
Rana Iftikhar
Ahmed
Muhammad Zia
Ul Hasan Abidi

Rahim Hussain

676,674

596,180
225,826

325,096
220,148

439 656
- Bhalwani

126,278 Salman Sayani
333495 Ahmed Raza
(414,887) Junaid Bawany
Muhammad
Sarfaraz
445 239 Iftikhar Ahmed

353,479

2,752,495

600,842 M.Azam Iqbal
600,842

New Gagais
Automobile

7,272,962

341,550 Sajjad Ahmed
373,057 Yasir Mehmood
298,492 Aqeel Abbas
299,703 Jawwad Ali Tipu
521,495 Mr Asifl

402,114 Faisal Aheed
Ghulam Farooq
Sh

Ehtisham Khan

377,127

383,151

2,996,689
17,071,155

342,743,452 566,435,992 223,692,540

Employee
Employee

Independent

Employee
Insurance
Claim

Employee
Employee

Employee
Employee

Employee

Employee
Employee
Employee

Employee

Independent

Customer

Independent

Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee

Employee

Employee

Company Policy
Company Policy

Negotiation

Company Policy
Insurance Policy

Company Policy
Company Policy

Company Policy
Company Policy

Company Policy

Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy

Company Policy

Negotiation

Negotiation

Negotiation

Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy

Company Policy

Company Policy

Agporegate of assets disposed off having net book value below Rs. 500,000 each
INet book

Aarimouint
46,084
19,475,707
425,100
574,409
20,521,300
363,264,752

Sale

proceeds
90,000
27,998.221
520,000
364,800
28,973,021
595,409,013

Accumulated

Cost Gain / (loss)

depreciaton
157,129
23,932,141
94,900
563,481
24,747,651
74,044,027

203,213
43,407,848
520,000
1,137,890
45,268,951
437,308,779

Plant and machinery
Vehicles
Equipments

43,916
8,522,514
94,900

(209.609)
8,451,721
232,144,261

Computer

Sub-total
2021 - total

2020 - total 86,292,752 46,689.793 39 602959 60,521,079 20,918,120

6.6.1 All disposals are made through negotiation otherwise speciféd in 6.6 of these consolidated financial statements.




Capital work-in-progress

Civil works
Plant and machinery

Equipment and fittings

Movement of capital work in progress:

Balance as at July 1, 2019

Capital expenditure incurred during the year
Trial production cost incurred - net
Transferred to operating fixed assets
Balance as at June 30, 2020

Capital expenditure incurred during the year
Trial production cost incurred - net
Transferred to operating fixed assets
Balance as at June 30, 2021

ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Note Civil works

Plant and
machinery

96,590,116
777,802,984

(204,644.676)

541,443.730
6,941,725 541

231,817,304
(2,541,682,617)

2021

2020

-—-—-——-—Rupees-—-—-—

196,764,243
801,243,839
971,931

669,748 424
5,173,303,958

998,980,013

5 843,052,382

Rupees

Equipment
and fittings

Total

638,033,846
7,719,528,525
231,817,304
(2,746,327,293)

669,748,424
1,200,081,517

(1,673,065,698)

5,173,303,958

1,672,058,932
159,343 481

(6,203,462,532)

9,789,735

5,843,052,382

2,881,930,184
159,343,481

(8,817,804)  (7,885,346,034)

196,764,243

801,243,839

971,931

998,980,013

The Holding Company has completed its trial production phase of BOPET line IT in this financial year. Therefore, the related sales and
expenses have been transferred to CWIP as trial production cost.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software
Add: Addition for the year

Less: Amortisation charge for the year
Closing net Book Value

As at June 30
Cost
Add: Addition for the year

Accumulated amortisation

Net book value
Amortisation rate (%)

Software includes license which are amortized on straight line basis over a period of 36 months.

The amortisation charge has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales
Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

GOODWILL

This represents amount recognised on acquisition of subsidiary

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Investment in associated companies

Share deposit money

Investment in associated companies

Novelty Enterprises (Private) Limited
The Bank of Khyber

Note
32
33
34

8.1

2021

2020

----—-—-—-Rupees-—---—---

55,293,210
10,306,201

(31,868,628)

85453,143

(30,159,933)

33,730,783

55293210

88,667,156
10,306,201

(65,242,574)

88,667,156

(33,373.946)

33,730,783

55293210

33.33%

2021

33.33%

2020

Rupees

15,157,980
8,369,175
8,341,473

15,157,980
8,369,175
6,632,778

31,868,628

30,159,933

11,959,187

11,959,187

3,180,003,578
491,737,500

3,670,319,873

3,671,741,078

3,670,319,873

3,180,003,578

228.703,777
3,441,616,096

3,180,003,578

3,670,319,873
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Novelty Enterprises (Private) Limited

Novelty enteprises (Private) Limited (INEL) has filed-the application with SECP for winding-up . The NEL has paid out full dividend and
remaining equity is distributed among shareholders with respect to their shareholding . The Holding Company held Nil (2020: 33%) voting
and equity interest in (NEL). The shares of NEL are not publicly listed on a stock exchange and hence published price quotes were not
available. The financial reporting date of NEL was June 30.

The Bank of Khyber

The total shareholding of the Holding Company including the recent bonus entitlement of 5% announce by the Bank of Khyber (the
Bank) is 256,555,982 shares (2020: 244,339,031 shares) which represents 24.43% of paid-up capital of the Bank (2020: 24.43%). In
addition to this, the Holding Company also has representation on the board of directors of the Bank. The Bank concludes its annual
financial results on December 31 as required by the State Bank of Pakistan for financial institutions. Amounts in these consolidated
financial statements have been taken from annual audited financial results for the year ended December 31, 2019 and December 31,
2020 and from reviewed condensed interim financial information of the Bank for the six-months periods ended June 30, 2020 and June
30, 2021. Adjustment to confirm to the Bank's accounting policies is not warranted as the Bank is not engaged in like transaction under
similar circumstances

The market value of holding in the Bank as on June 30, 2021 was Rs. 4,156.206 million (June 30, 2020: Rs. 3,467.171 million)

These investments are accounted for under the equity method. The aggregate amount of the associates recognized in these consolidated

financial statements are as follows:
Novelty Enterprises

(Private) Limited
2021 " 2020 2021 2020

The Bank of Khyber Total

Balance as at July 1 3,441,616,096 2,001,232 631 228,703,777 228,717,751 3,670,319,873 2229,950,382
Investment made during the year 9212 - 16,284,035 - - - 16,284,035
Share of profit/ (loss) 379,554,402 491,986,115 221,915,930 (13,974) 601,470,332 491,972,141
Proceed from dissolution (188,107,892) (188,107,892)

Dividend received (366,508,547) (122,169,516) (262,511,815) (629,020,362) (122,169,516)
1,054,282,831 - (274,658,373) 1,054,282,831

Share of other comprehensive
(274,658,373)

income/ ( loss)

Balance as at June 30 3,180,003,578 3,441,616,096 228,703,777  3,180,003,578 3,670,319,873
Ismail Resin (Private) Limited.

As mentioned in note 2.1 of these Consolidated financial statements, the Holding Company has made an investment in its newly
incorporated associated company M/S. Ismail Resin (Private) Limited amounting t®s. 491.74 million. This amount is classified as share
deposit money and the allotment against this investment has been made subsequent to year end as mentioned in note: 48.1.

Ismail Resin (Private) Ltd

Note 2021 2020
Balance as at July 1 -
Share deposit money paid during the year 92 491,737,500
Balance as at June 30 491,737,500

Summarized financial information in respect of the Holding Company’s associates as at June 30 is set out below:

Ismail Resin (Private) Novelty Enterprises
Timited (Private) Limited
2021 2021 2020 2021 2020
Unaudited Andited Aundited

e —-Rup

The Bank of Khyber

Non-current assets 615,581,090 - 560,351,964
Current assets 209,032,721 - 1,068,166

Total assets 328,776,835,000 318,194.917,000 824,613,811 561,420,130

328,776,835,000 | 318,194,917,000 | |

Non-current liabilities 168,697,000 -
Current liabilities 426,159 33,060
Total liabilities 312,089,306,000 300.436,247,000 169,123,159 33,060

312,089,306,000 ] 300,436,247,000

Revenue 6,774,926,000 5,673,133,000 = = —

Profit / (loss) for the year 1,553,788,000 2.,014,047,000 (159,348) 790,627,192 (35,750)
Other comprehensive income
for the year (1,124,372,000) 4,315,925.000 = =: =

‘Total comprehensive income /
(loss) for the year 429,416,000 6,329 .972.000 (159,348) - 790,627,192 (35,750)

All transfers of funds to the Holding Company, i.e. distribution of cash dividends, are subject to approval by means of a resolution
passed by the shareholders of the associates. During the year, Rs. 1.50 per share cash dividend have been received from the Bank of
Khyber (2020: Rs. 0.50 per share) and 5% bonus shares (2020: nil). Further the detail of dividend pertaining to NEL is disclosed in note
9.1.3 of these consolidated financial statements.




LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Lease - Conventional

Lease - Islamic

Less: Current maturity - Conventional
Less: Current maturity - Islamic

Utilities
Others

STORES AND SPARES
Stores

Spare parts

Others

ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

112
112
11.2

2021

2020

-—--—---——-—Rupees-—--——-—

3,482,300
9,287,190
(1,580,900)
(3,901,690)

13,702,400
12,282,390
(8,686,100)

7,286,900

14,184,251
9,987,597

17,298,690

14,079,151
9,312,598

31,458,748

40,690,439

137,061,509
326,639,923
17,624,539

101,800,209
235,920,613
30,223 741

481,325,971

367,944,563

Stock and spares of the Group is under hypothecation charge against short term finances as mentioned in note. 28.

Reconciliation of provision for slow moving spare parts

Stores and spares

Provision for slow moving
- opening
- charge for the year
- closing

Stores and spares - net

Stores and spares
Provision for slow moving
- opening
- charge for the year
- closing

Stores and spares - net

STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw materials

Packing materials
Work-in-process

Finished goods

2021

Spare parts

Others

Total

145,652,929

Rupees -

326,639,923

17,624,539

489,917,391

(8,591,420)

(8,591,420)

(8,591,420)

(8,591,420)

137,061,509

326,639,923

17,624,539

481,325,971

2020

Spare parts

Total

110,391,629

235,920,613

30,223,741

376,535,983

(8,591,420)

(8,591,420)

(8,591,420)

(8,591,420)

101,800,209

235,920,613

30,223741

367,944,563

Note
122 & 123
122
32
122

2021

2020

Rupees

3,929,756,610
842,685,060
232,913,397
2,718,328,216

2,819.975,284
674,934,704
175,501,874
2,741,590,585

7,723,683,283

6,412,002 447

Stock-in-trade of the Group is under hypothecation charge against short term finances as mentioned in note. 28.

Reconciliation of provision for stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade
Provision for slow moving
- opening
- charge for the year
- reversal
- closing

Stock-in-trade-net

321 &322

2021

Packing

Finished

3,943,333,466

995,533,609

2,718,328,216

(12,959,090)
(617,766)

(109,848,549)
(43,000,000)

(13,576,856)

(152,848,549)

3,929,756,610

842,685,060

2,718,328,216
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Stock-in-trade
Provision for slow moving
- opening
- reversal of provision
- closing
Stock-in-trade-net

This includes raw materials in transit amounting to Rs. 1,130,732,151 (June 30, 2020: Rs. 275,163,978).

TRADE DEBTS

Considered good

- export-secured

- local- unsecured
Trade debts

Allowance for expected credit loss
Trade debts - net

2020

Raw
mategials

Packing
materials

Finished
goods

2,832,934,374

Rupees
784,783,252

2,741,590,585

(13,384,583)
425493

(109,848,548)

(12,959,090)

(109,848 548)

2,819.975,284

674,934,704

2,741,590,585

Note

13.4

13.3

2021

---—--—-—-Rupees

542,466,672
2,952,026,509

1,056,320,953
2,410,262,109

3,494,493,181
(100,970,640)

3,466,583,062
(95,970,640

3,393,522,541

3,370,612,422

Trade debts of the Group is under hypothecation charge against short term finances as mentioned in note. 28.

There is no receivables from related party at reporting date (2020: Rs. Nil). Further it does not include defaulter parties in export

customers.

Allowance for expected credit loss

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge during the year - net
Balance at the end of the year

Age analysis trade debts

Not Due

More than 45 days but not more than 3 months
More than 3 months but not more than 6 months
More than 6 months but not more than 1 year
More than 1 year

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loan to employees - secured
Advances - unsecured

- suppliers

- LC margins

14.2

2021

2020

Rupees

(95,970,640)
(5,000,000)

(76,343,145)
(19,627,495)

(100,970,640)

(95,970,640)

2,080,423,623
505,371,718
514,939,516
328,912,781
64,845,543

2,561,220,208
359,316,255
303,067,564
177,365,639
65,613,396

3,494,493,181

3,466,583,062

45,976,065

1,450,103,357
137,526,630

51,612,617

839,444,237
61,078,388

1,633,606,052

952,135,742

These represent interest free loans that ate to be repaid within a period of one year in equal monthly installments. Any outstanding loan
due from an employee at the time of leaving the service of the Group is adjustable against the final settlement of staft.

Allied Bank Limited.
Bank Alfalah Limited.
Meezan Bank Limited.
Bank Al Habib Limited
Standard Chartered Bank

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Trade deposits - unsecured
Short term prepayments
Current maturity of lease deposits- Conventional

Current maturity of lease deposits- Islamic

Note

2021

---—--—-—-Rupees

75,112,954
31,315,236
31,008,440

29,604,128

24,447,200
7,027,560

137,526,630

61,078,888

26,165,635
7,804,936
1,580,900
3,901,690

22,517,610
12,611,798
8,686,100

39,453,161

43,815,508




ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2021 2020
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS Note Rupees
Term Finance Certificates 16.1 194,840,000 200,000,000
Pakistan Investment Bonds 16.2 123,541,590 -
318,381,590 200,000,000

The Holding Company has made an investment of Rs. 200 millions (2020: Rs. 200 millions) in listed Term Finance Certificates (TFC)
of Habib Bank Limited having face value of Rs. 100,000 per certificate. This investment is classified at fair value through other
comprehensive income and unrealized loss or gain is recognized in other comprehensive income. The investment catries mark-up at the
rate of three months KIBOR + 160 bps (2020: KIBOR + 160 bps). The market price of each certificate as at June 30, 2021 is Rs.
97,420. (2020: Rs. 100,000)

During the year , the Holding Company has made investment in Pakistan Investment Bonds having face value of Rs. 120 millions,
(market value 120 millions)[(2020: nil(market value: nil)]. This carries markup of 9% (2020: nil) per annum and will mature in 2022. This
investment is classified at fair value through other comprehensive income and unrealized loss or gain is recognized in other

comprehensive income.
2021 2020
OTHER RECEIVABLES Note -—--——-—--—-Rupees_________

Export rebate 17,242,514 19,588,761
Other receivables 17.1 100,402,029 100,330,575
117,644,543 119,919,336

This amount includes Rs. 100.217 million (June 30 2020: Rs.100.217 million) due from Nazir of the Sindh High Court as refer in note
29.1.2.

2021 2020
TAXATION - net —--—--——-Rupees—--—--—-
Advance income tax 1,452,236,158 1,578,085,444
Provision for taxation (179,020,915) (281,774,529)
1,273,215,243 1,296,310,915

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 5,518,264 18,483,676
Cash at banks:
- current accounts - conventional 84,939,262 220,956,910
- cusrent accounts - Islamic 68,090,320 119,443,835
158,547,846 358,884,421

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

Number of Shares

2021 2020

50,520,750 50,520,750 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each fully paid in cash 505,207,500 505,207,500
Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as fully paid for consideration

13,284,000 13,284,000 other than cash under scheme of arrangement for amalgamation 132,840,000 132,840,000

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as fully paid against cash
2,552,190 2,552,190 consideration through tight issue 25,521,900 25,521,900

66,356,940 66,356,940 663,569,400 663,569,400

Non-Controlling Interest

Below is summarised financial information of Hudson Pharma (Private) Limited that has a non-controlling interest (22.29% stake) that
is material to the Group. The amounts disclosed are before inter-group eliminations

2021 2020

Summarised balance sheet Rupees

Current assets 367,758,091 556,097,305
Non-current assets 1,024,514,369 1,086,959,367
Non-current liabilities (249,731,982) (389,601,618)

Cusrent liabilities (357,277,983)  (500,097,796)
785,262,495 753,357,258

Accumulated NCI 116,036,838 195,749,872
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Summarised statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Sales

Loss for the period

Total comprehensive loss

Loss allocated to NCI

Summarised cash flows

Cash flow from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

RESERVES
Capital Reserve

- Share premium

- Reserve arising due to amalgamation

Revenue Reserve

- Remeasurement of investment in associate

- Unrealized loss on remeasurement of investment

classified as fair value through OCI - net of tax
- Unapproprated profit

Total reserves

223

2021

2020

-—-—-——Rupees--—-—-—-

217,080,697
(361,784,895)
(357,696,381)

(80,624,163)

(330,616,474)
(46,294,120)
84,203,554

(292,707,040)

1,472,531,500
916,862,067

(191,924,445)

(3,857,616)
7,492,756,577

206,489,512
(508,269,850)
(507,977,021)

(145,556,143)

(325,658,943)
(17,421,737)
646,561,943
303,481,263

1,472,531,500
916,862,067

41,535,172

6,158,470,644

9,686,368,083

8,589,300_383

This represents share premium amount pertaining to issue of shares at premium. This reserve can be utilized by the Group for the

purpose specified in section 81(2) of the Companies Act, 2017.

This represents reserve created under scheme of arrangement for amalgamation of an Astro Plastics (Private) Limited with the Group.

Movement of the total reserves have been reflected in consolidated statement of changes in equity.




ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

23 LONG TERM FINANCES - secured
Long term finances - secured - conventional
Long term finances - secured - islamic
Total long term finances - secured

23.1 CONVENTIONAL
Financier / Facility = Installments
type mode

Habib Bank Limited

Number of
Installments

Repayment Mark-up

period (Rate)

1 month
EURIBOR +
1.75%

- Term Finance -

FCY 2021-2024

Monthly

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2018-2030  SBP + 0.25%
1 month

KIBOR +
0.25%

- Term finance Monthly 2017-2023

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2021-2030  SBP + 0.25%

- SBP-TERF Quarterly 2022-2031 SBP + 1.25%

Bank Al-Habib Limited

3 months
KIBOR +
0.25%

- Term finance Monthly 2018-2022

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2019-2029  SBP + 0.75%

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2020-2029  SBP + 0.50%

MCB Bank Limited

- SBP-LTFF 2018-2028  SBP + 0.75%

Quarterly

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2020-2030  SBP + 0.25%

- SBP-TERF Quarterly 2024-2031 SBP + 1%

Allied Bank Limited

SBP

- SBP-LTFF
+0.25%/0.75%

Semi-annual 2022-2031

3 months
KIBOR +
0.25%

3 months
KIBOR +
0.25%

- Term finance Monthly 2021-2024

- Term finance Monthly 2015-2021

Balance carried forward

2021

2020

--------- Rupees ---------

10,726,817,829
2,388,450,175

10,949,430,620
2,931,877,390

13,115,268,004

13,881,308,010

2021

2020

--------- Rupees ---------

562,972,212

369,167,351

183,333,346

1,483,128,671

242,349,300

32,142,843

339,118,000

51,591,000

241,454,570

460,789,006

21,200,000

1,749,413,000

300,000,004

738,680,000

382,696,040

208,333,341

1,341,810,108

42,857,136

346,543,000

53,363,000

247,046,948

474,275,169

1,749,413,000

400,000,000

7,920,911

6,036,659,303

5,992,938,653
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Installments

mode

Financier / Facility
type
Balance brought forward

- Term finance Monthly

- Term finance Monthly

Repayment

period

2018-2022

2016-2022

Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly

2020-2029

2021-2030

Pak Oman Investment Company Limited

- Term finance

Monthly

- SBP-LTFF
Bank Al falah Limited

Quarterly

- Term finance Quarterly

- Term finance Quarterly

- SBP-LTFF
- SBP-TERF

Quarterly
Quarterly

JS Bank Limited

- SBP-Payroll finance Quarterly

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly

- Term finance

Monthly

- Term finance

Monthly

- SBP-Payroll finance

Quarterly

Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd
- SBP-TERF
The Bank of Punjab

Semi Annual

- SBP-TERF Quarterly
Faysal Bank Limited
- Term finance Monthly

Balance carried forward

2016-2022

2022-2030

2022-2025

2023-2026

2017-2029
2024-2031

2021-2023

2022-2030

2019-2023

2018-2022

2021-2023

2024-2031

2023-2031

2017-2022

Mark-up
(Rate)

3 months
KIBOR +
0.25%

3 months
KIBOR +
0.25%

SBP + 0.5%

SBP + 0.5%

1 month
KIBOR + 0.5%

SBP + 1.5%

6 month
KIBOR +
0.75%

3 month
KIBOR +
0.75%

SBP+0.5%
SBP+1.25%

SBP+3%

SBP+0.30%

1 month
KIBOR + 0.3%

3 month

KIBOR + 0.3%

SBP+3%

SBP+1.5%

SBP + 1.25%

3 months
KIBOR +
0.25%

Number of
Installments

6,036,659,303

75,000,009

63,960,000

490,445,000

193,574,000

35,000,000

474,566,000

500,000,000

600,000,000

345,355,085
17,608,000

485,899,719

129,759,000

122,222,222

50,000,000

36,315,586

198,931,000

130,681,254

62,500,000

5,992,938,653

100,000,008

74,620,000

496,424,000

193,574,000

50,000,000

474,566,000

500,000,000

357,994,963

647,866,294

129,759,000

138,388,889

62,500,000

47,738,158

93,750,000

10,048,476,178

9,360,619,965




Financier / Facility
type

Installments

mode

Balance brought forward
National Bank of Pakistan

- Term finance

- SBP-LTFF

- SBP-TERF
Askari Bank Limited
- SBP-LTFF

- Term finance

- SBP-Payroll finance

- SBP-Payroll finance

Soneri Bank Limited

- Term finance

PAIR Investment Company Limited

- Term finance

- SBP-ILTFF

Monthly

Quarterly
Quarterly

Quarterly

Monthly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Monthly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Repayment

period

2019-2023

2021-2030
2022-2031

2021-2031

2019-2024

2021-2023

2021-2023

2019-2025

2021-2025

2023-2033
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Mark-up
(Rate)

1 month
KIBOR +
0.25%
SBP+0.65%

SBP+1%

SBP+0.50%
1 month
KIBOR +
0.50%

SBP+1.5%
SBP+1.5%

1 month
KIBOR +
0.75%

3 month
KIBOR +
0.75%
SBP+0.50%

Number of
Installments

10,048,476,178

200,000,008

967,132,500
442,074,000

213,070,975

291,666,671

567,000,168

44,906,608

391,666,671

281,250,000

21,694,074

9,360,619,965

225,000,007

938,168,080

230,347,000

316,666,670

416,666,670

300,000,000

Total long term loan - secured 13,468,937,853 11,787,468,392

Less: Current portion of long term finances shown

under current liabilities

(2,742,120,024)
10,726,817,829

(838,037,772)
10,949,430,620

23.2 ISLAMIC

Financier / Facility = Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of 2021

type
Habib Bank Limited

- Islamic financing
MCB Islamic Bank ltd

- Islamic financing

- SBP ITERF

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited

- SBP ILTFF

- Islamic financing

Meezan Bank Limited

- Islamic financing

Balance carried forward

mode

Monthly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Monthly

period

2016-2022

2018-2023

2023-2030

2022-2027

2017-2022

2023-2029

(Rate) Installments

1 month
KIBOR +
0.25%

3 months
KIBOR +
0.25%

SBP+0.75%

SBP+1%

3 months
KIBOR +
0.25%

1 months
KIBOR +
0.75%

-—-—--—- Rupees

100,000,016

140,000,000

42,859,000

294,831,035

37,500,000

600,000,000

125,000,015

157,500,000

292,653,700

50,000,000

1,215,190,051

625,153,715
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Financier / Facility  Installments Repayment Mark-up Number of 2021 2020
type mode period (Rate) Installments --m-m---- Rupees ---m-mn--

Balance brought forward 1,215,190,051 625,153,715
1 month
- Islamic financing Monthly 2022-2025 KIBOR + 937,500,001 1,000,000,000
0.75%
1 month
- Islamic financing Monthly 2022-2025 KIBOR + 400,000,000 400,000,000
0.75%
3 month
- Islamic financing Monthly 2019-2022 KIBOR + 133,333,336 166,666,669
0.25%
3 month
- Islamic financing Monthly 2020-2023 KIBOR + 312,500,003 375,000,002
0.25%
3 months
- Islamic financing Quarterly 2020-2025 KIBOR + 160,000,000 170,000,000
0.25%

Faysal Bank Limited
3 months
- Islamic financing Quarterly 2018-2022 KIBOR + 75,000,000 93,750,000
0.25%

- SBP-LTFF Quarterly 2021-2030 SBP+1% 291,443,056 299,770,000
Total long term loan - secured 3,524,966,447 3,130,340,386
Less: Current portion of long term finances shown

under current liabilities (1,136,516,272) (198,462,996)
2,388,450,175 2,931,877,390

23.3 These represent financings for property, plant, and equipment. The above mentioned facilities are secured by way of creation of

equitable mortgage and first pari-passu / ranking charge over present and future fixed assets of the Group and personal

guarantees of sponsors.

23.4 The Group's total limit for long term loan amounting to Rs. 25,762 million. (June 2020: Rs. 19,816 million).

23.5 Last year, the Group has requested Banks/Financial Institutions who have extended long term loans facilities to defer the
repayment of prncipal loan amounts by one year n relevance of BPRD Circular Letter no. 13 of 2020 1ssued by the State Bank
of Pakistan (the SBP). The idea behind this policy of the SBP is to combat the impact of COVID-19 and to help the businesses.
The Group will continue to service the mark-up to Banks/Financial Institutions as per agreed terms and conditions with them,
the extention period of this deferment expired on March 31, 2021.

23.6 The Group entered into a long-term loan agreement with JS Bank Limited and Askari Bank Limited- conventional amounting
to Rs. 706.50 million from each Bank under the Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to the Workers and
Employees of Business Concerns by the State Bank of Pakistan. The loan is repayable in eight equal quarterly instalments,
starting from January 2021 and April 2021 respectively. This long term financing facility is secured by way of equitbale mortgage
and pari-passu over present and future fixed assets of the Company. The facility carries mark-up at State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
rate at 0% plus bank’s spread of 3% (2020: 3%) and 1.50% (2020: Nil) per annum starting from the date of disbursement and is
payable in arrears on quarterly basis.

23.7 The long-term financing has been obtained for plant and equipment under temporary economic refinance facility scheme of
State Bank of Pakistan for a term of 10 years with grace period of 12 months and 24 months from disbursement and carry
markup at the rate ranging from 1.75% to 2.50% per annum payable quarterly in arrears. The principal repayment will take place
m 32 and 36 quarterly installments which shall commence from December 2021.

23.8 The markup rate of facilities has not change significantly from the last year.
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LEASE LIABILITIES

Under the agreements, lease rentals are payable in 36 equal monthly, 16 equal quarterly & 6 equal biannually installments. Taxes,

repairs, replacement and insurance costs, if any, are borne by the Company. The financings from conventional banks carry mark-
up at rates ranging from 7.76% to 7.96% (2020: 8.78% to 14.73%) per annum and financing from Islamic banks carry mark-up
at rates ranging from 7.28% to 8.48% (2020: 8.39% to 14.68%) approximately which have been used as a discounting factor.
The Holding Company has the option to purchase the asset upon completion of the lease period.

The net carrying amount of the assets held under finance lease arrangement is Rs. 82.76 million (2020: Rs. 306.96 million) (refer
note 6.1)

These are secured against deposits of Rs. 10.41 million (2020: Rs 23.64 million), title of ownership of leased assets and personal
guarantees of the directors of the Group.

Maturity analysis of lease repayments for which the Group has committed to pay in future under the lease agreements are due

as follows:

2021 2020
-=====--- Rupees =-=n-um--
62,166,882 168,526,917
(42,765.702) (77,281,836)
19,401,180 91,245,081

Lease liability
Less: Current portion

168,526,917 236,244,403
817,992 76,024,480

- (11,294,832)
12,581,444 24,759,033
(119,759,471) (92,476,518)
- (64,729,649)
62,166,882 168,526,917

As atJuly 1

Additions

Transfer to own

Interest expense relating to lease liabilities
Payments (Lease & interest)

Disposals

As on June 30

2020

Financial

2021

Financial Present value

Minimum Present value o
Minimum lease e
of minimum

charges
allocated

lease charges of minimum

payments

payments

allocated lease payments lease payments

Conventional
Up to one year

Later than one year but
not later than five years

Islamic
Up to one year

Later than one year but
not later than five years

Rupees

5,651,908

4,503,624

562,545

90,583

5,089,363

4,413,041

20,316,233

19,003,092

1,661,354

656,870

18,654,879

18,346,222

10,155,532

653,128

9,502,404

39,319,325

2,318,224

37,001,101

41,088,675

15,490,989

3,412,336

502,850

37,676,339

14,988,139

69,871,417

79,015,326

11,244,460

6,116,467

58,626,957

72,898,859

56,579,664

3,915,186

52,664,478

148,886,743

17,360,927

131,525,816

66,735,196

4,568,314

62,166,882

188,206,068

19,679,151

168,526,917

The Holding Company has lease contract for plant and machinery and vehicles, which generally have lease term in between 3 to 5 years.

The Holding Company's oligation under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the lease assets. There are several lease contracts that

include extension and termination options.
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DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Provision for staft gratuity scheme - unfunded 472,523,930 458,656,452

Deferred tax liability 1,843,977,690 1,632,596,023
2,316,501,620 2,091,252,475

Provision for staff gratuity scheme - unfunded

In accordance with the requirements of IAS-19 “Employee Benefits”, actuarial valuation was carried out as at
June 30, 2021, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Provision has been made m these consolidated
financial statements to cover obligations in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. Details of

significant assumptions used for the valuation and disclosures in respect of above-mentioned schemes are as
Risk on account of staff gratuity scheme - unfunded

The Group faces the following risk on account of staff gratuity scheme.

Final Salary Risk (linked to inflation risk)

The nisk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the
benefit 1s calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors),
the benefit amount increases as salary increases.

Mortality Risk

The sk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect i1s more
pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

Withdrawal Risk

The 1isk of actual withdrawals experience 1s different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of

the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

Significant actuarial assumptions 2020
Rupees ---------

Financial assumptions

Discount rate (per annum) 9.25%

Expected rate of increase 1 salaries (per annum) 10.00% 9.25%

Demagraphic assumptions
Mortality rates (for death in service) Adjusted Adjusted
SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

Retirement assumption 60 years 60 years
2021 2020

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position --------- Rupees -—----—--

reconciliation

Present value of defined benefit obligation 472,523,930 458,656,452
Fair value of plan assets -

Net liability 1n balance sheet 472,523,930 458,656,452

Maturity Profile

1-5 Years 279,426,874 191,597,014
6-10 Years 391,972,739 320,611,914
10 Years onwards 4,641,086,841 7,010,376,327

Weighted average duration 8 Years 11 Years
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25.3.3 Movement in the defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at July 1
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Re-measurement on obligation

Payments during the year

Benefits payable transterred to short term lability
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at June 30

Movement in the net liability at reporting date is as follows:

Opening balance of net lLiability
25.3.5
PRAT

Charge for the year

Re-measurements recognized i 'OCI'

Payments during the year

Benefits payable transferred to short term Liability
Closing balance of net liability

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss account against defined benefit scheme are as
follows:

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Charge for the year

2021

----—---- Rupees

458,656,452
90,721,062
4,631,686
38,983,181
(50,469,989)
(62,029,361)
(7,969,101)

369,541,421
83,394,721
5,622,164
50,150,154
(3,054,221)
(33,393,705)
(13,604,082)

472,523,930

458,656,452

458,656,452
134,335,929
(50,469,989)
(62,029,361)
(7,969,101)

369,541,421
139,167,039
(3,054,221)
(33,393,705)
(13,604,082)

472,523,930

458,656,452

90,721,062
4,631,686
38,983,181

83,394,721
5,622,164
50,150,154

134,335,929

139,167,039

For the year ended June 30, 2022, expected provisions to the staft retitement benefit scheme 1s Rs. 123.484

million.

Re-measurement recognized in 'other comprehensive income'

Experience (gains)

Re-measurement of the fair value of the plan assets

Related deferred tax

(50,469,989)

(3,054,221)

(50,469,989)
11,706,684

(3,054,221)
800,804

(38,763,305)

(2,253,417)

25.3.8 Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

Comparison for five years 2021 2020 2019
Rupees

Present value of the defined

benefit obligation 472,523,930 458,656,452 369,541,421 239,551,893 178,356,600

25.3.9 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumption is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Discount rate

Salary growth rate

Change in
assumptions
1%
1%

Increase in

assumption

431,167,739
511,587,774

Decrease in

assumption

(510,906,923)
(429,854,405)
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25.3.10 The above sensitivity analysis 1s based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this 1s unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benetfit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same
method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the staff retirement gratuity recognized within

the consolidated statement of financial position.

2020

Deferred taxation Rupees ---------

The details of deferred tax on temporary differences are as follows:
1,891,286,053
(112,900,132)

1,649,441,875
(126,703,904)
(25,484,990) (27,831,486)
136,553,389 175,795,265
(1,302,384) -
(2,168,474) (2,491,512)
(42,005,772) (35,614,215)
1,843,977,690 1,632,596,023

- accelerated tax depreciation allowances

- provision for gratuity

- allowance for expected credit loss

- investment in associates at fair value through OCI
- STI - Term finance certificates

- provision for stores and spares

- provision for stock in trade

Deferred tax liability

25.4.1 The movement in temporary differences is as follows:

Recognized in  Recognized in

consolidated other

Recognized in  Recognized in
consolidated other

Balance as at

statement of comprehensve June 30, 2021

Balance as at

statement of  comprehensive  June 30, 2020

Balance as at
July 1, 2019

profit or loss income profit or loss mncome

Rupee

Provision for gratuity (103,986,578)  (23,518,130) 800,804  (126,703,904) 2,097,088 11,706,684  (112,900,132)

Allowance for expected credir loss (22,139,512 (5,691,974) (27,831,486) 2,346,496 - (25,484,990)

Investment n asscciates at fair value through OCT 175,795,265 1,956,880 (41,198,756) 136,553,389

Other investment at fair value through OCI

Provision for stores & spares

(37.818,069)

55,470,910

158,142,424
323,038 -
(6,391,557) =
241,844,178 = 1,891,286,053
(1,302,384) (1,302,384)
(30,794.456) 1,843,977,690

(2.168,474)
(42,005,772)

(2,491,512)
(35,614 215)
1,649,441,875

(2.491,512) =
(35,737,608) 123,393
1,476,261,432 173,180,443

Provision for stock in trade
Accelerated tax depreciation allowances

Term Finance Certificates-Habib Bank Limited

1,274,088,153 199564642 1589430228 1632596023 242,176,123

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note

Trade creditors 26.1

Accrued liabilities
Gratuity payable

Workers' profit participation fund

Workers' welfare fund

Sales tax payable
Other liabilities

26.2
26.3

1,886,612,724
1,758,094,054
7,969,101
106,257,804
45,446,869
184,747,427
44,304,997

2,256,405,358
810,043,256
13,604,082
54,621,136
26,993,940
299,733,305
28,609,711

4,033,432,976

3,490,910,788

This mcludes payable to related party amounting to Rs. 1.96 mullion (2020: Rs. 30.75 million)

This represents benefits payable transferred to short term liability (note 25.3.3)

Workers' profit participation fund

Balance at the beginning of the year

Contribution for the year

Interest on funds utilized 1n the Company’s business

Less: Payments made during the year

Balance at the end of the year

54,621,136
118,683,864
1,911,739

54,718,374
71,036,685
1,697,092

175,216,739
(68,958,935)

127,452,151
(72,831,015)

106,257,804

54,621,136
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ACCRUED MARK-UP

Accrued mark-up on:
Conventional

- long term finances - secured

- short term finances - secured
Islamic

- long term finances - secured

- short term finances - secured

SHORT TERM FINANCES - Secured
From banking companies

Term ﬁ_flﬂilCCS = (:onventional 281
Term finances - islamic 28.2
Export refinances 28.3
Running finance utilized under mark-up arrangements 28.4

72,471,195
68,711,539

23,842,283
1,128,688

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

69,815,026
96,951,855

20,015,724
12,954,977

166,153,705

199,737,582

105,000,000
4,853,776,000
1,209,292,547

855,000,000
971,931,342
3,248,186,980
1,714,806,708

6,168,068,547

6.789.925 030

These represent facilities for term finances arranged from various banks aggregating to Rs. 1,005 million (2020:
Rs. 1,005 mullion). These are secured against parn-passu hypothecation over stocks and book debts of the
Company along with the personal guarantees of the directors. These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from
7.18% to 8.96% per annum (2020: 8.43% to 14.29% per annum). As at the reporting date the amount of facility
1s nul.

These represent facilities for term finances artanged from various banks aggregating to Rs. 450 mullion (2020:
Rs. 1,000 rnillion). These are secured against pari—passu hypothecation over stocks and book debts of the

Holdiﬂg Cotnpany along with the persoual guarantees of the directors. These carry 1nark—up at the rates ranging
from 6.81% to 8.63% per annum (2020: 8.09% to 14.38% per annum). As at the reporting date the amount of
facﬂity 1s il

These represent facilities for export refinance arranged from various banks aggregating to Rs. 4,950.70 mullion
(2020: Rs. 3,650.70 million). These were secured aganst pari-passu / ranking hypothecation of stocks, book
debts and lien on export letters of credits of the Holdiﬂg Company along with the Personal guarantees of the
directors. These carried mark-up at the rate ranging from 0.25% to 1% above the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
rate per annum (2020: 0.25% to 1% above SBP rate per annum).

These represent facilities for running finances available from various banks aggregated to Rs. 3,829. 30 million
(2020: Rs. 4,039.40 million). These are secured against pari-passu / ranking hypothecation of stocks and book
debts and personal guarantees of the directors. These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 7.35% to 8.28%
per annum (2020: 8.43% to 14.86 % per annum).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

As the Ministry of Industries has declared that BOPET film manufacturing project of the Company as Pioneer
Industry, after which iﬂlports of capital goods shall be duty free. The Holding Company approached the Board
of Investment (BOI) for the perrnission of ﬁnports who entertained the request and was in the process of
evaluating the permussion of import vide SRO 41(I)/2009. In the meanume, the Holding Company inported
some capital goods and as per section 81 of the Customs Act, 1969, 1ssued postdated cheques in favor of
Collector of Custom amounting to Rs. 557.403 million (2020: Rs. 557.403 mullion) for provisional clearance of
goods. However, due to delay on the part of Federal Board of Revenue, the formal SRO to endorse the
decision of Mimistry of Industries 1s still awaited. The Holding Company had filed the subject Constututional
Petstion 1n the High Court of Sindh vide D-2666 on May 13, 2015 to refrain FBR and Pakistan Customs to

encasc the SCC'llIitiCS submitted against the provisional rc—:lease Of t}[lC plant and machineries, and also to iSS'llf:
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formal notification to endorse the earlier decision of the Ministry of Industries dated August 15, 2012. The
High Court has passed mnterim order dated: May 13, 2015, in favor of the Holding Company which 1s still
operative and last hearing was held on Dec 07, 2020. The management of the Holding Company, based on
legal counsel’s opinion, 1s confident that exemption shall be granted on duties related to import of capital goods
against BOPET project retrospective.

The Holding Company has filed Constitutional Petition 620-K of 2015 on November 27, 2015 against
Federation of Pakistan, Federal Board of Revenue and Collectorate of Custom in the High Court of Sindh
against the operation of SRO 170(I)/2013 dated March 04, 2013 which required 8% duty on import of Poly
Ethylene Terephthalate (PET Resin). In this connection the High Court vide order dated March 12, 2013
directed that custom duties at the rate of 3% to be paid by the Holding Company and so far as differential
amount is concerned 2.5% shall be deposited in cash and 2.5% shall be paid through postdated cheques to the
Nazir of the High Coust. In this connection the Holding Company has deposited pay orders amounting to Rs.
100.217 million (2019: Rs. 100.217 million) and issued postdated cheques amounting to Rs. 100.217 million
(2019: Rs. 100.217 mullion) in favor of Nazir of the High Court as directed. Further, the Holding Company has
filed petition in the High Court of Sindh for rationalisation of duty structure on PET Resin. The main
grievance of the Holding Company was for classitying the Pet Resin (Film Grade) and Pet Resin (Yarn Grade)
under the same PCT Heading has already been redresses in Fiscal Budget (2015-16) and from 01st July 2015,
the raw matenial for BOPET film manufactuning t.e., PET Resin — Film Grade 1s being imported on the same
rate as applicable to PET Resin — Yarn Grade. However, the retrospective relief on the previous consignments
has been regretted by the High Court which has been challenged in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan
and last hearing was held on Feb 06, 2020. As per legal Counsel, there is no immediate financial liability against

the Holding Company in the above-mentioned matter and has a good prima facie case.

The Holding Company has filed various Suits/Petitions in the High Court of Sindh against the Federation of
Pakistan and others against the orders of Commuissioner (Inland Revenue) refused to issue exemption

certificates under section 148 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 (the Ordimance) on 22 October, 2018, in

order to avail the benefit of exemption from advance tax at inport stage on plant and machineries as per SRO

947 of 2008, and the Holding Company is not going to pay any tax on income from business under the
ordinance on the basis of brought forward assessed losses available to the company, advance taxes deducted
during the financial years and carried forward tax refunds from fiscal year 2015-16 and onwards, the High Court
has allowed the Holding Company and ordered the concerned authorities to release the goods on furnishing of
bank guarantees with the Nazir of the High Court and the concerned collectorate against all consignments
which were released under similar grounds. The total quantum of bank guarantees mvolved in above

Suits/Petitions is Rs. 606.40 million. These Suits/Petitions are still pending in the High Court and the last
hearing was held on May 03, 2021. The Holding Company legal counsel is of the opinion that company has a good

prima facie case.

During the fiscal year 2017, Federal Board of Revenue has issued a show cause notice (SCN) on the basis of
scrutiny of sales tax returns of vanous tax periods which revealed that the Holding Company has claimed the
wmput tax of Astro Plastics (Private) Limited (APL) amounting to Rs. 477.804 mullion in their sales tax returns.
In response of that SCN, the company has given the reference of the letter dated: October 2016 sent to the
Federal Board of Revenue in which it was categorically mentioned that the High Court of Sindh, at Karachi, has
sanctioned the petition no. J.Misc. 13/ 2016 for amalgamation by way of merger of APL and its members with
and into Ismail Industries Limited and its members and the Holding Company has claimed the input sales tax
on that basis. However, the Holding Company has filed Suit in the High Court of Sindh vide No.1539/2017 on
June 13, 2017 and obtained the stay order from the Court. In the year 2020, subject suit was ultimately
withdrawn by the Holding Company, to pursue the remedy available under section 134A of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 1.e. Alternative Dispute Resolution Commuttee.
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29.1.5 The Holding Company had filed sale tax reference no. A.823 of 2015 on August 28, 2015 with the High Court
of Sindh upon the dismissal of appeal filed by the Holding Company before the Appellate Tribunal for tax year
2013 regarding sales tax audit. The High Court has restrained the Commissioner Inland Revenue tfrom mitiating
the proceeding on the basis of the order passed by the Appellate Tribunal as well as operation of the Order /
Judgement passed by the Tribunal has also been suspended. In the year 2020, subject suit was ultimately
withdrawn by the Holding Company, to pursue the remedy available under section 134A of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 1.e., Alternative Dispute Resolution Comumittee.

The Holding Company has filed the Constitutional Petition 2752/2011 on August 09, 2011 in the High Court
of Sindh against the Excise and Taxation Department in respect of infrastructure cess / fee being charged by

the Government of Sindh on Imports and prayed to declare that Sindh Finance (Amendment) Act, 2009 and /

or rules made thereunder to be unconstitutional, dlegal, void ab initio, and of no legal effect. In all the five
versions of the law ie. Sindh Finance Act / Ordinance, the incidence of tax arise upon ensuring of goods
entering or leaving the province and such goods enter or leave the country through air or sea. Furthermore,
import and export are within the exclusive domain of the federal legislature 1.e. the Sindh legislature throughout
lacked the junsdiction to impose the levy. The imported goods were not released by the custom authorities
without paying the infrastructure cess / fee charged by the Government of Sindh. Subsequently, the High
Court ordered the custom authority to release the goods upon furnishing Bank Guarantee. The total quantum
of bank guarantees involved in above Petitions is Rs. 290 million which is equivalent to 50% of amount of cess.
During the year, the case has been disposed off by the High Court of Sindh in favor of Excise and Taxation
Department. However, the Holding Company along with the industry has challenged the applicability of said
order 1n Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan and the Court has granted the stay order on Sep 01, 2021 and

restrained the authorities to take any coercive action against the plamntitf.

In September 2014, the Federal Government promulgated Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC)
Ordinance No. VI of 2014 to circumvent earlier decision of the Supreme Court on the subject, where it had up
held that the earlier introduction of GIDC Act 2011 was unconstitutional and ultra vires on the ground,
amongst others, that GIDC was a ‘Fee’ and not a ‘T'ax’ and the same suit was also filed against Federation of
Pakistan, OGRA , SSGC and SNGPL in different Honorable High Courts of Pakistan by Industry at Large. In
May 2015, the Government passed the GIDC Act, 2015 and the Holding Company has challenged that GIDC
Act 2015 and filed a writ petition in the High Court of Sindh including retrospective treatment of the
provisions of the GIDC Act, 2015. On October 2015, SHC decided tlus suit in favor of Holding Company.
However, the Government filed an appeal in Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, where the Holding
Company was not party to such litigation. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan has disposed off the case
on 13 August, 2020 and instruct the gas distribution companies to recover the outstanding amount in 24 equal
mnstallments only from those consumers who have already passed the burden of GIDC cost to their customers.
Based on the judgement of the Supreme Court, the Holding Company has obtained the stay order from the
High Coust of Sindh on 16th September, 2020 against the gas distubution companies for recovering of
outstanding GIDC and disconnection of gas supply. The last hearing of this case was held on Aug 16, 2021.
The cummulative differential amount of GIDC not yet recognised in these books amount to Rs 746 muillions
(inclusive of Sales Tax) The management and its legal counsel are of the view that there 1s no need to maintain
any provision against this liability and has a good prima facie case.

Through Finance Act, 2019, the Government has reduced tax credit available on new investments under
Section 65-B from 10% to 5% in FY-2019 and Nil from onward. The Holding Company has challenged the
provision of Finance Act, 2019 before the High Court of Sindh on 19 December, 2019 agamst the Federation
of Pakistan and obtained the interim relief of claiming 10% tax credit on all investments already planned
including its ancillary cost of last and current fiscal year. The last hearing was held on Apr 26, 2021 and the
management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Holding Company based on the opinion




ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
I

The Holding Company has filed two petition S-1803 & 1905 of 2020 before the High Court of Sindh and
challenged the OGRA notification bearing no. OGRA-(10)-3(8)/2020 dated October 23, 2020 for increase in
the price of national gas and different prices for industrial and captive connection where the same 1s used for
mternal consumption by industrial undertaking. The Court vide its order dated Nov 11, 2020 & Dec 03, 2020
passed an interim stay order in favor of the Holding Company and suspended the afore-mentioned notification
by allowing to pay monthly gas charges as per previous notification and directed the company to pay the
balance amount by way of bank guarantee or cheque in favor of the Nazir of Court. The cummulative
differential amount accounted for approximately Rs 31.10 million (inclusive of sales tax). The management is
confident that the case will be decided in favor of the Holding Company based on the opinion of legal counsel.

In note 20.3 of mnterim financial statement of The Bank of Khyber (the bank) an associated company for the
period ended June 30, 2021 the bank has disclosed contingent liability for disallowing of markup and others
expense by the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue. The said matter standing m adjudication with
commuissioner Inland Revenue (Appeal) and the Honorable Peshawar High Court. The bank's managements 1s

confidence about the positive outcome of the matter.

Commitments

Outstanding letters of guarantee 2,113,128,557 2.136,440.,528

Cross Corporate guarantees issued by Holding Company on behalf of
Subsidary / associates company 4,078,811,644

Outstanding letters of credit for:
- capital expenditure 2,850,901,463 592,832 875

- raw materials 1,018,228,669 946,531,340

The Group has issued guarantee in the form of sponsors support agreement to the lenders of M/s. Ismail
Resin (Private) Limited for investment in the form of equity or subordinated debts to cover the cost over-run,
or to cover the funding shortfall or any other obligation that may arise under financing documentations /

agreements executed with them.

The Holding Company's share of commitments of associated companies.

- Guarantees 4,874,734 3,985,251
- Commitments 158,324,352 10,847,832
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OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Contribution to:
- workers' profits participation fund
- workers' welfare fund
Auditors' remuneration
Exchange loss
Donations
Other
Trial production cost transferred to CWIP

Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee - unconsolidated
Audit tee - consolidated
Audit tee - subsidiary

Fee for statutory certification
Fee tor half yearly review
Out-of-pocket expense

ISMAIL INDUSTRIES LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

118,683,864
45,099,868
5,303,872
169,796,970
56,091,438
223,399

71,036,685
26,993,940
4,871,272
6,188,796
78,370,118
912,587
(6,188,796)

395,199,411

182,184,602

2,600,000
800,000
700,000
200,000
500,000
503,872

2,400,000
700,000
550,000
200,000
500,000
521,272

5,303,872

4,871,272

Donation to the following organizations exceed 10% of total donation

- Khadya Guls College
- Indus Hospital
- Al Mustufa Welfare Trust

5,708,141

19,719,431

22,678,528
18,084,960
15,204,615

25,427 572

55,968,103

None of the donations were made to any donee in which a director or his spouse had any interest at any

time during the year.

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Exchange gain

Income from non financial assets

Recovery trom the sale of production scrap

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equpment-net
Processing income

Income from Term Finance Certificates

Trading income

Gain on Forward Contract

Others

97,418,381
232,144,261
27,145,208
25,304,390
2,006,008
13,840,518
7,911,337

87,969,045

200,296,959
20,918,120
23,338,275
22,000,000

1,636,762

405,770,103

356,159,161
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FINANCE COST

Mark up on:
long term finances -conventional 141,230,056 592,538,001

long term finances-islamic 224,977,702 284,268,660
short term finances-conventional 216,712,303 90,662,982
short term finances-1slamic 43,275,131 214,158,809
Interest on workers' profits participation fund 1,911,739 1,697,092
Finance charge on lease liabilities 12,811,328 24,759,031
Bank charges 85,224,621 55,145,715
Trial production cost transterred to CWIP - (51,700,000)
726,142,880  1,211,530,291
REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND

EXECUTIVES 2021 2020
Chief Chief

executive Directors Executives executive Directors Executives

officer officer

Rupees

Managerial remuneration 22,400,000 10,800,000 512,752,379 20200000 9703900 471,686,036
Gratuity - ; 27,666,929 _ _ 30,269 203
Bt . - 24,546,002 _ ; 23,448 302
Leave Encashment - - 19,904,165 = = 19,001,659

Reimbursement of expenses

Utilities 1,166,668 916,664 z 1,000,000 750,000 -
23,566,668 11,716,664 584,869,475 21200000 10453900 544,405 200

Number of persons 2 1 115 2 1 113

In addition to the above, Group maintained cars are provided to the chief executive officer, directors

and executives.

The remuneration has been allocated as follows:
2021 2020
Chief Chief

executive Directors Executives executive Directors Executives

officer officer

Rupees

Cost of goods sold 244,524,484 222,088,255
Selling and distribution expenses - - 183,677,611 = = 181,200,382

Administrative expenses 23,566,668 11,716,664 156,667,380 21200000 10453900 141,116,563
23,566,668 11,716,664 584,869,475 21200000 10453900 544,405,200

Number of persons 2 1 115 2 1 113

38.2  Bonus 1s given to employees as per the Group's policy.
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39 CLASSIFICATION OF EXPENSES
2021

Export Common

exXpenses

Rupees

Selling and distribution expenses 3,875,493,998 562,401,865 4,437,895,863
Administrative expenses 646,342,095 119,881,879 766,223,974
Finance cost 598,570,717 127,572,163 726,142,880

2020
Local Export Common Total

expenses

Rupees

Selling and distrbution expenses 4,528,633,136 251,528,393 = 4,780,161,529
Administrative expenses - -
Finance cost 1,118,500,895 93,029,396

692,201,269 692,201,269
- 1,211,530,291

2020
TAXATION Note Rupees -------—-

Current 179,020,915 281,774,529

Prior year 16,089,447 (90,601,258)

Deferred 242,176,122 199,564,643
437,286,484 390,737,914

The relationship between accounting profit and tax expense

The relationship between tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented in these consolidated financial
statements as the current year's income of the Group attracts minimum tax under section 113 of Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001.
2020

Rupees ---------

EARNING PER SHARES - basic and diluted
Basic earnings per share
Profit for the year attributtable to holding Company 1,495,504,577 569,251,461

Number of shares
Opening Number of shares at July 01, 2020 66,356,940 63,804,750
Weighted average number of ordinary shares - 531,415

1ssued during the year
Closing weighted number of shares 66,356,940 64,336,165
66,356,940 64,336,165
Basic earnings per share 22.54 8.85
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Diluted earnings per share

There 1s no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2021 & June 30, 2020.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees as at the year end

Average number of employees during the year

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Depreciation

Amortisation charge

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - net
Provision for staff gratuity scheme - unfunded

Finance cost

Share of profit from associated companies - net
Provision for slow moving - stock i trade

Allowance for expected credit loss

Unrealized exchange gain

Unrealized exchange loss on borrowing

Unrealized exchange loss

Working capital changes
(Increase) / Decrease in current assets

Stores and spares

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Other recervables

(Decrease) / Increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Short term finances - secured
Advances from customers - unsecured

Net (decrease)/ increase in working capital

Cash generated from operations

2021

Numbers

2,516

2,437

1,852,166,898

1,804,775,818
31,868,628

(232,144,261)
134,335,929
726,142,880

(601,470,332)
43,617,766
5,000,000
50,000,000
11,642,086

814,433,232

1,398,138,079
30,159,933
(20,918,120)
139,167,039
1,211,530,291
(491,972,141)
19,627,495
(46,658,848)

9,191,212

3,825,935,412

(113,381,408)
(1,355,298,602)
(27,910,119)
(681,470,310)
4,362,347
2,274,793

3,062,698,172

(75,056,971)
(1,150,106,976)
(575,151,912)
681,972,375
(6,542,396)
12,043 467

(2,171,423,299)

536,515,084
(116,342,322)
131,681,850

(1,112,842.413)

1,362,336,055
2,075,204,931
252,219,935

551,854,612

3,689,760,921

(1,619,568,687)

2,576,918 507

2,206,366,725

5,639,616,679




Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flow arising from financing activities

Balance as at July 01, 2020

Proceeds from long term finance

Payment of long term finance

Payment of liabilities subject to finance lease
Dividend paid

Mark-up paid

Fmance cost charge dunng the year
Foreign exchange gain / loss

Profit for the year

Changes in other comprehensive income
Changes in unclaimed dividend

Balance as at June 30, 2021

Balance as at July 01, 2019

Proceeds from long term finance

Payment of long term finance

Receipts from right share issue - net off Sponsor's
loan - subordinated

Receipts from right share issue - (NCI)

Payment of laibilities subject to finance lease

Dividend pad

Mark-up paid

Finance cost charge dunng the year
Profit for the year

Changes in other comprehensive income
Right shares issue

Changes in unclaimed dividend

Balance as at June 30, 2020

Liabilities
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Equity

Long term
finances-secured

Lease Liabilities

Accrued marlc-up

Issued and paid
up share capital

Non-controlling
Interest

14,917,808,778

168,526,917

199,737,582

Rupees
663,569,400

8,589,399,383

195,749,872

24,734,791,932

3,220,196,322
(1,194,100,800)

(106,360,035)

(12,811,328)

(746,915,429)

(198,813,008)

3,220,196,322
(1,194,100,800)
(106,360,035)
(198,813,008)
(759,726,757)

2,026,095,522

(119,171,363)

(746,915,429)

(198,813,008)

961,195,722

50,000,000

12,811,328

713,331,552

1,495,504,579
(199,465,058)
(257,812)

(80,624,163)
911,130

726,142,880
50,000,000
1,414,880,415

(198,553,928)

(257,812)

50,000,000

12,811,328

713,331,552

1,295,781,708

79,713,033

1,992,211,555

16,993,904,300

62,166,382

166,153,705

663,569,400

9,686,368,084

116,036,839

27,688,199,210

Long term finances-
secured

Lease Liabilities

Accrued mark-up

Issued and pad
up share capital

Reserve

Non-controling
Interest

Total

8,554,731,282

236,244,404

209,765,533

Rupees
638,047,500

6,451,888,083

179,714,690

16,270,391,492

8,145,717,249
(1,782,639,753)

(67,717,487)

(24,759,031)

(1,196,799.211)

3,430,663

(223,010,340)

161,507,466

8,145,717,249
(1,782,639,753)

3,430,663
161,507,466
(67,717,487)

(223,010,340)
(1,221,558,242)

6,363,077,496

(92,476,518)

(1,196,799.211)

3,430,663

(223,010,340)

161,507,466

5,015,729,556

24,759,031

1,186,771,260

20,091,237

569,251,461
898,309,964
893,266,500

(306,285)

(145,556,143)
83,859

1,211,530,291
423,695,318
898,393,823
915,357,737
(306,285)

24,759,031

1,186,771,260

22,091,237

2,360,521,640

(145,472,284)

3,448,670,885

14,917,808,778

168,526,917

199,737,582

663,569,400

8,589,399,383

195,749,872

24,734,791,932
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
RELATED DISCLOSURES

Financial instruments by category

Financial assets

At amortised cost

Long term deposits

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits - unsecured
Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

At fair value through OCI
Short term investment
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

At amortised cost
Long term finances
Lease liabilities
Trade and other payables
Accrued mark-up
Short term finances
Unclaimed Dividend
Total financial liabilities

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

2021

2020

--------- Rupees ---------

31,458,748
3,494,493,181
137,526,630
26,165,635
185,029
158,547,846

318,381,590

40,690,439
3,466,583,062
112,691,504
22,517,610
113,575
358,884,421

200,000,000

4,166,758,659

4,201,480,611

16,993,904,300
62,166,882
3,696,633,444
166,153,705
6,168,068,547
2,902,597

14,917,808,778
168,526,917
3,110,575,972
199,737,582
6,789,925,030
2,644,785

27,089,829,475

25,189,219,064

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the
prncipal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (L.e. an exit price)
regardless of whether that price 1s directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used
in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the

a) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

c) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which
the transfer has occurred.

The Group’s policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have occurred includes monitoring of
the following factors:

- changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases / decreases in activity)

- changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming / ceasing to be observable in the market)

There is a transfer of level 3 short term investment to level 1 as it become listed during the year.
The valuation techniques used are as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on market value of shares at the reporting date. A
market is regarded as active when it is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The following table analysis within the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s financial assets (by class) measured at fair value

at June 30, 2021:
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2021

Financial assets Level 1 Total

Financial investments: fair value through OCI 194,840,000 318,381,590

Financial assets Level 1 Total

Financial investments: fair value through OCI 200,000,000

Level 1 Total

Investment in Associate

Investment in associate 3,180,003,578 3,180,003,578

Level 1 Total

Investment in associate 3,441,616,096 228,703,777 3,670,319,873

Financial risk management
The board of directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework. The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

45.3.1 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter-parties failed completely
to perform as contracted. The Group does not have significant exposure to any individual counter-party. To reduce
exposure to credit risk the Group has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its
customers. The management also regularly monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes allowance for
ECLs against those balances considered doubtful of recovery. To mitigate the risk, the Group has a system of assigning
credit limits to its customers based on evaluation of customer profile and payment history. Outstanding customer receivables

are regularly monitored.

Credit risk of the Group arises principally from the trade debts, loans and advances, trade deposits, other receivables and
deposits with financial institutions. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade debts

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors is mainly influenced by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The majority of the customers have been transacting with the group for several years. Actual credit loss
experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Bank balances

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing in liquid securities and maintaining bank accounts only with
counter-parties that have stable credit rating. Given these high credit ratings, management does not expect that any counter
party will fail to meet their obligations.
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The bank balances along with the credit ratings are tabulated below:
Short- term
Ratings
Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Ltd Al

Allied Bank Limited Al+ 10,590,468
Bank Al Falah Al+ 620,699
Bank Al Habib Al+ 1,157,497 382,735
Bank TIslami Pakistan Ltd Al 691,127 915,170
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited Al+ 1,304,747 929,224
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ 3,649,739 399,656
Habib Bank Limited Al+ 7,021,207 105,401,511
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited ¥ 28,218,198 5,282,390
JS Bank Limited Al+ 21,079,458 104,128,669
MCB Bank Limited Al+ 477,498 81,408
MCB Islamic Bank Limited Al 176,591 758,452
Meezan Bank Limited A=t 65,473,623 116,740,709
National Bank Of Pakistan Al+ 1,350,942 4,138,874
Samba Bank Ltd Al 14,185 13,185
Soneri Bank Ltd A=t 10,188,530 1,128,484
Summit Bank Limited Suspended 296,771 59,335
Standard Charted Bank Limited Al+ 630,097 =
Askari Bank Limited Al+ 88,205 =
153,029,582 340,400,746

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date was:

Note

Long term deposit 10 31,458,748 40,690,439
Trade debts 13 3,494,493,181 3,466,583,062
Loans and advances 14 137,526,630 900,523,125
Trade deposits - unsecured 15 26,165,635 22,517,610
Bank balances 19 153,029,582 340,400,746

3,842,673,776 4.770,714,982

To reduce the exposure to credit risk, the Group has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied
to its customers. The management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes provision
against those balances considered doubtful of recovery.

Advances recoverable from employees are secured against their retirement benefits.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit rating.
As at June 30 the Group has certain trade debts that are past due but are not considered to be impaired. The amounts as at
June 30 are as tollows:

More than 45 days but not more than 3 months 505,371,718 359,316,255
More than 3 months but not more than 6 months 514,939,516 303,067,564
More than 6 months but not more than 1 year 328,912,781 177,365,639
More than 1 year 64,845,543 65,613,396

1,414,069,558 905,362,854

In respect of trade debts, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counter party or any
group of counterparties having similar charactenistics. Trade debts consists of a large number of customers. Based on
historical information about customer default rates management consider the credit quality of trade debts that are not past
due and impaired to be good. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit
loss.
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45.3.2 Liquidity risk
Liqudity nisk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Group
could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated
with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Group's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. Based on the above, management believes the

liquidity risk 1s insignificant.

As at the reporting date the Group's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as summarized below:

Effective rates of return/mark-up on financial liabilities are as follows:

2021

Financial liabilities
Interest bearing

Long term finances - secured
(Conventional)

Long term finances - secured

(Islamic)

Lease liabilities-conventional

Lease labilities-Islamic

. 28
Short term finances - secured - conventional

28
Short term finances - secured- Islamic
Non - interest bearing
Trade and other payables

Accrued mark-up

Note

Financial liabilities
Interest bearing
Long term finances - secured - conventional 23

Long term finances - secured - Islamic

Lease liabilities-conventional
24

Lease liabilities-Islamic
Short term finances - secured-conventional 28

Short term finances - secured-Islamic 28

Non - interest bearing
Trade and other payables

Accrued mark-up

Effective rate of

interest

Carrying
amount

Maturity upto

one year

Maturity after
one year

Rupees

1.5% to
8.76%
6.30% to
8.13%

7.76% to
7.96%
7.28% to
8.48%
8.43% to
14.86%
7.93% to
7.97%

13,468,937,853
3,524,966,447
9,502,404
52,664,478
6,063,068,547
105,000,000

3,696,633,444
166,153,705

2,742,120,024

1,136,516,272

5,089,363
37,676,339
6,063,068,547
105,000,000

3,696,633,444
166,153,705

10,726,817,829

2,388,450,175

4,413,041

14,988,139

27,086,926,878

13,952,257,694

13,134,669,184

2020

Effective rate of

interest

Carrying amounnt

Maturity upto

one year

Maturity after

Of11¢ year

5% 11,787,468,392
9% 3,130,340,386

8.78% to 14.73% 37,001,101

8.39% to 14.68% 131,525,816

8.43% to 14.86%
5,817,993,688

8.09% to 14.38%
971,931,342

3,110,575,972
199,737,582

Rupees

838,037,772
198,462,996

18,654,879

58,626,957

5,817,993,688

971,931,342

3,110,575,972
199,737,582

10,949,430,620
2,931,877,390

18,346,222

72,898,859

25,186,574,279

11,214,021,188

13,972,553,091
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore,
a change in interest rate at financial position would not affect profit or loss of the Group.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

At June 30, 2021, if interest rates on long term financing had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant,
pre tax profit for the year would have been affected by Rs. 165.12 million (2020: Rs. 144.99 million) higher / lower, mainly

as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

At June 30, 2021, if interest rates on short term borrowings had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables held
constant, pre tax profit for the year would have been affected by Rs. 60.63 million (2020: Rs. 68.01 million) higher / lower,
mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

45.3.3 Market risk

Market risk s the nisk that fair value of future cash flows of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices. Market prices comprise of three types of risks namely foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price

risk, such as equity nisk.

a) Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial asset or a lability will fluctuate due to changes

in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign
currencies. The Group primarily has foreign currency exposures i US Dollars.

Exposure to Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency value fluctuations due to the following:

2021 2020
- Amount in USD —————-
Trade debts 3,437,685 6,282,408
Cash and bank balances 142,838 3,652
Trade and other payables (5,044,483) (3,291,629)
Loans and advances 871,525 363,263
Advances from customers (449,586) (54,044)
(1,042,021) 3,303,650

Off balance sheet exposures
Letter of credit (22,935,137) (9,150,522)

Net Exposure (23,977,158) (5,846,872)

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year.

2021 2020
Rupee per USD
Average rate 162.97 164.10

Reporting date rate 157.80 168.14

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

A 10 percentage strengthening of the PKR against the USD at June 30, 2020 would have effect on the equity and profit
and loss of the Group as shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain

constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for June 30, 2021
2021 2020
--------- Rupees ---------

Strengthening of PKR against respective currencies 378,359,554 98,309,014

Weakening of PKR against respective currencies (378,359,554) (98,309,014)

As at 30 June 2021, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar with all other
variables being constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 378.36 million (2020: Rs.
98.31 million) mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains / losses on translation of dollar denominated financial assets.
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The maximum exposure to foreign currency risk in Pakistani rupee at the reporting date is as follows:

2021
Note ------—--- Rupees

Export debtors 13 542,466,672 1,056,320,953
Import creditors 796,019,344 553,452,905
1,338,486,016 1,609,773,858

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of the
changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short and long term borrowings from
banks, running finance facilities and finance leases. At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group's mark-up
bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Carrying amount
2021
--------- Rupees

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets 194,840,000 200,000,000

Financial Liabilities 6,709,714,224 6,382,327.235
6,904,554,224 6,582,327,235

As at 30 June 2021, it KIBOR had been 100 bps lower/higher with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for
the year would have been lugher/lower by Rs. 69.05 muillion. (2020: Rs. 216.76 million) mainly because of higher/lower
interest expense on variable rate instruments.

c) Equity risk

It is the risk that the listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk, arising from uncertainties about future
values of the investment securities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Group when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to mamtain a strong capital base to
support the sustained development of its businesses.

The Group manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividend paid to the shareholders or 1ssue bonus / right shares. There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital
management during the year and the Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group’s capital includes share capital, unapproprated profit and reserves. As at reporting date the capital of the
Group is as follows:
2021
--------- Rupees
Share capital 663,569,400 663,569,400
Reserves 9,685,273,884 8,589,399.383
10,348,843,284 9,252,968,783

The Group manages its capital risk by monitoring its debt levels and liquid assets and keeping in view future investments
requirements and expectations of the shareholders. Debt 1s calculated as total borrowings (long term finances). The
Group's capital signifies equity as reported in statement of financial position and includes share capital and accumulated
losses.

During 2021 the Group's strategy was to maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing ratios as at June 30, 2021 and 2020 were
as follows:
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Total borrowings

Less: Cash and bank balances
Net debt

Total equity

Total equity and debt

Net Gearing ratio (%o)

23,161,972,847  14,917,808,778
(158,547,846) (358,884,421)

23,003,425,001  14,558,924,357
10,348,843,284 9,252,968,783

33,352,268,285  23,811,893,140

69.0% 61.1%

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintain

an appropriate mix amongst various sources of finance to minimize risk.

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

2021
Metric Ton
Rated Actual
Capacity Production

Food processing 166,562 88,363

2020
Metric Ton
Rated Actual
Capacity Production

162,462 98,331

Plastic film 63,000 29,608

33,000 24,824

Pharmaceuticals
Blow fill seal 18,000 10,010

18,000 9,625

Ophthalmic 2,500 1,079

2,500 997

During the year, rated installed capacity of Food Division is increased by 4,100 tons. Enhanced capacities in production
lines were fully operative in fourth quarter of the financial year, due to COVID-19 Pandemic and high inflation, the

demand of products was under pressure.

In Plastic Division, new BOPET Film production line was commissioned in delay of around 6 months due to COVID-19

Pandemic and become fully operational in fourth quarter of the financial year.

TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise associated undertakings, directors of the Group and key management personnel. The Group

continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered ito at commercial terms and

conditions.

Details of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Name
Mr. Ahmed Muhammad
Mr. Munsarim Saif
Mr. Ghulam Farooq
Mr. Abdul Qadir

Bank of Khyber Limited
(Associated Company - 24.43% shareholding)

Investment made during the year

Ismail Resin (Pvt) Ltd.

(Associated Company - common directorship)
Balance as at June 30

Salaries & Benefits to KMP
Post employment benefit to KMP
Loan balance to KMP

Direct shareholding %
15.22
0.000009
Nil

2020
Rupees -—-—-----

16,284,035

491,737,500

52,143,332 45,736,571

1,386,863 1,269,094

3 2,000,000
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2021 2020
--------- Rupees ---------

Plastiflex Films (Private) Limited
(Common Directorship)

- Purchase of raw & packing Materials 70,392,521 81,113,035

Metallization of raw material (31,759,987) (27,305,781)

Sales of raw and packing material - (4,595,597)

Recovery against Sales 26,597,506 31,667,166

- Payment against purchases (94,017,364) (64,718,1906)

Balances
Plastiflex Films (Private) Limited

- Payable to associate 1,960,087 30,747 411
NON - ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Referring to the note 9.2 of these consolidated financial statement, subsequent the Holding Company has made further
investment in its Ismail Resin (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 633,811,644. The requisite regulatory compliances has
been completed and 112,500,000 shares amounting to Rs. 1,125,000,000 has been allotted to the Holding Company
subsequent to year end.

The board of directors in its meeting held on September 17, 2021 has proposed dividend in respect of the year ended June
30, 2021 of Rs. 15/~ per share (2020: Rs. 3/- per share) for approval of the members at the annual general meeting. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 do not include the effect of proposed dividend, which
will be accounted for in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2022.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for 1ssue on September 17, 2021 by the board of directors of the
Holding Company.

Munsarim Saifullah Magqsood Ismail Abdul Qadir
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
SHAREHOILDERS STATISTICS
AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

Number of
Shareholders

Shareholdings

From

To

Total Number
of Shares Held

1300 |
124 101
34 501
1001
5001
10001
20001
30001
435001
475001
560001
1270001
1380001
1510001
3595001
6500001
10395001
19310001
20590001

100

500

1000
5000
10000
15000
25000
35000
440000
480000
565000
1275000
1385000
1515000
3600000
6505000
10400000
19315000
20595000

N
U N

3
1
|
|
1
1
|
1
1
i
i
1
1
|

17,448
35,031
27,651

101,644
39,061
39,916
20,876
34,500

435,400

480,000

562,155

1,271,650
1,380,450
1,510,090
3,600,000
6,500,090

10,395,798

19,312,293

20,592,887

66,356,940

Number of Number of
Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Shareholder's Category

CEO, Sponsor, Directors their Spouses & Children 13
Associated Company 1
Foreign Companies 1
General Public

(a) Foreign 12
(b) Local

65,607,066
435,400
3,300

4,846
306,328

98.87%
0.66%
0.00%

0.01%
0.46%

Total

66,356,940

100.00%
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Y

Shareholder's Category

Number of | Number of

Folios Shares Held

Percentage

Associated Company:

Uniron Industries (Private) Limited

Directors:

Mt. Magsood Ismail Ahmed

Mz. Ahmed Muhammad

Mr. Hamid Magsood

Ms. Muhammad Zubair Motiwala (Independent)
Ms. Tasneem Yusuf (Independent Director)

Chief Executive Officer:
Mr. Munsarim Saifullah

Chairman:
Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail

CEO, Directors their Spouses & Children:
Ms. Farzana Muhammad
Ms. Almas Magsood

Sponsor, his Spouse & Children:
Mr. Miftah Ismail Ahmed
Ms. Reema Ismail Ahmed

Others

435,400

562,155
10,100,090
1,510,090
520

520

10,395,798

1,380,450
19,792,293

20,592,887
1,271,650

314,474

Total

66,356,940

Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest

Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail
Mz, Miftah Ismail

Ms. Almas Magsood

Mr. Ahmed Muhammad

10,395,798
20,592,887
19,792,293
10,100,090
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STATEMENT SHOWING SHARES PURCHASE,
SALE AND GIFT BY DIRECTORS,
EXECUTIVES THEIR SPOUSES & CHILDREN

FROM JULY 01, 2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021

Shares Traded

Shares Gifted

Name Designation

Purchase

Sale

Received

Given

Director 11,800

Mr. Muhammad M. Ismail

Director -

Mr. Hamid Magsood Ismail

1,000,000

Spouse of Director Mr.

Ms. Almas Magsood ]
S mas 500! Maqsood Ismail Ahmed

1,000,000
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PROXY FORM

The Secretary/ Registrar

I/We son/ daughter/ wife of _shareholder of

Ismail Industries Limited, holding ordinary shares as per register under Folio No

and/or CDC Participant ID and Sub- Account No. hereby appoint

(holding ordinary shares 1n the Company as per register under

Folio No and/or CDC Participant 1D and Sub- Account No. ) or

failing him /her , (holding ordinary shares in the Company as per

register under Folio No and/or CDC Participant ID and Sub- Account

No. ) as my/ our proxy, to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 25, 2021 and/ or any adjournment thereof.
Signed this day of 2021.

(Signature should agree with the specimen
signature registered with the Company)

Sign across Rs.5/-

Revenue Stamp

Signature of Member(s)
Witness 1: Witness 2:

Signature Signature

Name Name

CNIC # CNIC #

A proxy need be a member of the Company

In order to be valid, this Proxy must be recetved to our Registrar/Transfer Agents, M/s. THK Associates
(Pvt) Ltd. Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A Phase VII, Karachi 75500 Pakistan at least 48
hours before the time fixed for the Meeting, duly completed 1n all respects.

CDC Shareholders or their Proxies should bring their original Computerized National Identity Card
(CNIC) or Ormginal Passport along with the Participant’s ID Number and their Account Number to
facilitate their identification.
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ISMAIL
INDUSTRIES

LIMITED
HEAD OFFICE

17-BANGALORE TOWN, SHAHR AH-E-FAISAL, K AR ACHI-75350, PAKISTAN.
TEL: (92-21) 3431 1172-76, FAX: (92-21) 3454 7843, 3454 1094

FACTORIES
UNIT 1: C-230, HI.T.E, HUB, BALOCHISTAN, PAKISTAN.
TEL: (92-853) 302526-302392

UNIT 2: B-140, H.I.T.E, HUB, BALOCHISTAN, PAKISTAN.
TEL: (92-853) 302589, FAX: (92-853) 302408

UNIT 3: G-1, HI.T.E. HUB, BALOCHISTAN, PAKISTAN.
TEL: (92-853) 302611, FAX: (92-853) 302611, 303817

UNIT 4: G-22, 23, HI.T.E, HUB, BALOCHISTAN, PAKISTAN.
TEL: (92-853) 303193, 303177, FAX: (92-853) 302527

UNIT 5: 38-C, 39, 39-A, 42-C, SUNDAR [NDUSTRIAL ESTATE,
RAIWIND ROAD, LAHORE, PAKISTAN. TEL: (92-42) 36140972

UNIT 6: D-91, D-92 & D-94, NORTH WESTERN INDUSTRIAL ZONE,
PORT QASIM AUTHORITY, KARACHL TEL: (92-21) 34154169-70, FAX: (92-21) 34154176

UNIT 7: E-164 TO E-168, NORTH WESTERN INDUSTRIAL ZONE,
PORT QASIM AUTHORITY, KARACHI TEL: (92-21) 34154171-73, FAX: (92-21) 34154176

UNIT 8: E-154 TO E-157, NORTH WESTERN INDUSTRIAL ZONE,
PORT QASIM AUTHORITY, KARACHL TEL: (92-21) 34154174-75, FAX: (92-21) 34154176

UNIT 9: G-1A, H.I.T.E., HUB, BALOCHISTAN, PAKISTAN.
TEL: (92-853) 363495, 303510
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